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PART I
Item 1. Business
Overview
We are a specialty finance company. We operate as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that filed an election
on February 12, 2016 to be regulated as a BDC under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which we refer to as the 1940
Act. In addition, we intend to elect for U.S. federal income tax purposes to be treated as a regulated investment company, or a RIC, under
Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which we refer to as the Code. We did not qualify as a RIC in 2015 and
2014 and were taxed as a C Corporation (“C-Corp”) for 2014 and will be taxed as a C-Corp for 2015. As a BDC and a RIC, we are required
to comply with certain regulatory requirements.
We provide customized debt and equity financing solutions to lower middle-market companies, which we define as companies having
annual earnings, before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, of less than $25 million, and/or annual revenues of
between $20 million and $200 million, although we may opportunistically make investments in larger or smaller companies. We expect that
our investments will typically range in size from $3 million to $10 million, although investment amounts may be smaller or larger than this
range. In particular, we may make smaller investments in broadly syndicated loans in the early stages of our development as we raise
capital.
We raise capital through a private offering of our shares of common stock in order to acquire a portfolio of debt and equity investments
consistent with our investment objective and our investment strategy. Parkview Advisors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
which we refer to as our Advisor, serves as our investment adviser pursuant to an investment advisory agreement, or the Advisory
Agreement. Under the Advisory Agreement our Advisor provides significant credit analysis, structuring capability and transactional
experience for us.
Our investment objective is to generate both current income and capital appreciation primarily by making direct investments in lower
middle-market companies in the form of subordinated debt and, to a lesser extent, senior debt and minority equity investments. The
companies in which we invest will typically be highly leveraged, and, in most cases, our investments in such companies will not be rated by
any rating agency. If such investments were rated, we believe that they would likely receive a below-investment grade rating, which is
often referred to as “high-yield” or “junk.” While our primary investment focus is to make loans to, and selected equity investments in,
lower middle-market companies, we may also make opportunistic investments in larger or smaller companies. We can offer no assurances
that we will achieve our investment objective.
We will seek to maximize the total return to our stockholders by:
●
●
●
●
●
●

accessing the extensive origination channels that have been developed and established by the investment professionals of our
Advisor, which includes long-standing relationships with private equity firms, commercial banks, investment banks and other
financial services firms;
investing in what we believe to be companies with strong business fundamentals, generally within our lower middle-market
company focus;
focusing on a variety of industry sectors, including business services, energy, general industrial, government services, healthcare,
software and specialty finance;
directly originating loans to portfolio companies and participating in broadly syndicated financings;
applying a disciplined investment process and underwriting standards that our Advisor’s investment professionals have developed
over their extensive investing careers; and
capitalizing upon the experience and resources of our Advisor’s investment professionals to monitor investments.

Because we have elected to be regulated as a BDC and we intend to qualify as a RIC under the Code, our portfolio is subject to
diversification and other requirements. See “—Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences. ”
We may borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up
to one-half of our assets). In determining whether to borrow money, we will analyze the maturity, covenant package and rate structure of
the proposed borrowings as well as the risks of such borrowings compared to our investment outlook. The use of borrowed funds or the
proceeds of preferred stock offerings to make investments would have its own specific set of benefits and risks, and all of the costs of
borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relating to
Our Business and Structure—We may borrow money, which may magnify the potential for gain or loss and may increase the risk of
investing in us.”
Our investments may also include non-cash income features, including payment in kind interest or dividends (“PIK”) or original issue
discount (“OID”).
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Our Portfolio
As of March 28, 2016, our investment portfolio principal totaled $25,734,000 and consisted of $12,401,000, or 48.2%, in first lien senior
secured debt, $11,463,000, or 44.5%, in second lien senior secured debt and $1,870,000, or 7.3%, in equity investments.
The following is our investment portfolio as of March 28, 2016:
Portfolio Company
Action Resources
Generation Brands
InfoGroup, Inc.
Langham Creek LLC
Maxim Crane Works, LP
North Atlantic Trading Company, Inc.
Offisol
WBL SPE I, LLC

Industry
Transportation
Home Furnishings
Market Analytics
Real Estate
Heavy Construction
Tobacco
Staffing
Financial Services

Security Type
Second lien senior secured term loan
First lien senior secured term loan
First lien senior secured term loan
Preferred and common units
Second lien senior secured term loan
First and second lien senior secured term loan
First lien senior secured term loan and warrants
First lien senior secured term loan

Principal
4,963,000
1,492,000
3,504,000
1,870,000
4,500,000
2,903,000
3,502,000
3,000,000
$ 25,734,000
$

Our Advisor
Parkview Advisors, LLC (our “Advisor”), a Delaware limited liability company, acts as our investment adviser. Our Advisor is registered
as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”). Our Advisor is owned by SKW
Financial, LLC, an entity controlled by Keith W. Smith, our President and Chief Executive Officer. As a result, Mr. Smith is the indirect
owner of our Advisor and controls its operations. Our Advisor sources and manages our portfolio through a team of investment
professionals, led by Mr. Smith. Mr. Smith has substantial experience in credit origination having previously served as Managing Director
with Capital Point Partners where he invested and/or realized more than $150 million in direct lending in first lien, second lien and
mezzanine investments as well as complementary minority equity investments. Prior to Capital Point, Mr. Smith worked for Rabobank
International (“RI”), as a Vice President and Portfolio Manager, where he was involved in direct lending and structured credit bank assets
of more than $2 billion for one of RI’s special investment vehicles.
Our Advisor has its headquarters at Two Post Oak Center, 1980 Post Oak Boulevard, 15 th Floor, Houston Texas 77056.
The Board of Directors
Our board of directors (the “Board”) has ultimate authority as to our investments, but it has delegated authority to our Advisor to select and
monitor our investments, subject to the supervision of the Board. Pursuant to our amended and restated articles of incorporation (the
“Charter”), the Board currently consists of five members, a majority of whom are not “interested persons” of the Company, of our Advisor
or of any of their respective affiliates, as defined in the 1940 Act (the “Independent Directors”). In connection with the appointment of our
independent directors, we amended our Charter to divide our board of directors into three classes. At each annual meeting, directors will be
elected for staggered terms of three years (other than the initial terms, which extend for a period of one year, two years or three years,
respective to each class of director), with the term of office of only one of these three classes of directors expiring each year. Each director
will hold office for the term to which he or she is elected and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies. Any director may
resign at any time and our Charter provides that a director may be removed only for cause, as defined in our Charter, and then only by the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast in the election of directors.
Advisory Agreement
On March 11, 2015, we entered into the Advisory Agreement with our Advisor under which our Advisor:
●
●
●
●
●

determines the composition of our portfolio, the nature and timing of the changes to our portfolio and the manner of implementing
such changes;
identifies, evaluates and negotiates the structure of the investments we make (including performing due diligence on our prospective
portfolio companies);
determines the assets we originate, purchase, retain or sell;
closes, monitors and administers the investments we make, including the exercise of any rights in our capacity as a lender; and
provides us such other investment advice, research and related services as we may, from time to time, require.
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Our Advisor’s services under the Advisory Agreement are not exclusive, and it is free to furnish similar or other services to others so long
as its services to us are not impaired.
Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement, we pay our Advisor a base management fee (the “Management Fee”) and may also pay to it
incentive fees (each, an “Incentive Fee”).
The Management Fee is calculated at an annual rate of 2.00% of the end-of-period gross assets payable monthly in arrears. For purposes of
calculating the Management Fee, the term “gross assets” includes any assets acquired with the proceeds of leverage. As a result, the
Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. For each of the first two months of operations, the Management Fee was
calculated based on the value of our gross assets at the end of such month, and appropriately adjusted for any share issuances during these
months. Following our first two months of operations, the Investment Advisory Agreement provides that the Management Fee is calculated
based on the average value of gross assets at the end of the two most recently completed months. We have clarified our Management Fee
calculation so that the Management Fee is calculated by averaging the value of our gross assets at the end of the two most recently
completed quarters, and appropriately adjusting for any share issuances occurring during any month of the current quarter. Management
Fees for any partial month are appropriately prorated.
The Incentive Fee is divided into two parts: (i) an incentive fee on income and (ii) an incentive fee on capital gains. Each part of the
Incentive Fee is outlined below.
The first part, which we refer to as the incentive fee on income, is calculated and payable quarterly in arrears based upon our “pre-incentive
fee net investment income” for the immediately preceding quarter. The incentive fee on income is subject to a hurdle rate, measured
quarterly and expressed as a rate of return on adjusted capital at the beginning of the most recently completed calendar quarter, of 1.75%
(7.0% annualized), subject to a “catch up” feature. For this purpose, “pre-incentive fee net investment income” means interest income,
dividend income and any other income (including any other fees, other than fees for providing managerial assistance, such as commitment,
origination, structuring, diligence and consulting fees or other fees that we receive from portfolio companies) accrued during the calendar
quarter, minus our operating expenses for the quarter (including the Management Fee, expenses reimbursed to our Administrator or Advisor
under the Administration Agreement or Advisory Agreement and any interest expense and dividends paid on any issued and outstanding
preferred stock, but excluding the Incentive Fee). Pre-incentive fee net investment income includes, in the case of investments with a
deferred interest feature (such as original issue discount, debt instruments with payment-in-kind interest and zero coupon securities),
accrued income that we have not yet received in cash. Pre-incentive fee net investment income does not include any realized capital gains,
realized capital losses or unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation. For purposes of this fee, adjusted capital means cumulative gross
proceeds generated from issuances of our common stock (including our distribution reinvestment plan, if established) reduced for
distributions to investors that represent a return of capital. The calculation of the incentive fee on income for each quarter is as follows:
●
●

●

No incentive fee on income is payable to our Advisor in any calendar quarter in which our pre-incentive fee net investment income
does not exceed the hurdle rate of 1.75% (7.0% annualized) (the “hurdle rate”).
100% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate, but is less than or equal to 2.1875% in any
calendar quarter (8.75% annualized) is payable to our Advisor. We refer to this portion of our pre-incentive fee net investment
income as the “catch-up.” The “catch-up” provision is intended to provide our Advisor with an incentive fee of 20.0% on all of our
pre-incentive fee net investment income when our pre-incentive fee net investment income reaches 2.1875% in any calendar
quarter.
20.0% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds 2.1875% in any calendar quarter (8.75%
annualized) will be payable to our Advisor once the hurdle rate is reached and the catch-up is achieved (20.0% of all pre-incentive
fee net investment income thereafter is allocated to our Advisor).

The second part of the incentive fee, which we refer to as the incentive fee on capital gains, is an incentive fee on capital gains and is
determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each calendar year (or upon termination of the Advisory Agreement). This fee will equal
20% of our realized capital gains on a cumulative basis from inception, calculated as of the end of the applicable period, computed net of
all realized capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously paid
capital gain incentive fees.
Prior to our election to be regulated as a BDC, the Advisory Agreement was re-approved by our Board, including by a majority of the
directors who are not interested persons of the Company, our Advisor, or any of their respective affiliates, at an in-person meeting of the
Board called for that purpose. Unless earlier terminated as described below, the Advisory Agreement will remain in effect for a period of
two years from its effective date and will remain in effect from year to year thereafter if approved annually by (i) the vote of our Board, or
by the vote of a majority of our outstanding voting securities, and (ii) the vote of a majority of our Independent Directors. The Advisory
Agreement will automatically terminate in the event of assignment and may be terminated by either party without penalty upon 60 days’
written notice to the other.
Our Advisor will not assume any responsibility to us other than to render the services described in, and on the terms of, the Advisory
Agreement, and will not be responsible for any action of our Board in declining to follow the advice or recommendations of our Advisor.
Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement, and absent willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence in the performance of its duties
or by reason of the reckless disregard of its duties and obligations, our Advisor (and its officers, managers, partners, agents, employees,
controlling persons and members, and any other person or entity affiliated with our Advisor) shall not be liable to us for any action taken or
omitted to be taken by our Advisor in connection with the performance of any of its duties or obligations under the Advisory Agreement, or
otherwise as an investment adviser of the Company (except to the extent specified in Section 36(b) of the 1940 Act concerning loss
resulting from a breach of fiduciary duty (as the same is finally determined by judicial proceedings) with respect to the receipt of
compensation for services). We shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, provide indemnification and the right to the advancement of
expenses, to each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved (including, without limitation, as a
witness) in any actual or threatened action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact

that he/she is or was a member, manager, officer, employee, agent, controlling person of our Advisor or any other person or entity affiliated
with our Advisor, on the same general terms set forth in Article VII of our Charter.
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Administration Agreement
On March 11, 2015, we entered into an Administration Agreement with Parkview Administrator, LLC, or the Administrator, which we
refer to as the “Administration Agreement,” under which the Administrator will provide administrative services to us. These services may
include providing office space to us, providing us with equipment and office services, maintaining our financial records, preparing reports
to our stockholders and reports filed with the SEC and managing the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and
professional services rendered to us by others. We will reimburse the Administrator for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the
Administrator in providing these services, facilities and personnel, as provided by the Administration Agreement. We will also reimburse
the Administrator for the allocable portion of the compensation paid by the Administrator (or its affiliates) to our chief compliance officer
and chief financial officer (based on the percentage of time such individuals devote, on an estimated basis, to the business and affairs of the
Company). See “—Fees and Expenses.” In addition, the Administrator is permitted to delegate its duties under the Administration
Agreement to affiliates or third parties, and we will reimburse the expenses of these parties incurred and paid by the Administrator on our
behalf.
Unless earlier terminated as described below, the Administration Agreement will remain in effect for a period of two years from their
effective date and will remain in effect from year to year thereafter if approved annually by (i) the vote of our Board and (ii) the vote of a
majority of our Independent Directors. The Administration Agreement may be terminated by either party without penalty upon 60 days’
written notice to the other.
License Agreement
On March 11, 2015, we entered into a license agreement (the “License Agreement”) with our Advisor, pursuant to which we have been
granted a non-exclusive license to use the name “Parkview.” Under the License Agreement, we have a right to use the “Parkview” name
and logo, for so long as our Advisor or one of its affiliates remains our investment adviser. Other than with respect to this limited license,
we will have no legal right to the “Parkview” name or logo.
Market Opportunity
We believe that the limited amount of capital available to lower middle-market companies, coupled with the desire of these companies for
flexible and partnership-oriented sources of capital, creates an attractive investment environment for us. We believe the following factors
will continue to provide us with opportunities to grow and deliver attractive returns to our stockholders. However, there can be no
assurances that we will be able to successfully implement our business strategy and, as a result, meet our investment objective.
The Lower Middle-market Represents a Large, Underserved Market. We believe that lower middle-market companies, most of which are
privately held, are relatively underserved by traditional capital providers such as commercial banks, finance companies, hedge funds and
collateralized loan obligation funds. Further, we believe that companies of this size generally are less leveraged relative to their enterprise
value, as compared to larger companies with a greater range of financing options.
Recent Credit Market Dislocation for Lower Middle-market Companies has Created an Opportunity for Attractive Risk-Adjusted
Returns. Beginning with the credit crisis that began in 2007, we believe that the subsequent exit of traditional capital providers from lower
middle-market lending has created a less competitive market and an increased opportunity for alternative funding sources like us to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns. The remaining lenders and investors in the current environment require lower levels of senior and
total leverage, increased equity commitments and more comprehensive covenant packages than were customary prior to the credit crisis.
We believe that our ability to offer flexible financing solutions positions us to take advantage of this dislocation.
Regulatory Changes Have Decreased Competition among Lower Middle-market Lenders. In addition to the recent credit market
dislocation, we believe recent regulatory changes, including the adoption of the Dodd-Frank Act and the introduction of new international
capital and liquidity requirements under the Basel III Accords have caused banking institutions to curtail their lending to lower middlemarket companies. As a result, we believe that less competition will facilitate higher quality deal flow and allow for greater selectivity for
us throughout the investment process.
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Large Pools of Uninvested Private Equity Capital should Drive Future Transaction Velocity. According to industry sources, as of
December 31, 2013, there was approximately $103.7 billion of uninvested capital raised by private equity funds with under $500 million of
assets under management that began making investments during the years 2008 to 2013. As a result, we expect that private equity firms will
remain active investors in lower middle-market companies. Private equity funds generally seek to leverage their investments by combining
their equity capital with senior secured loans and/or mezzanine debt, or subordinated debt that is not secured by collateral, provided by
other sources. We believe that our investment strategy positions us well to partner with such private equity investors, although there can be
no assurance that we will be successful in this regard. Although our interests may not always be aligned with the private equity sponsors of
our portfolio companies given their positions as the equity holders and our position as the debt holder in our portfolio companies, we
believe that private equity sponsors will provide significant benefits including incremental due diligence, additional monitoring capabilities
and a potential source of capital and operational expertise for our portfolio companies.
Specialized Lending Requirements. Lending to small and lower middle-market companies requires in depth diligence, credit expertise,
restructuring experience and active portfolio management. We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited
to lend to small and lower middle-market companies. For example, based on the experience of our Advisor’s investment professionals,
lending to small and lower middle-market companies in the United States (a) is generally more labor intensive than lending to larger
companies due to the smaller size of each investment and the fragmented nature of the information available with respect to such
companies, (b) requires specialized due diligence and underwriting capabilities, and (c) may also require more extensive ongoing
monitoring by the lender. We believe that, through our Advisor, we have the experience and expertise to meet these specialized lending
requirements.
Competitive Advantages
Experienced Management Team. The investment professionals of our Advisor have prior experience in investment and management
positions at investment banks, commercial banks and privately held companies and the investment professionals of our Advisor have
invested and/or managed portfolios with debt and equity securities of primarily lower middle-market companies. We believe this
experience provides our Advisor with an in-depth understanding of the strategic, financial and operational challenges and opportunities of
lower middle-market companies. Further, we believe this positions our Advisor to effectively identify, assess, structure and monitor our
investments.
Strong Transaction Sourcing Network. Our President and Chief Executive Officer, Keith W. Smith, has an extensive network of longstanding relationships with private equity firms, middle-market senior lenders, junior-capital partners, financial intermediaries, law firms,
accountants and management teams of privately owned businesses. We believe that these relationships will generate a steady stream of
new investment opportunities and proprietary deal flow.
Flexible Financing Solutions. We offer a variety of financing structures to meet the custom needs of our portfolio companies, including
among investment types and investment terms. Our investments in our portfolio companies may take the form of first and second lien
senior secured debt, unsecured mezzanine debt, convertible debt or subordinated debt, coupled with an equity or equity-like component to
increase the total investment return profile. We believe our ability to offer a variety of financing arrangements makes us an attractive
partner to lower middle-market companies and enables our Advisor to identify attractive investment opportunities throughout economic
cycles and across a company’s capital structure.
Rigorous Underwriting process and Active Portfolio Management. Our Advisor has implemented a rigorous underwriting process that it
follows in each transaction. This process includes an extensive review and credit analysis of portfolio companies, historical and projected
financial performance, as well as an assessment of the portfolio company’s business model and forecasts that are designed to assess
investment prospects via a thorough analysis of each potential portfolio company’s competitive position, financial performance,
management team operating discipline, growth potential and industry attractiveness. In addition, we structure our debt investments with
protective financial covenants, designed to proactively address changes in a portfolio company’s financial performance. Covenants are
negotiated before an investment is completed and are based on the projected financial performance of the portfolio company. These
processes are designed to, among other things, provide us with an assessment of the ability of the portfolio company to repay its debt at
maturity. After investing in a portfolio company, we monitor the investment closely, receiving financial statements on at least a quarterly
basis as well as annual audited financial statements. We analyze and discuss in detail the portfolio company’s financial performance with
management in addition to attending regular board meetings. We believe that our initial and ongoing portfolio review process will allow us
to identify and maintain superior risk adjusted return opportunities in our target portfolio companies.
Minimize Portfolio Concentration. While we intend to focus our investments in lower middle-market companies, we will seek to diversify
our portfolio across various industries, geographic sectors and financial sponsors. We will actively monitor our investment portfolio to
ensure we are not overly concentrated across industries, geographic sectors or private equity or other sponsors. By monitoring our
investment portfolio in this manner we will seek to reduce the effects of economic downturns associated with any particular industry sector
or geographic region.
5

Investment Guidelines for Evaluating Investment Opportunities
We use the following guidelines in evaluating investment opportunities and constructing our portfolio. However, not all of these guidelines
will be met in connection with each of our investments.
Experienced Management Teams With Meaningful Equity Ownership. We target portfolio companies that have management teams with
significant experience and/or relevant industry experience coupled with meaningful equity ownership. We believe management teams with
these attributes are more likely to manage the companies in a manner that protects our debt investment and enhances the value of our equity
investment.
Strong Competitive Position. We seek to invest in companies that have developed strong positions within their respective markets, are well
positioned to capitalize on growth opportunities. We also seek to invest in companies that we believe exhibit a sustainable competitive
advantage vis-a-vis their competitors, which may help to protect their market position and profitability.
Diversified Customer and Supplier Base. We prefer to invest in companies that have a diversified customer and supplier base. Companies
with a diversified customer and supplier base are generally better able to endure economic downturns, industry consolidation and shifting
customer preferences.
Significant Invested Capital. We believe the existence of significant underlying equity value provides important support to our
investments. We will seek to invest in portfolio companies that we believe have sufficient value beyond the layer of the capital structure in
which we invest.
Visible Exit Strategy. We intend to invest in companies that we believe will provide a steady stream of cash flow to repay our loans while
reinvesting in their respective businesses. In addition, we also seek to invest in companies whose business models and expected future cash
flows offer attractive exit possibilities for our equity investments. We seek to execute each investment with a visible and articulated exit
strategy determined by a variety of factors, including the company’s financial position, anticipated growth dynamics and the prevailing
mergers and acquisitions environment.
Monitoring
Portfolio Monitoring
The Advisor monitors our portfolio with a focus toward anticipating negative credit events. To maintain portfolio company performance
and help to ensure a successful exit, the Advisor works closely with, as applicable, the lead equity sponsor, loan syndicator, portfolio
company management, consultants, advisers and other security holders to discuss financial position, compliance with covenants, financial
requirements and execution of the portfolio company’s business plan. In addition, depending on the size, nature and performance of the
transaction, we may occupy a seat or serve as an observer on a portfolio company’s board of directors or similar governing body.
Typically, the Advisor receives financial reports detailing operating performance, sales volumes, margins, cash flows, financial position
and other key operating metrics on a quarterly basis from our portfolio companies. The Advisor uses this data, combined with due diligence
gained through contact with the company’s customers, suppliers, competitors, market research and other methods, to conduct an ongoing,
rigorous assessment of the portfolio company’s operating performance and prospects. The Advisor may rely on brokers or other financial
services firms that may help identify potential investments from time to time for assistance in monitoring these investments.
Portfolio Asset Quality
In addition to various risk management and monitoring tools, the Advisor uses an investment rating system to characterize and monitor the
expected level of returns on each investment in our portfolio. The Advisor uses an investment rating scale of 1 to 5. The following is a
description of the conditions associated with each investment rating:
Investment
Rating
1
2

Summary Description

3

Investment exceeding expectations and/or capital gain expected.
Performing investment generally executing in accordance with the portfolio company’s business plan—full return of
principal and interest expected.
Performing investment requiring closer monitoring.

4
5

Underperforming investment—some loss of interest or dividend possible, but still expecting a positive return on investment.
Underperforming investment with expected loss of interest and some principal.
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The Advisor monitors and, when appropriate, changes the investment ratings assigned to each investment in our portfolio. In connection
with valuing our assets, our board of directors reviews these investment ratings on a quarterly basis. In the event that our advisory team
determines that an investment is underperforming, or circumstances suggest that the risk associated with a particular investment has
significantly increased, the Advisor will attempt to sell the asset in the secondary market, if applicable, or to implement a plan to attempt to
exit the investment or to correct the situation.
The following table shows the distribution of our investments on the 1 to 5 investment rating scale at fair value as of December 31, 2015:
Investment Rating
1
2
3
4
5
Total

Fair Value
$

25,500,000
$ 25,500,000

Percentage
of Portfolio
100%
100%

The amount of the portfolio in each grading category may vary substantially from period to period resulting primarily from changes in the
composition of the portfolio as a result of new investment, repayment and exit activities. In addition, changes in the grade of investments
may be made to reflect our expectation of performance and changes in investment values.
Exit
While we attempt to invest in securities that may be sold in a privately negotiated over-the-counter market, providing us a means by which
we may exit our positions, we expect that a large portion of our portfolio may not be sold on this secondary market. For any investments
that are not able to be sold within this market, we focus primarily on investing in companies whose business models and growth prospects
offer attractive exit possibilities, including repayment of our investments, an initial public offering of equity securities, a merger, a sale or a
recapitalization, in each case with the potential for capital gains.
Investment Committee
Each investment opportunity requires the unanimous approval of our Advisor’s Investment Committee, which is currently comprised of
Keith W. Smith, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and Gavin E. Stewart, a Director of our Advisor. Our Advisor intends to hire
additional employees as our operations expand and may add personnel to its Investment Committee.
Competition
Our primary competitors to provide financing to lower middle-market companies include public and private funds, including other BDCs,
commercial and investment banks, commercial financing companies, and, to the extent they provide an alternative form of financing,
private equity funds. As the economic recovery continues, we expect that we may face enhanced competition in the future. Many of our
competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. For example,
some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding sources that are not available to us. In addition, some of our
competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments, which could allow them to consider a wider variety of
investments and establish more relationships than us. Furthermore, many of our competitors are not subject to the regulatory restrictions
that the 1940 Act imposes on us as a BDC and that the Code will impose on us as a RIC.
Fees and Expenses
We anticipate that all investment professionals and staff of our Advisor, when and to the extent engaged in providing us investment
advisory and management services, and the base compensation, bonus and benefits, and the routine overhead expenses, of such personnel
allocable to such services, will be provided and paid for by our Advisor.
We, either directly or through reimbursement to our Advisor, will bear all other costs and expenses of our operations, administration and
transactions, including, but not limited to, those relating to:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

organization expenses;
calculating our net asset value (including the cost and expenses of any independent valuation firms);
expenses, including travel expense, incurred by our Advisor, its investment professionals, or payable to third parties, performing due
diligence on prospective portfolio companies;
the costs of the offerings of common shares and other securities, if any;
the base management fee and any incentive fee;
certain costs and expenses relating to distributions paid on our shares;
administration reimbursements payable under our Administration Agreement;
debt service and other costs of borrowings or other financing arrangements;
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

the allocated costs incurred by our Advisor or the Administrator in providing managerial assistance to those portfolio companies that
request it;
amounts payable to third parties relating to, or associated with, making or holding investments;
transfer agent and custodial fees;
costs of hedging;
commissions and other compensation payable to brokers or dealers;
federal, state and local taxes;
Independent Director fees and expenses;
costs of preparing financial statements and maintaining books and records and filing reports or other documents with the SEC (or
other regulatory bodies) and other reporting and compliance costs, including registration and listing fees, and the compensation of
professionals responsible for the preparation of the foregoing;
the costs of any reports, proxy statements or other notices to our stockholders (including printing and mailing costs), the costs of any
stockholders’ meetings and the compensation of investor relations personnel responsible for the preparation of the foregoing and
related matters;
our fidelity bond;
directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance, and any other insurance premiums;
indemnification payments;
direct costs and expenses of administration, including audit and legal costs; and
all other expenses reasonably incurred by us in connection with making investments and administering our business.

From time to time, our Advisor may pay amounts owed by us to third-party providers of goods or services. We will subsequently
reimburse our Advisor for such amounts paid on our behalf. Other than with respect to our initial organization and operating costs, as
described above, there is no contractual cap on the reasonable costs and expenses for which our Advisor will be reimbursed. In addition, we
will reimburse the Administrator for the allocable portion of the compensation paid by the Administrator (or its affiliates) to our chief
compliance officer and chief financial officer and their respective staffs (based on the percentage of time such individuals devote, on an
estimated basis, to the business and affairs of the Company). All of these expenses will ultimately be borne by our stockholders.
Employees
We do not currently have any employees and do not expect to have any employees. Services necessary for our business will be provided by
individuals who are employees of our Advisor, the Administrator or their respective affiliates, pursuant to the terms of the Advisory
Agreement and the Administration Agreement. Except for Mr. Jacobson, our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and Ms. Hart, our
Chief Compliance Officer, both of whom have been contracted by our Advisor to provide services on our behalf, each of our executive
officers is employed by our Advisor or its affiliates. Our day-to-day investment operations will be managed by our Advisor. The services
necessary for the origination and administration of our investment portfolio will be provided by investment professionals employed by our
Advisor or its affiliates.
Regulation as a Public Business Development Company
We have elected to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act contains prohibitions and restrictions relating to transactions
between BDCs and their affiliates (including any investment advisers or sub-advisers), principal underwriters and affiliates of those
affiliates or underwriters. In addition, a BDC must be organized in the United States for the purpose of investing in or lending to primarily
private companies and making significant managerial assistance available to them. A BDC may use capital provided by public stockholders
and from other sources to make long-term, private investments in businesses.
As with other companies regulated by the 1940 Act, a BDC must adhere to certain substantive regulatory requirements. A majority of our
directors must be persons who are not “interested persons,” as that term is defined in the 1940 Act. Additionally, we are required to provide
and maintain a bond issued by a reputable fidelity insurance company to protect us against larceny and embezzlement. Furthermore, as a
BDC, we are prohibited from protecting any director or officer against any liability to us or our stockholders arising from willful
misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of such person’s office. As a BDC, we
are also required to meet a coverage ratio of the value of total assets to total senior securities, which include all of our borrowings and any
preferred stock we may issue in the future, of at least 200%. This means that for every $100 of net assets we have, we are able to borrow or
issue senior securities in the amount of $100.
We may not change the nature of our business so as to cease to be, or withdraw our election as, a BDC unless authorized by vote of a
majority of the outstanding voting securities, as required by the 1940 Act. A majority of the outstanding voting securities of a company is
defined under the 1940 Act as the lesser of: (a) 67% or more of such company’s voting securities present at a meeting if more than 50% of
the outstanding voting securities of such company are present or represented by proxy, or (b) more than 50% of the outstanding voting
securities of such company. We do not anticipate any substantial change in the nature of our business.
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We may invest up to 100% of our assets in securities acquired directly from, or loans originated directly to, issuers in privately-negotiated
transactions. We do not intend to acquire securities issued by any investment company that exceed the limits imposed by the 1940 Act.
Under these limits, except for registered money market funds, the Company generally cannot acquire more than 3% of the voting stock of
any investment company, invest more than 5% of the value of our total assets in the securities of one investment company or invest more
than 10% of the value of our total assets in the securities of investment companies in the aggregate. The portion of our portfolio invested in
securities issued by investment companies ordinarily will subject our stockholders to additional expenses. Our investment portfolio will be
subject to diversification requirements by virtue of our anticipated status as a RIC for U.S. tax purposes; the related requirements are set
forth below.
We are generally not able to issue and sell our common stock at a price below net asset value per share. We may, however, issue and sell
our common stock, or warrants, options or rights to acquire our common stock, at a price below the then current net asset value of our
common stock if our Board determines that such sale is in our best interests and the best interests of our stockholders, and our stockholders
have approved our policy and practice of making such sales within the preceding 12 months. In any such case, the price at which our
securities are to be issued and sold may not be less than a price that, in the determination of our Board, closely approximates the market
value of such securities. In addition, we may generally issue new shares of our common stock at a price below net asset value in rights
offerings to existing stockholders, in payment of dividends and in certain other limited circumstances.
We may also be prohibited under the 1940 Act from knowingly participating in certain transactions with our affiliates without the prior
approval of the members of our Board who are not interested persons and, in some cases, prior approval by the SEC through an exemptive
order (other than in certain limited situations pursuant to current regulatory guidance). We will be subject to periodic examination by the
SEC for compliance with the 1940 Act.
Qualifying Assets
Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any assets other than assets of the type listed in section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, which are
referred to as qualifying assets, unless, at the time the acquisition is made, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the company’s total
assets. The principal categories of qualifying assets relevant to our business are the following:
●

●
●

●
●
●

Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the issuer of such securities, which issuer (subject to
certain limited exceptions) is an eligible portfolio company, or from any person who is, or has been during the preceding 13 months,
an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio company, or from any other person, subject to such rules as may be prescribed by the
SEC. An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 1940 Act as any issuer which:
● is organized under the laws of, and has its principal place of business in, the United States;
● is not an investment company (other than a small business investment company wholly owned by the Company) or a company
that would be an investment company but for certain exclusions under the 1940 Act; and
● satisfies either of the following:
● has a market capitalization of less than $250 million or does not have any class of securities listed on a national securities
exchange; or
● is controlled by a BDC or a group of companies including a BDC, the BDC actually exercises a controlling influence over
the management or policies of the eligible portfolio company, and, as a result thereof, the BDC has an affiliated person
who is a director of the eligible portfolio company.
Securities of any eligible portfolio company that we control.
Securities purchased in a private transaction from a U.S. issuer that is not an investment company or from an affiliated person of the
issuer, or in transactions incident thereto, if the issuer is in bankruptcy and subject to reorganization or if the issuer, immediately
prior to the purchase of its securities was unable to meet its obligations as they came due without material assistance other than
conventional lending or financing arrangements.
Securities of an eligible portfolio company purchased from any person in a private transaction if there is no ready market for such
securities and we already own 60% of the outstanding equity of the eligible portfolio company.
Securities received in exchange for or distributed on or with respect to securities described above, or pursuant to the exercise of
warrants or rights relating to such securities.
Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government securities or high-quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of
investment.

Limitations on Leverage
As a BDC, we generally must have 200% asset coverage for our debt after incurring any new indebtedness, meaning that the total value of
our assets must be at least twice the amount of the debt (i.e., 50% leverage). However, we intend to use less than this amount of allowed
leverage.
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Managerial Assistance to Portfolio Companies
A BDC must be operated for the purpose of making investments in the types of securities described under “—Regulation as a Public
Business Development Company—Qualifying Assets,” above. However, in order to count portfolio securities as qualifying assets for the
purpose of the 70% test, the BDC must either control the issuer of the securities or must offer to make available to the issuer of the
securities significant managerial assistance; except that, where the BDC purchases such securities in conjunction with one or more other
persons acting together, the BDC will satisfy this test if one of the other persons in the group may make available such managerial
assistance. Making available managerial assistance means, among other things, any arrangement whereby the BDC, through its directors,
officers or employees, offers to provide, and, if accepted, does in fact provide, significant guidance and counsel concerning the
management, operations or business objectives and policies of a portfolio company.
Ongoing Relationships with Portfolio Companies; Valuation
Our Advisor monitors our portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. Our Advisor monitors the financial trends of each portfolio company
to determine if it is meeting its business plan and to assess the appropriate course of action for each company.
Our Advisor has several methods of evaluating and monitoring the performance and fair value of our investments, which may include, but
are not limited to, the following:
●
●
●
●
●

Assessment of success of the portfolio company in adhering to its business plan and compliance with covenants;
Periodic and regular contact with portfolio company management and, if appropriate, the financial or strategic sponsor, to discuss
financial position, requirements and accomplishments;
Comparisons to other companies in the industry;
Attendance at and participation in board meetings; and
Review of monthly and quarterly financial statements and financial projections for portfolio companies.

Temporary Investments
Pending investment in other types of “qualifying assets,” as described above, our investments may consist of cash, cash equivalents, U.S.
Government securities or high-quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment, which we refer to,
collectively, as temporary investments, such that at least 70% of our assets are qualifying assets. Our Advisor will monitor the
creditworthiness of the counterparties with which we enter into repurchase agreement transactions.
Senior Securities
We are permitted, under specified conditions, to issue multiple classes of indebtedness and one class of stock senior to our common stock if
our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is at least equal to 200% immediately after each such issuance. In addition, while any
preferred stock or publicly traded debt securities are outstanding, we may be prohibited from making distributions to our stockholders or
the repurchasing of such securities or shares unless we meet the applicable asset coverage ratios at the time of the distribution or
repurchase. We may also borrow amounts up to 5% of the value of our total assets for temporary or emergency purposes without regard to
asset coverage. For a discussion of the risks associated with leverage, “Item 1A. Risk Factors – Risks Relating to our Positions and
Structure – We may borrow money, which may magnify the potential for gain or loss and may increase the risk of investing in us.”
The 1940 Act imposes limitations on a BDC’s issuance of preferred shares, which are considered “senior securities” and thus are subject to
the 200% asset coverage requirement described above. In addition, (i) preferred shares must have the same voting rights as the common
stockholders (one share, one vote); and (ii) preferred stockholders must have the right, as a class, to appoint directors to the Board.
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Code of Ethics
We and our Advisor have adopted a joint code of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act and Rule 204A-1 under the Advisers
Act, respectively, that establishes joint procedures for personal investments and restricts certain transactions by our personnel. The code of
ethics generally does not permit investments by any future employees we may have or employees of our Advisor in securities that may be
purchased or held by us. The code of ethics has been filed as an exhibit to this annual report on Form 10-K. You may also review our code
of ethics at the SEC’s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at (202) 551-8090. You may also obtain copies of the codes of ethics, after paying a duplicating fee, by
electronic request at the following email address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street,
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.
Compliance Policies and Procedures
We and our Advisor have adopted and implemented written policies and procedures reasonably designed to detect and prevent violation of
the federal securities laws and will be required to review these compliance policies and procedures annually for their adequacy and the
effectiveness of their implementation and designate a chief compliance officer to be responsible for administering the policies and
procedures.
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposes a wide variety of regulatory requirements on certain publicly held companies and their insiders.
Assuming certain requirements are met, many of these requirements affect us. For example:
●
●
●

●

pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer would have to certify the
accuracy of the financial statements contained in our periodic reports;
pursuant to Item 307 of Regulation S-K, our periodic reports would have to disclose our conclusions about the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures;
pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act, subject to certain assumptions, our management will in the future be required to
prepare an annual report regarding its assessment of our internal control over financial reporting and (once we cease to be an
emerging growth company under the JOBS Act or, if later, for the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the
SEC), depending on our accelerated filer status, this report may be required to be audited by our independent registered public
accounting firm; and
pursuant to Item 308 of Regulation S-K and Rule 13a-15 of the 1934 Act, our periodic reports must disclose whether there were
significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls
subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require us to review our current policies and procedures to determine whether we comply with the SarbanesOxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder. We will continue to monitor our compliance with all regulations that are adopted
under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and will take actions necessary to ensure that we are in compliance therewith.
Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures
We have delegated our proxy voting responsibility to our Advisor. The Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures of our Advisor are set forth
below. The guidelines will be reviewed periodically by our Advisor and our Independent Directors, and, accordingly, are subject to change.
An investment adviser registered under the Advisers Act has a fiduciary duty to act solely in the best interests of its clients. As part of this
duty, our Advisor recognizes that it must vote client securities in a timely manner free of conflicts of interest and in the best interests of its
clients. These policies and procedures for voting proxies for our Advisor’s investment advisory clients are intended to comply with Section
206 of, and Rule 206(4)-6 under, the Advisers Act.
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Our Advisor will vote all proxies based upon the guiding principle of seeking the maximization of the ultimate long term economic value
of our stockholders’ holdings, and ultimately all votes are cast on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration the contractual obligations
under the relevant advisory agreements or comparable documents, and all other relevant facts and circumstances at the time of the vote. All
proxy voting decisions will require a mandatory conflicts of interest review by our Chief Compliance Officer in accordance with these
policies and procedures, which will include consideration of whether our Advisor or any investment professional or other person
recommending how to vote the proxy has an interest in how the proxy is voted that may present a conflict of interest. It is our Advisor’s
general policy to vote or give consent on all matters presented to security holders in any proxy, and these policies and procedures have been
designed with that in mind. However, our Advisor reserves the right to abstain on any particular vote or otherwise withhold its vote or
consent on any matter if, in the judgment of our Chief Compliance Officer or the relevant investment professional(s) employed by our
Advisor, the costs associated with voting such proxy outweigh the benefits to our stockholders or if the circumstances make such an
abstention or withholding otherwise advisable and in the best interest of the relevant stockholder(s).
Privacy Principles
We are committed to maintaining the confidentiality, integrity and security of nonpublic personal information relating to investors. The
following information is provided to help you understand what personal information we collect, how we protect that information and why,
in certain cases, we may share information with select other parties.
We may collect nonpublic personal information regarding investors from sources such as subscription agreements, investor questionnaires
and other forms; individual investors’ account histories; and correspondence between us and our investors. We may share information that
we collect regarding an investor with our affiliates and the employees of such affiliates for legitimate business purposes, for example, in
order to service the investor’s accounts or provide the investor with information about other products and services offered by us or our
affiliates that may be of interest to the investor. In addition, we may disclose information that we collect regarding investors to third parties
who are not affiliated with us (i) as authorized by our investors in investor subscription agreements or our organizational documents, (ii) as
required by law or in connection with regulatory or law enforcement inquiries, or (iii) as otherwise permitted by law to the extent necessary
to effect, administer or enforce investor or Company transactions.
Any party that receives nonpublic personal information relating to investors from us is permitted to use the information only for legitimate
business purposes or as otherwise required or permitted by applicable law or regulation. In this regard, for our officers, employees and
agents, access to such information is restricted to those who need such access in order to provide services to us and our investors. We
maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to seek to guard investor nonpublic personal information.
Reporting Obligations
We are a reporting company under the 1934 Act and are required to comply with all periodic reporting, proxy solicitation and other
applicable requirements under the 1934 Act.
We maintain a website at www.parkviewcapitalcredit.com through which we make all of our annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge. You may also obtain such information by contacting us, in writing
at: Parkview Capital Credit, Inc., Two Post Oak Center, 1980 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056, or by telephone at
(713) 622-5000. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information filed
electronically by us with the SEC which are available on the SEC’s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov. Copies of these reports, proxy and
information statements and other information may be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-mail
address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences
The following is a summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax considerations related to an investment in our stock. This summary
is based upon the provisions of the Code, as amended, the U.S. Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, published rulings of the
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) and judicial decisions in effect as of the date hereof, all of which are subject to change, possibly with
retroactive effect. The discussion does not purport to describe all of the U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to a
particular investor in light of that investor’s particular circumstances and is not directed to investors subject to special treatment under the
U.S. federal income tax laws, such as banks, dealers in securities, tax-exempt entities and insurance companies. In addition, this summary
does not discuss any aspect of state, local or non-U.S. tax law and assumes that investors will hold our stock as capital assets (generally,
assets held for investment).
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For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Holder” is a holder that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes: (a) an individual who is a citizen
or resident of the United States; (b) a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the
District of Columbia; (c) an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source or (d) a trust if a
court within the United States can exercise primary supervision over its administration and certain other conditions are met. A “Non-U.S.
Holder” is a holder who is not a U.S. Holder. For tax purposes, our fiscal year is the calendar year.
If a partnership (including an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds stock, the tax treatment of a partner
in the partnership will generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. A prospective investor that will
own stock through a partnership should consult its tax advisors with respect to the purchase, ownership and disposition of such stock.
Tax matters are complicated and prospective investors in our stock are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the U.S.
federal income tax and state, local and non-U.S. tax consequences of an investment in the Company, including the potential application
of U.S. withholding taxes.
Classification of the Company as Corporation for Tax Purposes.
We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland on November 25, 2014.
Regulated Investment Company Classification.
As a BDC, we intend to elect, and intend to qualify annually, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. As a RIC, we generally will not be
required to pay corporate-level federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains that we distribute to our stockholders as
dividends. To continue to qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and asset diversification
requirements (as described below). In addition, to qualify for RIC tax treatment, we must distribute to our stockholders, for each taxable
year, at least 90% of our “investment company taxable income” for that year, which is generally our ordinary income plus the excess of our
realized net short-term capital gains over our realized net long-term capital losses (the “Annual Distribution Requirement”).
Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company
If we:
●
●

qualify as a RIC; and
satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement;

then we will not be subject to federal income tax on the portion of our investment company taxable income and net capital gain (i.e.,
realized net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital losses) that we distribute to stockholders. We will be subject
to U.S. federal income tax at the regular corporate rates on any income or capital gain not distributed (or deemed distributed) to
stockholders.
We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible federal excise tax on certain undistributed income unless we distribute in a timely manner an
amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of our ordinary income for each calendar year, (2) 98.2% of our capital gain net income for the
one-year period ending October 31 in that calendar year and (3) any income realized, but not distributed, and on which we paid no federal
income tax, in preceding years.
In order to maintain our qualification as a RIC for federal income tax purposes, we must, among other things:
●
●

●

at all times during each taxable year, have in effect an election to be treated as a BDC under the 1940 Act;
derive in each taxable year at least 90% of our gross income from (a) dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain securities
(including loans), gains from the sale of stock or other securities or currencies, or other income derived with respect to our business
of investing in such stock, securities or currencies and (b) net income derived from an interest in a “qualified publicly traded
partnership;” and
diversify our holdings so that at the end of each quarter of the taxable year:
●
●

at least 50% of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, securities of other
RICs, and other securities if such other securities of any one issuer do not represent more than 5% of the value of our assets
or more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer; and
no more than 25% of the value of our assets is invested in (i) the securities, other than U.S. government securities or
securities of other RICs, of one issuer, (ii) the securities of two or more issuers that are controlled, as determined under
applicable tax rules, by us and that are engaged in the same or similar or related trades or businesses or (iii) the securities
of one or more “qualified publicly traded partnerships.”
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We may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which we do not receive cash. For example, if we hold debt
obligations that are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue discount (such as debt instruments with increasing interest
rates or debt instruments issued with warrants), we must include in income each year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues
over the life of the obligation, regardless of whether cash representing such income is received by us in the same taxable year. Because any
original issue discount accrued will be included in our investment company taxable income for the year of accrual, we may be required to
make a distribution to stockholders in order to satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement, even though we will not have received any
corresponding cash amount.
Because we may use debt financing, we will be subject to certain asset coverage ratio requirements under the 1940 Act and financial
covenants under loan and credit agreements that could, under certain circumstances, restrict us from making distributions necessary to
satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement. If we are unable to obtain cash from other sources or are otherwise limited in our ability to
make distributions, we could fail to qualify for RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax.
Certain of our investment practices may be subject to special and complex U.S. federal income tax provisions that may, among other
things: (i) disallow, suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions; (ii) convert lower taxed long-term capital gain
into higher taxed short-term capital gain or ordinary income; (iii) convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into a capital loss (the
deductibility of which is more limited); (iv) cause us to recognize income or gain without a corresponding receipt of cash; (v) adversely
affect the time as to when a purchase or sale of securities is deemed to occur; (vi) adversely alter the characterization of certain complex
financial transactions; and (vii) produce income that will not be qualifying income for purposes of the 90% gross income test described
above. We will monitor our transactions and may make certain tax elections in order to mitigate the potential adverse effect of these
provisions.
If, in any particular taxable year, we do not qualify as a RIC, all of our taxable income (including our net capital gains) will be subject to
tax at regular corporate rates without any deduction for distributions to stockholders, and distributions will be taxable to the stockholders as
ordinary dividends to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits. We did not qualify as a RIC in 2015 and 2014 and
were taxed as a C-Corp for 2014 and will be taxed as a C-Corp for 2015.
In the event we invest in non-U.S.securities, we may be subject to withholding and other non-U.S taxes with respect to those securities. We
do not expect to satisfy the conditions necessary to pass through to our stockholders their share of the non-U.S.taxes paid by the Company.
Taxation of U.S. Holders.
Distributions by us generally will be taxable to U.S. Holders as ordinary income or capital gains. Distributions of our investment company
taxable income will be taxable as ordinary income to U.S. Holders to the extent of our current or accumulated earnings and profits.
Distributions of our net capital gains (that is, the excess of our realized net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term
capital losses) properly reported by us as “capital gain dividends” will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as long-term capital gains, regardless of
the U.S. Holder’s holding period for its stock. Distributions of investment company taxable income that are reported by us as being derived
from “qualified dividend income” will be taxed in the hands of non-corporate U.S. Holders at the rates applicable to long-term capital gain,
provided that holding period and other requirements are met by both the U.S. Holders and us. Dividends distributed by us will generally
not be attributable to qualified dividend income. Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits first will
reduce a U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in such U.S. Holder’s stock and, after the adjusted basis is reduced to zero, will constitute capital
gains to such U.S. Holder. For a summary of the tax rates applicable to capital gains, including capital gain dividends, see the discussion
below.
Although we currently intend to distribute realized net capital gains (i.e., net realized long-term capital gains in excess of net realized shortterm capital losses), if any, at least annually, we may in the future decide to retain some or all of our net capital gains, and to designate the
retained amount as a “deemed distribution.” In that case, among other consequences, we will pay corporate-level tax on the retained
amount, each U.S. Holder will be required to include its share of the deemed distribution in income as if it had been actually distributed to
the U.S. Holder, and the U.S. Holder will be entitled to claim a credit or refund equal to its allocable share of the corporate-level tax we pay
on the retained capital gain.
The amount of the deemed distribution net of such tax will be added to the U.S. Holder’s cost basis for its stock. Since we expect to pay tax
on any retained capital gains at our regular corporate capital gain tax rate, and since that rate is in excess of the maximum rate currently
payable by non-corporate U.S. Holders on long-term capital gains, the amount of tax that non-corporate U.S. Holders will be treated as
having paid will exceed the tax they owe on the capital gain dividend. Such excess generally may be claimed as a credit or refund against
the U.S. Holder’s other U.S. federal income tax obligations. A U.S. Holder that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax or otherwise
required to file a U.S. federal income tax return would be required to file a U.S. federal income tax return on the appropriate form in order
to claim a refund for the taxes we paid. In order to utilize the deemed distribution approach, we must provide written notice to stockholders
prior to the expiration of 60 days after the close of the relevant tax year.
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For purposes of determining (i) whether the Annual Distribution Requirement is satisfied for any year and (ii) the amount of dividends paid
for that year, we may, under certain circumstances, elect to treat a dividend that is paid during the following taxable year as if it had been
paid during the taxable year in question. If we make such an election, a U.S. Holder generally will still be treated as receiving the dividend
in the taxable year in which the distribution is made. However, any dividend declared in October, November, or December of any calendar
year, payable to Holders of record on a specified date in such a month and actually paid during January of the following year, will be
treated as if it had been received by the U.S. Holders on December 31 of the year in which the dividend was declared.
You may recognize taxable gain or loss if you sell or exchange your stock (including a redemption of such stock or upon a liquidation of
the Company). The amount of the gain or loss will be measured by the difference between your adjusted tax basis in your stock and the
amount of the proceeds you receive in exchange for such stock. Any gain or loss arising from the sale or exchange of the stock (or, in the
case of distributions in excess of the sum of your current and accumulated earnings and profits and your tax basis in the stock, treated as
arising from the sale or exchange of your stock) generally will be a capital gain or loss if the stock are held as a capital asset. This capital
gain or loss normally will be treated as a long-term capital gain or loss if you have held your stock for more than one year. Otherwise, it
will be classified as short-term capital gain or loss. However, any capital loss arising from the sale or exchange of stock held for six months
or less generally will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of the amount of capital gain dividends received, or treated as
deemed distributed, with respect to such stock.
In general, individual U.S. Holders currently are subject to a maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 20% on their net capital gain, i.e.,
the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss for a taxable year, including a long-term capital gain derived from
an investment in the stock in the future. In addition, individuals with income in excess of $200,000 ($250,000 in the case of married
individuals filing jointly or $125,000 in the case of married individuals filing separately) and certain estates and trusts are subject to an
additional 3.8% tax on their “net investment income,” which generally includes net income from interest, dividends, annuities, royalties,
and rents, and net capital gains (other than certain amounts earned from trades or businesses). Corporate U.S. Holders currently are subject
to U.S. federal income tax on net capital gain at the maximum 35% rate also applied to ordinary income. Dividends distributed by us to
corporate U.S. Holders generally will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Tax rates imposed by states and local
jurisdictions on capital gain and ordinary income may differ.
We (or the applicable withholding agent) will send to each of the U.S. Holders, as promptly as possible after the end of each calendar year,
a report detailing the amounts includible in such U.S. Holder’s taxable income for such year as ordinary income, long-term capital gain and
“qualified dividend income,” if any. In addition, the U.S. federal tax status of each year’s distributions generally will be reported to the IRS.
Distributions may also be subject to additional state, local, and non-U.S taxes depending on a U.S. Holder’s particular situation.
Limitation on Deduction for Certain Expenses.
If our stock is not beneficially owned by at least 500 persons at all times during the taxable year, then a U.S. Holder that is an individual,
estate or trust may be subject to limitations on miscellaneous itemized deductions in respect of its share of expenses that we incur, to the
extent that the expenses would have been subject to these limitations if the holder had incurred them directly. We do not expect our stock to
be beneficially owned by 500 or more persons.
If we do not satisfy the 500-shareholder requirement, we would be required to report the relevant expenses, including the Management Fee
and Incentive Fee, on Form 1099-DIV, and affected holders will be required to take into account as income an amount equal to their
allocable share of such expenses and to take into account their allocable share of such expenses.
U.S. Taxation of Tax-Exempt U.S. Holders.
A U.S. Holder that is a tax-exempt organization for U.S. federal income tax purposes and therefore generally exempt from U.S. federal
income taxation may nevertheless be subject to taxation to the extent that it is considered to derive unrelated business taxable income
(“UBTI”). The direct conduct by a tax-exempt U.S. Holder of the activities we propose to conduct could give rise to UBTI. However, a
BDC is a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and its business activities generally will not be attributed to its stockholders for
purposes of determining their treatment under current law.
Therefore, a tax-exempt U.S. Holder should not be subject to U.S. taxation solely as a result of the holder’s ownership of our stock and
receipt of dividends with respect to such stock. Moreover, under current law, if we incur indebtedness, such indebtedness will not be
attributed to a tax-exempt U.S. Holder. Therefore, a tax-exempt U.S. Holder should not be treated as earning income from “debt-financed
property” and dividends we pay should not be treated as “unrelated debt-financed income” solely as a result of indebtedness that we incur.
Proposals periodically are made to change the treatment of “blocker” investment vehicles interposed between tax-exempt investors and
non-qualifying investments. In the event that any such proposals were to be adopted and applied to BDCs, the treatment of dividends
payable to tax-exempt investors could be adversely affected.
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Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders.
Whether an investment in the Company is appropriate for a Non-U.S. Holder will depend upon that person’s particular circumstances.
Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers before investing in the Company. Distributions of our “investment company taxable
income” to Non-U.S. Holders (including interest income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized long-term capital
losses, which generally would be free of federal withholding tax if paid to Non-U.S. Holders directly) will be subject to withholding of
federal tax at a 30% rate (or lower rate provided by an applicable treaty) to the extent such distributions do not exceed our current and
accumulated earnings and profits unless an applicable exception applies. If the distributions are effectively connected with a U.S. trade or
business of the Non-U.S. Holder (and, if a treaty applies, are attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment of the Non-U.S. Holder), we
will not be required to withhold U.S. federal tax if the Non-U.S. Holder complies with applicable certification and disclosure requirements,
although the distributions will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the rates applicable to U.S. persons. Special certification
requirements apply to a Non-U.S. Holder that is a non-U.S.partnership or a non-U.S.trust, and such entities are urged to consult their own
tax advisers.
If a Non-U.S. Holder provides proper documentation to us, we will not impose U.S.-source withholding taxes on our dividends paid to such
Non-U.S. Holder to the extent the dividends are reported as “Interest-related dividends” or “short-term capital gain dividends.” interestrelated dividends and short-term capital gain dividends generally represent distributions of interest or short-term capital gains that are not
subject to U.S. withholding tax at the source if they are received directly by a non-U.S.person, and that satisfy certain other requirements.
No assurance can be given as to whether any of our distributions will be reported as eligible for this exemption from withholding tax.
Actual or deemed distributions of our net capital gains to a Non-U.S. Holder, and gains realized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale or
redemption of its stock (including a redemption of such stock or upon a liquidation of the Company), will not be subject to U.S. federal
income tax unless the distributions or gains, as the case may be, are effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the Non-U.S.
Holder (and, if an income tax treaty applies, are attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United
States) or, in the case of an individual, the Non-U.S. Holder was present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year
and certain other conditions are met. If we distribute our net capital gains in the form of deemed rather than actual distributions, a Non-U.S.
Holder will be entitled to a U.S. federal income tax credit or tax refund equal to the allocable share of the corporate-level tax we pay on the
capital gains deemed to have been distributed; however, in order to obtain the refund, the Non-U.S. Holder must obtain a U.S. taxpayer
identification number and file a U.S. federal income tax return even if the Non-U.S. Holder would not otherwise be required to obtain a
U.S. taxpayer identification number or file a U.S. federal income tax return.
If any actual or deemed distributions of our net capital gains, or any gains realized upon the sale or redemption of our stock, are effectively
connected with a U.S. trade or business of the Non-U.S. Holder (and, if an income tax treaty applies, are attributable to a U.S. permanent
establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder), such amounts will be subject to U.S. income tax, on a net-income basis, in the same
manner, and at the graduated rates applicable to, a U.S. Holder. For a corporate Non-U.S. Holder, the after-tax amount of distributions (both
actual and deemed) and gains realized upon the sale or redemption of its stock that are effectively connected to a U.S. trade or business
(and, if a treaty applies, are attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment), may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional
“branch profits tax” at a 30% rate (or at a lower rate if provided for by an applicable treaty).
Under legislation commonly referred to as the “Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act,” a 30% withholding tax is imposed on payments of
certain types of income to non-U.S.financial institutions that fail to enter into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury to report certain required
information with respect to accounts held by U.S. persons (or held by non-U.S. entities that have U.S. persons as substantial owners). The
types of income subject to the tax include U.S. source interest and dividends paid after June 30, 2014 and the gross proceeds from the sale
of any property that could produce U.S.-source interest or dividends paid after December 31, 2016. The information required to be reported
includes the identity and taxpayer identification number of each account holder that is a U.S. person and transaction activity within the
holder’s account. In addition, subject to certain exceptions, a 30% withholding is also imposed on payments to non-U.S entities that are not
financial institutions unless the non-U.S.entity certifies that it does not have a greater than 10% U.S. owner or provides the withholding
agent with identifying information on each greater than 10% U.S. owner. When these provisions become effective, depending on the status
of a Non-U.S. Holder and the status of the intermediaries through which they hold their stock, Non-U.S. Holders could be subject to this
30% withholding tax with respect to distributions on their stock and proceeds from the sale of their stock. Under certain circumstances, a
Non-U.S. Holder might be eligible for refunds or credits of such taxes.
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Non-U.S. persons should consult their own tax advisers with respect to the U.S. federal income tax and withholding tax, and state, local
and non-U.S.tax consequences of an investment in the Company.
Backup Withholding and Information Reporting.
Backup withholding may apply to distributions on our stock with respect to certain non-exempt U.S. Holders. Such a U.S. Holder generally
will be subject to backup withholding unless the U.S. Holder provides its correct taxpayer identification number and certain other
information, certified under penalties of perjury, to the dividend paying agent, or otherwise establishes an exemption from backup
withholding. Any amount withheld under backup withholding is allowed as a credit against the U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax
liability, provided the proper information is provided to the IRS.
U.S. information reporting requirements and backup withholding tax will not apply to dividends paid on our stock to a Non-U.S. Holder,
provided the Non-U.S. Holder provides a Form W-8BEN or Form W-8BEN-E (or satisfies certain documentary evidence requirements for
establishing that it is a non-U.S. person) or otherwise establishes an exemption. Information reporting and backup withholding also
generally will not apply to a payment of the proceeds of a sale of our stock affected outside the United States by a non-U.S.office of a nonU.S.broker. However, information reporting requirements (but not backup withholding) will apply to a payment of the proceeds of a sale of
our stock effected outside the United States by a non-U.S. office of a broker if the broker (i) is a United States person, (ii) derives 50% or
more of its gross income for certain periods from the conduct of a trade or business in the United States, (iii) is a “controlled foreign
corporation” as to the United States, or (iv) is a non-U.S.partnership that, at any time during its taxable year is more than 50% (by income
or capital interest) owned by United States persons or is engaged in the conduct of a U.S. trade or business, unless in any such case the
broker has documentary evidence in its records that the holder is a non-U.S. Holder and certain conditions are met, or the holder otherwise
establishes an exemption. Payment by a United States office of a broker of the proceeds of a sale of our stock will be subject to both backup
withholding and information reporting unless the holder certifies its non-U.S.person status under penalties of perjury or otherwise
establishes an exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld from payments made to a stockholder may
be refunded or credited against such stockholder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, provided that the required information is
furnished to the IRS.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
An investment in our securities involves certain risks relating to our structure and investment objective. The risks set forth below are not
the only risks we face, and we may face other risks that we have not yet identified, which we do not currently deem material or which are
not yet predictable. If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected. In such case, our net asset value and the price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your
investment.
Risks Relating to Our Business and Structure
We are a newly-formed company with limited operating history.
We were formed in November 2014. As a result, we have limited financial information on which you can evaluate an investment in our
company or our prior performance. We are subject to all of the business risks and uncertainties associated with any new business, including
the risk that we will not achieve our investment objective and that the value of your investment could decline substantially or your
investment could become worthless. In addition, in order to comply with BDC and RIC requirements, we may invest in temporary
investments, such as cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities and other high-quality debt investments that mature in one year or
less, which we expect will earn yields substantially lower than the interest, dividend or other income that we anticipate receiving in respect
of suitable portfolio investments. We may not be able to pay any significant distributions during this period, and any such distributions may
be substantially lower than the distributions we expect to pay when our portfolio is fully invested.
Our shares will not be listed on a national securities exchange for the foreseeable future, if ever. Therefore, our shares have limited
liquidity and you may not receive a full return of your invested capital if you sell your shares.
Our shares are illiquid assets for which there is not expected to be any secondary market in the foreseeable future. We currently have no
target date in which to list our shares on a national securities exchange. There can be no assurance that even if we sought a listing that we
would be able to obtain a listing within any particular time frame.
If our shares are listed, we cannot assure you a public trading market will develop. Since a portion of the proceeds we receive from the sale
of shares in our private offering will be used to pay expenses and fees incurred by us, the full amount of proceeds received will not be used
to acquire investments pursuant to our investment objective. As a result, even if we do list our shares on a national securities exchange, you
may not receive a full return of your invested capital if you sell your shares.
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We will be dependent upon management personnel of our Advisor for our future success.
We depend on the experience, diligence, skill and network of business contacts of our Advisor and its investment professionals. The
investment professionals that our Advisor currently retains or may subsequently retain, will identify, evaluate, negotiate, structure, close,
monitor and manage our investments. Our future success will depend to a significant extent on the continued service and coordination of
our Advisor’s investment professionals. The departure of any of our Advisor’s key personnel, including Mr. Smith, our President and Chief
Executive Officer, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, we cannot
assure you that our Advisor will remain our investment adviser or that we will continue to have access to its investment professionals.
Our Advisor has limited prior experience managing a BDC.
The investment professionals of our Advisor have limited experience managing a BDC, and the investment philosophy and techniques used
by our Advisor to manage a public company may differ from the investment philosophy and techniques previously employed by our
Advisor’s investment professionals in identifying and managing past investments. Accordingly, we can offer no assurance that we will
replicate the historical performance of other businesses or companies with which our Advisor’s investment professionals have been
affiliated, and we caution you that our investment returns could be substantially lower than the returns achieved by such other companies.
Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to, and the way in which, we raise additional capital.
The 1940 Act imposes numerous constraints on the operations of BDCs. See “Item 1.Business—Regulation as a Public Business
Development Company” for a discussion of BDC limitations. For example, BDCs are required to invest at least 70% of their total assets in
securities of nonpublic or thinly traded U.S. companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities and other high quality debt
investments that mature in one year or less. These constraints may hinder our Advisor’s ability to take advantage of attractive investment
opportunities and to achieve our investment objective.
Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affect our ability to raise additional capital, and the ways in which we can do so. Raising
additional capital may expose us to risks, including the typical risks associated with leverage, and may result in dilution to our current
stockholders. The 1940 Act limits our ability to issue debt and preferred stock (“senior securities”) to amounts such that our asset coverage
ratio is at least 200% of assets less liabilities and other indebtedness. Consequently, if the value of our assets declines, we may be required
to sell a portion of our investments and, depending on the nature of our leverage, repay a portion of our indebtedness at a time when this
may be disadvantageous.
We are not generally able to issue and sell our common stock at a price below net asset value per share. We may, however, sell our
common stock, or warrants, options or rights to acquire our common stock, at a price below the then-current net asset value per share of our
common stock if our Board determines that a sale is in the best interests of us and our stockholders and our stockholders approve it.
We may borrow money, which may magnify the potential for gain or loss and may increase the risk of investing in us.
As part of our business strategy, we may borrow from and issue senior debt securities to banks, insurance companies, and other lenders.
Holders of these senior securities will have fixed-dollar claims on our assets that are superior to the claims of our common stockholders. If
the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause our net asset value to decline more sharply than it otherwise would have had we
not leveraged. Similarly, any decrease in our income would cause net income to decline more sharply than it would have had we not
borrowed. Such a decline could negatively affect our ability to make distribution payments. Our ability to service any debt that we incur
will depend largely on our financial performance and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and competitive pressures.
Moreover, the Management Fee we pay to our Advisor is payable based on our gross assets, including those assets acquired through the use
of leverage.
Furthermore, any debt facility into which we may enter may impose financial and operating covenants that restrict our business activities.
Lastly, we may be unable to obtain our desired leverage, which would, in turn, affect our return on capital.
If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could fail to qualify as a BDC or be precluded from
investing according to our current business strategy.
As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” unless, at the time of and after giving effect to such acquisition, at
least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets.
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If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could violate the 1940 Act provisions applicable to BDCs. As a
result of such violation, specific rules under the 1940 Act could prevent us, for example, from making follow-on investments in existing
portfolio companies (which could result in the dilution of our position) or could require us to dispose of investments at inappropriate times
in order to come into compliance with the 1940 Act. If we need to dispose of such investments quickly, it could be difficult to dispose of
such investments on favorable terms. We may not be able to find a buyer for such investments and, even if we do find a buyer, we may have
to sell the investments at a substantial loss. Any such outcomes would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows. In addition, we may be precluded from investing in what we believe to be attractive investments if such
investments are not qualifying assets for purposes of the 1940 Act if we do not have at least 70% of our total assets in qualifying assets.
If we do not maintain our status as a BDC, we would be subject to regulation as a registered closed-end investment company under the
1940 Act. As a registered closed-end investment company, we would be subject to substantially more regulatory restrictions under the 1940
Act which would significantly decrease our operating flexibility.
As a BDC, we are a non-diversified investment company within the meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore, we are limited with respect
to the proportion of our assets that may be invested in securities of a single issuer.
We are classified as a non-diversified investment company within the meaning of the 1940 Act, which means that we are limited by the
1940 Act with respect to the proportion of our assets that we may invest in the securities of a single issuer. To the extent that we assume
large positions in the securities of a small number of issuers, our net asset value may fluctuate to a greater extent than that of a diversified
investment company as a result of changes in the financial condition or the market's assessment of the issuer. We may also be more
susceptible to any single economic or regulatory occurrence than a diversified investment company. Beyond our income tax diversification
requirements under Subchapter M of the Code, we will not have fixed guidelines for diversification, and our investments could be
concentrated in relatively few portfolio companies.
We operate in a highly competitive market for investment opportunities.
Other entities, including commercial banks, commercial financing companies, other BDCs and insurance companies compete with us to
make the types of investments that we plan to make in lower middle-market companies. Certain of these competitors may be substantially
larger, have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we have and offer a wider array of financial services.
For example, some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding sources that are not available to us. Many
competitors are not subject to the regulatory restrictions that the 1940 Act imposes on us as a BDC or the restrictions that the Code imposes
on us as a RIC.
We may be obligated to pay our Advisor incentive compensation even if we incur a net loss due to a decline in the value of our portfolio.
Our Advisory Agreement entitles our Advisor to receive an incentive fee based on our net investment income regardless of any capital
losses. In such case, we may be required to pay our Advisor an incentive fee for a fiscal quarter even if there is a decline in the value of our
portfolio or if we incur a net loss for that quarter.
Any incentive fee payable by us that relates to our net investment income may be computed and paid on income that may include interest
that has been accrued but not yet received. If a portfolio company defaults on a loan that is structured to provide accrued interest, it is
possible that accrued interest previously included in the calculation of the incentive fee will become uncollectible. Our Advisor is not
obligated to reimburse us for any part of the incentive fee it received that was based on accrued income that we never received as a result
of a subsequent default, and such circumstances would result in our paying an incentive fee on income we never receive.
For federal income tax purposes, we are required to recognize taxable income in some circumstances in which we do not receive a
corresponding payment in cash (such as deferred interest that is accrued as original issue discount) and to make distributions with respect to
such income to qualify as a RIC after we achieve such status. Under such circumstances, we may have difficulty meeting the annual
distribution requirement necessary to obtain and maintain RIC tax treatment under the Code. This difficulty in making the required
distribution may be amplified to the extent that we are required to pay an incentive fee with respect to such accrued income. As a result, we
may have to sell some of our investments at times and/or at prices we would not consider advantageous, raise additional debt or equity
capital, or forgo new investment opportunities for this purpose. If we are not able to obtain cash from other sources, we may fail to qualify
for RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax.
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We will be subject to corporate-level income tax if we are unable to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.
We will incur corporate-level income tax costs if we are unable to qualify as a RIC for U.S. tax purposes or if we are not able to distribute
all of our income in a timely fashion. To obtain and maintain RIC tax treatment under the Code, we must meet the following annual
distribution, income source and asset diversification requirements:
●

●
●

We must distribute to our stockholders on an annual basis at least 90% of our net ordinary income and realized net short-term
capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, if any. In the event we use debt financing, we will be subject to
certain asset coverage ratio requirements under the 1940 Act and financial covenants under loan and credit agreements that could,
under certain circumstances, restrict us from making distributions necessary to satisfy the distribution requirement. In addition, our
income for tax purposes may exceed our available cash flow. If we are unable to obtain cash from other sources, we could fail to
qualify for RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax.
We must derive at least 90% of our gross income for each year from dividends, interest, gains from the sale of stock or securities or
similar sources.
We must meet specified asset diversification requirements at the end of each quarter of our taxable year. The need to satisfy these
requirements in order to prevent the loss of RIC status may result in our having to dispose of certain investments quickly on
unfavorable terms. Because most of our investments will be relatively illiquid, any such dispositions could be made at
disadvantageous prices and could result in substantial losses.

If we fail to qualify for RIC tax treatment for any reason, the resulting federal income tax liability could substantially reduce our net assets,
the amount of income available for distribution, and the amount of our distributions.
There is a risk that you may not receive distributions or that our distributions may not grow over time.
We cannot assure you that we will achieve investment results or maintain a tax status that will allow or require any specified level of cash
distributions or year-to-year increases in cash distributions. Although a portion of our expected earnings and distributions will be
attributable to net investment income, we do not expect to generate capital gains from the sale of our portfolio investments on a level or
uniform basis from quarter to quarter. This may result in substantial fluctuations in our quarterly dividend payments.
In certain cases, we may recognize income before or without receiving cash representing the income. Depending on the amount of noncash income, this could result in difficulty satisfying the annual distribution requirement applicable to RICs. Accordingly, we may delay
distributions during a year until we generate cash or we may have to sell some of our investments at times we would not consider
advantageous, raise additional debt or equity capital or reduce new investments to meet these distribution requirements.
We may not generate significant, if any, capital gains during our initial years of operation and thus we are likely to pay distributions in those
years principally from interest we receive from our initial and follow-on investments prior to the sale or refinancing of loans we make.
Moreover, our ability to pay distributions in our initial years of operation will be based on our ability to invest our capital in suitable
portfolio companies in a timely manner.
In addition, the lower middle-market companies in which we invest are generally more susceptible to economic downturns than larger
operating companies, and therefore may be more likely to default on their payment obligations to us during recessionary periods. Any such
defaults could substantially reduce our net investment income available for distribution to our stockholders.
As of the date hereof, we are controlled by GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP, a private fund managed by our former Chairman,
Laurence O. Gray.
As of the date hereof, GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP, a private fund managed by Gray & Company, a registered investment adviser
founded by our former Chairman, Laurence O. Gray, owns approximately 65.8% of our issued and outstanding common stock. In addition,
a second investor, District 1199J New Jersey Healthcare Employers Pension Fund, owns approximately 34.2% of our issued and
outstanding common stock. While we are engaged in a private offering of shares and anticipate accepting subscriptions from additional
investors, there can be no assurances that additional subscriptions will be received and accepted. Unless and until we raise significantly
more capital in our private offering, GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP will maintain a controlling interest in our operations and District
1199J New Jersey Healthcare Employers Pension Fund will have the ability to influence our operations.
You may be subject to filing requirements under the 1934 Act as a result of your investment in the Company.
Because our common stock is registered under the 1934 Act, ownership information for any person who beneficially owns 5% or more of
our common stock will have to be disclosed in a Schedule 13G or other filings with the SEC. Beneficial ownership for these purposes is
determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and includes having voting or investment power over the securities. In some
circumstances, investors who choose to reinvest their dividends may see their percentage stake in us increase to more than 5%, thus
triggering this filing requirement. Although we will provide in our quarterly statements the amount of outstanding stock and the amount of
the investor’s stock, the responsibility for determining the filing obligation and preparing the filing remains with the investor.
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You may be subject to the short-swing profits rules under the 1934 Act as a result of your investment in the Company.
Persons with the right to appoint a director or who hold more than 10% of a class of our shares may be subject to Section 16(b) of the 1934
Act, which recaptures for the benefit of the Company profits from the purchase and sale of registered stock within a six-month period.
Potential conflicts of interest could impact our investment returns.
Stockholders should note the matters incorporated by reference in “ Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions , and Director
Independence” in the information statement.
Our Board may change our investment objective, operating policies and strategies without prior notice or stockholder approval.
Our Board has the authority to modify or waive certain of our operating policies and strategies without prior notice (except as required by
the 1940 Act) and without stockholder approval. However, absent stockholder approval, we may not change the nature of our business so
as to cease to be, or withdraw our election as, a BDC. We cannot predict the effect any changes to our current operating policies and
strategies would have on our business, operating results and value of our stock. Nevertheless, the effects may adversely affect our business
and impact our ability to make distributions.
Changes in laws or regulations governing our operations may adversely affect our business.
Changes to the laws and regulations governing our operations may cause us to alter our investment strategy in order to avail ourselves of
new or different opportunities. These changes could result in material differences to the strategies and plans described herein and may result
in our investment focus shifting.
The impact on us of recent financial reform legislation, including the Dodd-Frank Act, is uncertain.
In light of recent conditions in the U.S. and global financial markets and the U.S. and global economy, legislators, the presidential
administration and regulators have increased their focus on the regulation of the financial services industry. In particular, the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as amended, or the Dodd-Frank Act, institutes a wide range of reforms that will have an
impact on all financial institutions. Many of the requirements called for in the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented over time, most of
which will be subject to implementing regulations over the course of several years. Given the uncertainty associated with the manner in
which the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented by the various regulatory agencies and through regulations, the full
impact such requirements will have on our business, results of operations or financial condition is unclear. The changes resulting from the
Dodd-Frank Act may require us to invest significant management attention and resources to evaluate and make necessary changes in order
to comply with new statutory and regulatory requirements. Failure to comply with any such laws, regulations or principles, or changes
thereto, may negatively impact our business, results of operations and financial condition. While we cannot predict what effect any changes
in the laws or regulations or their interpretations would have on us as a result of recent financial reform legislation, these changes could be
materially adverse to us and our stockholders.
Future legislation may allow us to incur additional leverage.
As a BDC, we are generally not permitted to incur indebtedness unless immediately after such borrowing we have an asset coverage for
total borrowings of at least 200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not exceed 50% of the value of our assets). Legislation was previously
introduced in the U.S. House of Representatives that proposed a modification of this section of the 1940 Act to permit an increase in the
amount of debt that BDCs could incur by modifying the percentage from 200% to 150%. Similar legislation may be reintroduced and may
pass that permits us to incur additional leverage under the 1940 Act. As a result, we may be able to incur additional indebtedness in the
future, and, therefore, the risk of an investment in us may increase.
Future legislation or rules could modify how we treat derivatives and other financial arrangements for purposes of our compliance
with the leverage limitations of the 1940 Act.
Future legislation or rules may modify how we treat derivatives and other financial arrangements for purposes of our compliance with the
leverage limitations of the 1940 Act. For example, the SEC proposed a new rule in December 2015 that is designed to enhance the
regulation of the use of derivatives by registered investment companies and business development companies. The proposed rule, if
adopted, or any future legislation or rules, may modify how leverage is calculated under the 1940 Act and, therefore, may increase or
decrease the amount of leverage currently available to us under the 1940 Act, which may be materially adverse to us and our stockholders.
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We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly results.
We could experience fluctuations in our quarterly operating results due to a number of factors, including our ability or inability to make
investments in companies that meet our investment criteria, the interest rate payable on the debt securities we acquire, the level of our
expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degree to which we encounter
competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any previous period should not be
relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods.
Our Advisor can resign on 60 days’ notice. We may not be able to find a suitable replacement within that timeframe, resulting in a
disruption in our operations that could adversely affect our financial condition, business and results of operations.
Our Advisor has the right, under the Advisory Agreement, to resign at any time upon not less than 60 days’ written notice, regardless of
whether we have found a replacement. If our Advisor resigns, we may not be able to find a new investment adviser or hire internal
management with similar expertise and ability to provide the same or equivalent services on acceptable terms within 60 days, or at all. If
we are unable to do so quickly, our operations are likely to experience a disruption, our financial condition, business and results of
operations as well as our ability to pay distributions are likely to be adversely affected.
The advisory fee structure we have with our Advisor may create incentives that are not fully aligned with the interests of our
stockholders.
We have entered into the Advisory Agreement with our Advisor that provides that Management Fees are based on the value of our gross
assets. As a result, investors in our common stock will invest on a “gross” basis and receive distributions on a “net” basis after expenses,
resulting in a lower rate of return than one might achieve through direct investments. Because Management Fees are based on the value of
our gross assets, our Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. This fee structure may encourage our Advisor to cause us to
borrow money to finance additional investments. Under certain circumstances, the use of borrowed money may increase the likelihood of
default, which would disfavor our stockholders.
Our incentive fee may induce our Advisor to make speculative investments.
Our Advisor will receive an incentive fee based, in part, upon net realized gains on our investments. Unlike the portion of the incentive fee
based on income, there is no hurdle rate applicable to the portion of the incentive fee based on net realized gains. Additionally, under the
incentive fee structure, our Advisor may benefit when capital gains are recognized and, because our Advisor will determine when to sell a
holding, our Advisor will control the timing of the recognition of such capital gains. As a result, our Advisor may have a tendency to invest
more capital in investments that are likely to result in capital gains as compared to income producing securities. Such a practice could result
in our investing in more speculative securities than would otherwise be the case, which could result in higher investment losses,
particularly during economic downturns.
To the extent that we do not realize income or choose not to retain after-tax realized capital gains, we will have a greater need for
additional capital to fund our investments and operating expenses.
As a RIC, we must annually distribute at least 90% of our investment company taxable income as a dividend and may either distribute or
retain our realized net capital gains from investments. Earnings that we are required to distribute to stockholders will generally not be
available to fund future investments. Accordingly, we may have insufficient funds to make new and follow-on investments, which could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
The Advisory Agreement was not negotiated on an arm’s length basis and may not be as favorable to us as if it had been negotiated with
an unaffiliated third party.
The Advisory Agreement was negotiated between related parties. Consequently, its terms, including fees payable to our Advisor, may not
be as favorable to us as if they had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party. In addition, we may choose not to enforce, or to enforce
less vigorously, our rights and remedies under this agreement because of our desire to maintain our ongoing relationship with our Advisor.
Any such decision, however, would breach our fiduciary obligations to our stockholders.
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We will be subject to corporate-level income tax if we are unable to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code or to satisfy RIC
distribution requirements.
In order for us to qualify for and maintain RIC tax treatment under Subchapter M of the Code, we must meet the following annual
distribution, income source and asset diversification requirements.
● The Annual Distribution Requirement for RIC tax treatment will be satisfied if we distribute to our stockholders, for each tax year,
dividends of an amount at least equal to the sum of 90% of our investment company taxable income, which is generally the sum of
our ordinary net income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, without regard to
any deduction for dividends paid. Because we may use debt financing, we are subject to an asset coverage ratio requirement under
the 1940 Act and may in the future become subject to certain financial covenants under loan and credit agreements that could, under
certain circumstances, restrict us from making distributions necessary to satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement. If we are
unable to obtain cash from other sources, we could fail to qualify for RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level
income tax.
● The 90% Income Test will be satisfied if we obtain at least 90% of our gross income for each tax year from dividends, interest,
gains from the sale of securities or similar sources.
● The Diversification Tests requirement will be satisfied if we meet certain asset diversification requirements at the end of each
quarter of our tax year. To satisfy these requirements, at least 50% of the value of our assets must consist of cash, cash equivalents,
U.S. government securities, securities of other RICs, and other securities if such securities of any one issuer do not represent more
than 5% of the value of our assets or more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer; and no more than 25% of
the value of our assets can be invested in the securities, other than U.S. government securities or securities of other RICs, of one
issuer, of two or more issuers that are controlled, as determined under applicable Code rules, by us and that are engaged in the same
or similar or related trades or businesses or of certain “qualified publicly-traded partnerships.” Failure to meet these requirements
may result in our having to dispose of certain investments quickly in order to prevent the loss of RIC status. Because most of our
investments will be in private companies, and therefore will be relatively illiquid, any such dispositions could be made at
disadvantageous prices and could result in substantial losses.
Once we qualify as a RIC, we will be required to satisfy these tests on an ongoing basis in order to maintain RIC tax treatment, and may be
required to make distributions to stockholders at times when it would be more advantageous to invest cash in our existing or other
investments, or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution. Compliance with the RIC tax requirements may hinder our
ability to operate solely on the basis of maximizing profits and the value of our stockholders’ investments. If we fail to qualify for or
maintain RIC tax treatment for any reason and are subject to corporate income tax, the resulting corporate taxes could substantially reduce
our net assets, the amount of income available for distribution and the amount of our distributions.
We may have difficulty paying our required distributions if we recognize income before or without receiving cash representing such
income.
For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which we do not receive a
corresponding payment in cash. For example, if we hold debt instruments that are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue
discount (such as debt instruments with PIK interest or, in certain cases, increasing interest rates or debt instruments that were issued with
warrants), we must include in income each tax year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation,
regardless of whether cash representing such income is received by us in the same tax year. We may also have to include in income other
amounts that we have not yet received in cash, such as deferred loan origination fees that are paid after origination of the loan or are paid
in non-cash compensation such as warrants or stock. We anticipate that a portion of our income may constitute original issue discount or
other income required to be included in taxable income prior to receipt of cash. Further, we may elect to amortize market discount and
include such amounts in our taxable income in the current tax year, instead of upon disposition, as an election not to do so would limit our
ability to deduct interest expenses for tax purposes.
Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued will be included in our investment company taxable income for the tax year
of the accrual, we may be required to make a distribution to our stockholders in order to satisfy the annual distribution requirement, even
though we will not have received any corresponding cash amount. As a result, we may have difficulty meeting the annual distribution
requirement necessary to qualify for and maintain RIC tax treatment under Subchapter M of the Code. We may have to sell some of our
investments at times and/or at prices we would not consider advantageous, raise additional debt or equity capital or forgo new investment
opportunities for this purpose. If we are not able to obtain cash from other sources, we may fail to qualify for or maintain RIC tax treatment
and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax.
Furthermore, we may invest in the equity securities of non-U.S. corporations (or other non-U.S. entities classified as corporations for U.S.
federal income tax purposes) that could be treated under the Code and U.S. Treasury regulations as “passive foreign investment
companies” and/or “controlled foreign corporations.” The rules relating to investment in these types of non-U.S. entities are designed to
ensure that U.S. taxpayers are either, in effect, taxed currently (or on an accelerated basis with respect to corporate level events) or taxed at
increased tax rates at distribution or disposition. In certain circumstances, these rules also could require us to recognize taxable income or
gains where we do not receive a corresponding payment in cash.
Legislative or regulatory tax changes could adversely affect investors.
At any time, the federal income tax laws governing RICs or the administrative interpretations of those laws or regulations may be amended.
Any of those new laws, regulations or interpretations may take effect retroactively and could adversely affect the taxation of us or our
stockholders. Therefore, changes in tax laws, regulations or administrative interpretations or any amendments thereto could diminish the
value of an investment in our shares or the value or the resale potential of our investments.
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Risks Related to Our Portfolio Company Investments
Our target investments are risky and highly speculative, and the lower middle-market companies we target may have difficulty
accessing the capital markets to meet their future capital needs, which may limit their ability to grow or to repay their outstanding
indebtedness upon maturity.
Investing in lower middle-market companies involves a number of significant risks, including:
●
●
●
●
●

these companies may have limited financial resources and may be unable to meet their obligations under their debt securities that we
hold, which may be accompanied by a deterioration in the value of any collateral and a reduction in the likelihood of us realizing any
guarantees we may have obtained in connection with our investment;
they typically have shorter operating histories, narrower product lines and smaller market shares than larger businesses, which tend
to render them more vulnerable to competitors’ actions and market conditions, as well as general economic downturns;
they are more likely to depend on the management talents and efforts of a small group of persons; therefore, the death, disability,
resignation or termination of one or more of these persons could have a material adverse impact on our portfolio company and, in
turn, on us;
they generally have less predictable operating results, may from time to time be parties to litigation, may be engaged in rapidly
changing businesses with products subject to a substantial risk of obsolescence, and may require substantial additional capital to
support their operations, finance expansion or maintain their competitive position; and
they may have difficulty accessing the capital markets to meet future capital needs, which may limit their ability to grow or to repay
their outstanding indebtedness upon maturity.

To the extent OID and PIK constitute a portion of our income, we will be exposed to typical risks associated with such income being
required to be included in taxable and accounting income prior to receipt of cash representing such income.
Our investments may include OID instruments and PIK arrangements. To the extent OID or PIK constitute a portion of our income, we will
be exposed to typical risks associated with such income being required to be included in taxable and accounting income prior to receipt of
cash, including the following:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

OID instruments and PIK securities may have unreliable valuations because the accretion of OID as interest income and the
continuing accruals of PIK securities require judgments about their collectability and the collectability of deferred payments and the
value of any associated collateral.
OID instruments may create heightened credit risks because the inducement to the borrower to accept higher interest rates in
exchange for the deferral of cash payments typically represents, to some extent, speculation on the part of the borrower.
For accounting purposes, cash distributions to shareholders that include a component of accreted OID income do not come from
paid-in capital, although they may be paid from the offering proceeds. Thus, although a distribution of accreted OID income may
come from the cash invested by stockholders, the 1940 Act does not require that shareholders be given notice of this fact.
Higher interest and dividend rates on PIK securities reflects the payment deferral and increased credit risk associated with such
instruments and PIK securities generally represent a significantly higher credit risk than coupon loans.
The presence of accreted OID income and PIK income would create the risk of non-refundable cash payments to the Advisor in the
form of incentive fees on income based on non-cash accreted OID income and PIK income accruals that may never be realized.
Even if accounting conditions are met, borrowers on such securities could still default when our actual collection is expected to
occur at the maturity of the obligation.
PIK has the effect of generating investment income and increasing the incentive fees payable at a compounding rate. In addition, the
deferral of PIK also reduces the loan-to-value ratio at a compounding rate.

Investing in lower middle-market companies involves a high degree of risk and our financial results may be affected adversely if one or
more of our significant portfolio investments defaults on its loans or fails to perform as we expect.
We expect our portfolio to consist primarily of debt and equity investments in lower middle-market companies. Investing in lower middlemarket companies involves a number of significant risks. Typically, the debt in which we invest will not be initially rated by any rating
agency; however, we believe that if such investments were rated, they would be below investment grade. Compared to larger publicly
owned companies, these lower middle-market companies may be in a weaker financial position and experience wider variations in their
operating results, which may make them more vulnerable to economic downturns and other business disruptions. Typically, these
companies need more capital to compete; however, their access to capital is limited and their cost of capital is often higher than that of their
competitors. Our portfolio companies will likely face intense competition from larger companies with greater financial, technical and
marketing resources and their success will largely depend on the managerial talents and efforts of an individual or a small group of persons.
Therefore, the loss of any of their key employees could affect a portfolio company’s ability to compete effectively and harm its financial
condition. Further, we expect that some of our portfolio companies will conduct business in regulated industries that are susceptible to
regulatory changes. These factors could impair the cash flow of our portfolio companies and result in other events, such as bankruptcy.
These events could limit a portfolio company’s ability to repay its obligations to us, which may have an adverse effect on the return on, or
the recovery of, our investment in these businesses. Deterioration in a borrower’s financial condition and prospects may be accompanied by
deterioration in the value of the loan’s collateral and the fair market value of the loan.
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Finally, we expect that some of our portfolio companies will be unable to obtain financing from public capital markets or from traditional
credit sources, such as commercial banks. Accordingly, loans made to these types of companies pose a higher default risk than loans made
to companies that have access to traditional credit sources.
A portion of our debt securities may be rated below investment grade, or of comparative quality, and may be considered speculative.
Our investments are likely to be in lower grade obligations. The lower grade investments in which we invest may be rated below investment
grade by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating agencies at the time of investment or may be unrated but determined by our
Advisor to be of comparable quality. Loans or debt securities rated below investment grade are considered speculative with respect to the
issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal.
If we make subordinated investments, the obligors or the portfolio companies may not generate sufficient cash flow to service their debt
obligations to us.
We may make subordinated investments that rank below other obligations of the obligor in right of payment. Subordinated investments are
subject to greater risk of default than senior obligations as a result of adverse changes in the financial condition of the obligor or economic
conditions in general. If we make a subordinated investment in a portfolio company, the portfolio company may be highly leveraged, and
its relatively high debt-to-equity ratio may create increased risks that its operations might not generate sufficient cash flow to service all of
its debt obligations.
The value of our portfolio securities may not have a readily available market price and, in such a case, we will value these securities at
fair value as determined in good faith by our Board, which valuation is inherently subjective and may not reflect what we may actually
realize for the sale of the investment.
Our investments will be valued at the end of each fiscal quarter. Substantially all of our investments are expected to be in loans that do not
have readily ascertainable market prices. The fair value of assets that are not publicly traded or whose market prices are not readily
available will be determined in good faith by our Advisor and reviewed by the audit committee of our Board. The Board may retain an
independent valuation provider to assist it by performing certain limited third-party valuation services. In connection with that
determination, investment professionals from our Advisor will prepare portfolio company valuations using sources and/or proprietary
models depending on the availability of information on our assets and the type of asset being valued, all in accordance with our valuation
policy. The participation of our Advisor in our valuation process could result in a conflict of interest, since the Management Fee is based in
part on our gross assets.
Because fair valuations, and particularly fair valuations of private securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, may fluctuate
over short periods of time and are often based to a large extent on estimates, comparisons and qualitative evaluations of private information,
our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been determined if a ready market for these
securities existed. This could make it more difficult for investors to value accurately our portfolio investments and could lead to
undervaluation or overvaluation of our common shares. In addition, the valuation of these types of securities may result in substantial
write-downs and earnings volatility.
Our portfolio securities may be thinly traded and, as a result, the lack of liquidity in our investments may adversely affect our business.
We will generally make loans to private companies. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell positions if the
need arises. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the
value at which we had previously recorded such investments. In addition, we may face other restrictions on our ability to liquidate an
investment in a portfolio company to the extent that we hold a significant portion of a company’s equity or if we have material non-public
information regarding that company.
Our portfolio may be focused in a limited number of portfolio companies, which will subject us to a risk of significant loss if any of
these companies defaults on its obligations under any of its debt instruments or if there is a downturn in a particular industry.
Until we raise significant amounts of capital, our portfolio may be concentrated in a limited number of portfolio companies and industries.
Beyond the asset diversification requirements associated with our qualification as a RIC for U.S. tax purposes, we do not have fixed
guidelines for diversification, and while we are not targeting any specific industries, our investments may be concentrated in relatively few
industries. As a result, the aggregate returns we realize may be significantly adversely affected if a small number of investments perform
poorly or if we need to write down the value of any one investment. Additionally, a downturn in any particular industry in which we are
invested could significantly affect our aggregate returns.
25

Our stockholders will not have input into the investment decisions made by our Advisor’s Investment Committee.
As of the date hereof, we have not fully deployed the proceeds received to date in our private offering in portfolio companies pursuant to
our investment objective. Our investments will be selected by our Advisor’s investment professionals, subject to the approval of its
Investment Committee, and our stockholders will not have input into our investment decisions. These factors will increase the uncertainty,
and possibly also the risk, of investing in our common stock as compared with an established portfolio and operating history. Depending on
the size of a subscription received in our private offering, we anticipate that it may take three to six months to deploy substantially all of
such proceeds in accordance with our investment objective and pursuant to our investment strategies. Pending these investments, we intend
to temporarily invest the net proceeds from our private offering in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, repurchase
agreements and high quality debt instruments maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. We expect these temporary
investments to earn yields substantially lower than the income we expect to receive from our targeted investments in lower middle-market
companies.
Because we likely will not hold controlling interests in our portfolio companies, we may not be in a position to exercise control over such
portfolio companies or to prevent decisions by management of such portfolio companies that could decrease the value of our
investments.
We are a lender, and loans (and any equity investments we make) to our portfolio companies will be non-controlling investments, meaning
we will not be in a position to control the management, operation and strategic decision-making of the companies we invest in. As a result,
we will be subject to the risk that a portfolio company we do not control, or in which we do not have a majority ownership position, may
make business decisions with which we disagree, and the equity holders and management of such portfolio company may take risks or
otherwise act in ways that are adverse to our interests. Due to the lack of liquidity for the debt and equity investments that we will typically
hold in our portfolio companies, we may not be able to dispose of our investments in the event that we disagree with the actions of a
portfolio company, and may therefore suffer a decrease in the value of our investments.
We will be exposed to risks associated with changes in interest rates.
Certain of our debt investments will be based on floating rates, such as LIBOR, EURIBOR, the Federal Funds Rate or the Prime Rate.
General interest rate fluctuations may have a substantial negative impact on our investments, the value of our common stock and our rate of
return on invested capital. A reduction in the interest rates on new investments relative to interest rates on current investments could also
have an adverse impact on our net interest income. An increase in interest rates could decrease the value of any investments we hold which
earn fixed interest rates, including subordinated loans, senior and junior secured and unsecured debt securities and loans and high yield
bonds, and also could increase our interest expense, thereby decreasing our net income. Also, an increase in interest rates available to
investors could make investment in our common stock less attractive if we are not able to increase our dividend rate, which could reduce
the value of our common stock.
By originating loans to companies that are experiencing significant financial or business difficulties, we may be exposed to distressed
lending risks.
As part of our lending activities, we may originate loans to companies that are experiencing significant financial or business difficulties,
including companies involved in bankruptcy or other reorganization and liquidation proceedings. Although the terms of such financing may
result in significant financial returns to us, they involve a substantial degree of risk. The level of analytical sophistication, both financial
and legal, necessary for successful financing to companies experiencing significant business and financial difficulties is unusually high.
There is no assurance that we will correctly evaluate the value of the assets collateralizing our loans or the prospects for a successful
reorganization or similar action. In any reorganization or liquidation proceeding relating to a company that we fund, we may lose all or part
of the amounts advanced to the borrower or may be required to accept collateral with a value less than the amount of the loan advanced by
us to the borrower.
Cybersecurity risks and cyber incidents may adversely affect our business by causing a disruption to our operations, a compromise or
corruption of our confidential information, and/or damage to our business relationships, all of which could negatively impact our
financial results.
A cyber incident is considered to be any adverse event that threatens the confidentiality, integrity or availability of our information
resources. These incidents may be an intentional attack or an unintentional event and could involve gaining unauthorized access to our
information systems for purposes of misappropriating assets, stealing confidential information, corrupting data or causing operational
disruption. The result of these incidents may include disrupted operations, misstated or unreliable financial data, liability for stolen assets
or information, increased cybersecurity protection and insurance costs, litigation and damage to our relationships with portfolio companies.
As our reliance on technology has increased, so have the risks posed to our information systems, both internal and those we have
outsourced. There is no guarantee that any processes, procedures and internal controls we have implemented or will implement will
prevent cyber intrusions which could have a negative impact on our financial results, operations, business relationships or confidential
information.
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We are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act, and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements
applicable to emerging growth companies will make our common stock less attractive to investors.
We are and we will remain an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act until the earlier of (a) the last day of the fiscal year
(i) in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least $1.0 billion, or (ii) in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer, which
means the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the prior June 30 th, and (b) the date
on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the prior three-year period. For so long as we remain an
“emerging growth company” we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other
public companies that are not “emerging growth companies” including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor
attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less
attractive because we will rely on some or all of these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there
may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.
Our status as an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act may make it more difficult to raise capital as and when we need it.
Because of the exemptions from various reporting requirements provided to us as an “emerging growth company,” we may be less
attractive to investors and it may be difficult for us to raise additional capital as and when we need it. Investors may be unable to compare
our business with other companies in our industry if they believe that our financial accounting is not as transparent as other companies in
our industry. If we are unable to raise additional capital as and when we need it, our financial condition and results of operations may be
materially and adversely affected.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
We maintain our principal executive offices at Two Post Oak Center, 1980 Post Oak Boulevard, 15 th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056. We do
not own any real estate or other physical properties materially important to our operations. We believe that our present facilities are
adequate to meet our current needs. If new or additional space is required, we believe that adequate facilities are available at competitive
prices in the same area.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against
us. From time to time, we may be a party to certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business, including proceedings relating to
the enforcement of our rights under loans to or other contracts with our portfolio companies. While the outcome of these legal proceedings
cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not expect that these proceedings will have a material effect upon our financial condition or
results of operations.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
There is currently no public market for our common stock, nor can we give any assurance that one will develop. As of the date hereof, none
of our shares of common stock are subject to outstanding options or warrants, nor do we have any outstanding equity that is convertible into
shares of our common stock. In addition, as of the date hereof, none of our shares of common stock are eligible to be sold pursuant to Rule
144 of the Securities Act, and we have not granted any registration rights to any of our stockholders. No stock has been authorized for
issuance under any equity compensation plans.
Holders
Set forth below is a chart describing the classes of our securities outstanding as of March 28, 2016:
(1)

(2)

Amount
Authorized
50,000,000

Title of Class
Common Stock

(3)
Amount
Held by Us or
for Our Account
—

(4)
Amount
Outstanding
Exclusive of
Amount Under
Column (3)
3,800,010

As of March 28, 2016, we had 3 record holders of our common stock.
Distributions
We generally intend to distribute, out of assets legally available for distribution, substantially all of our available earnings, on a quarterly
basis, as determined by our Board in its discretion. For the year ended December 31, 2015, no distributions were paid to our stockholders.
Valuation of Portfolio Securities
We will determine the net asset value per share of our common stock quarterly. The net asset value per share is equal to the value of our
total assets minus liabilities and any preferred stock outstanding divided by the total number of shares of common stock outstanding. At
present, we do not have any preferred stock outstanding.
Our investments will be valued at the end of each fiscal quarter. Substantially all of our investments are expected to be in loans that do not
have readily ascertainable market prices. The fair value of assets that are not publicly traded or whose market prices are not readily
available will be determined in good faith by our Advisor and reviewed by the audit committee of our Board. In connection with that
determination, investment professionals from our Advisor will prepare portfolio company valuations using sources and/or proprietary
models depending on the availability of information on our assets and the type of asset being valued, all in accordance with our valuation
policy. The Board may retain an independent valuation provider to assist it by performing certain limited third-party valuation services.
The participation of our Advisor in our valuation process could result in a conflict of interest, since the Management Fee is based in part on
our gross assets.
Because fair valuations, and particularly fair valuations of private securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, may fluctuate
over short periods of time and are often based to a large extent on estimates, comparisons and qualitative evaluations of private information,
our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been determined if a ready market for these
securities existed. This could make it more difficult for investors to value accurately our portfolio investments and could lead to
undervaluation or overvaluation of our common shares. In addition, the valuation of these types of securities may result in substantial
write-downs and earnings volatility.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
On March 31, 2015, the Company accepted a subscription agreement from GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP for a capital contribution of
$25 million. Of the $25 million subscription, $20 million was received on April 24, 2015, $3.5 million was received on August 11, 2015,
and the remaining $1.5 million was received on October 5, 2015. On April 24, 2015, a total of 2,000,000 shares of common stock were
issued in exchange for the $20 million contribution, an additional 350,000 shares of common stock were issued on August 11, 2015 in
exchange for the $3.5 million contribution and an additional 150,000 shares of common stock were issued on October 5, 2015 in exchange
for the $1.5 million contribution.
On December 2, 2015, we accepted a subscription agreement from District 1199J New Jersey Healthcare Employers Pension Fund for a
capital contribution of $13 million where we issued a total of 1,300,000 shares of common stock. We received $7 million and $6 million on
December 29 and December 31, 2015, respectively, for which we issued 700,000 and 600,000 shares of common stock, respectively, at a
purchase price per share of $10.00.
The sales of shares were exempt from registration pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Such
sales did not involve any public offering, were made without general solicitation or advertising and the purchasers were provided access to
all relevant information necessary to evaluate the investment and represented to the Company that the shares were being acquired for
investment purposes.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Forward Looking Statements
This report contains forward looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. These forward looking statements are not
historical facts, but rather are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about us, our prospective portfolio investments, our
industry, our beliefs, and our assumptions. Words such as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,”
“would,” “should,” “targets,” “projects,” and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward looking
statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and other factors, some of
which are beyond our control and are difficult to predict, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or
forecasted in the forward looking statements including, without limitation:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

An economic downturn could impair our portfolio companies’ ability to continue to operate, which could lead to the loss of some or
all of our investments in such portfolio companies;
a contraction of available credit could impair our lending and investment activities;
interest rate volatility could adversely affect our results, particularly if we elect to use leverage as part of our investment strategy;
our future operating results;
our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;
the ability of our portfolio companies to achieve their objectives;
competition with other entities for investment opportunities;
the speculative and illiquid nature of our investments;
the use of borrowed money to finance a portion of our investments;
the adequacy of our financing sources and working capital;
the costs associated with being a public entity;
the loss of key personnel;
the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operations of our portfolio companies;
the ability of our Advisor to locate suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;
our ability to attract and retain highly talented professionals that can provide services to our Advisor and Administrator;
our ability to qualify and maintain our qualification as a regulated investment company, or “RIC,” under Subchapter M of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the “Code,” and as a BDC; and
the effect of legal, tax and regulatory changes.

Although we believe that the assumptions on which these forward looking statements are based are reasonable, some of those assumptions
are based on the work of third parties and any of those assumptions could prove to be inaccurate; as a result, the forward looking statements
based on those assumptions also could prove to be inaccurate. In light of these and other uncertainties, the inclusion of a projection or
forward looking statement in this report should not be regarded as a representation by us that our plans and objectives will be achieved.
You should not place undue reliance on these forward looking statements, which apply only as of the date of this report. We do not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward looking statements or any other information contained herein, except as required
by applicable law. The safe harbor provisions of Section 21E of the 1934 Act, which preclude civil liability for certain forward looking
statements are no longer applicable to us since we elected to be regulated as a business development company under the Investment
Company Act of 1940.
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Overview
We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland on November 25, 2014. We filed an election to be regulated as a business
development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, or the 1940 Act, and intend to elect to be treated as a regulated
investment company, or RIC, for federal income tax purposes. As such, we are required to comply with various regulatory requirements,
such as the requirement to invest at least 70% of our assets in “qualifying assets,” source of income limitations, asset diversification
requirements, and the requirement to distribute annually at least 90% of our taxable income and tax-exempt interest.
All amounts presented are in thousands, except share and per share data.
Revenues
We generate revenues in the form of interest income from the debt securities we hold and dividends and capital appreciation on either direct
equity investments or equity interests obtained in connection with originating loans, such as options, warrants or conversion rights. We
expect most of the debt securities we will hold will be floating rate in nature. The debt we invest in will typically not be rated by any rating
agency, but if it were, it is likely that such debt would be below investment grade. We intend to structure our debt investments with interest
payable quarterly, semi-annually or annually, but we may structure certain investments with terms to provide for longer interest payment
periods or to allow interest to be paid by adding amounts due to the principal balance of the loan, resulting in deferred cash receipts. In
addition, we may also generate revenue in the form of commitment, loan origination, structuring or diligence fees, fees for providing
managerial assistance to our portfolio companies, and possibly consulting fees. Certain of these fees may be capitalized and amortized as
additional interest income over the life of the related loan.
Expenses
We anticipate that all investment professionals and staff of our Advisor, when and to the extent engaged in providing us investment
advisory and management services, and the base compensation, bonus and benefits, and the routine overhead expenses, of such personnel
allocable to such services, will be provided and paid for by our Advisor.
We bear all other costs and expenses of our operations, administration and transactions, including, but not limited to, those relating to:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

organization expenses;
calculating our net asset value (including the cost and expenses of any independent valuation firms);
expenses, including travel expense, incurred by our Advisor, its investment professionals, or payable to third parties, performing due
diligence on prospective portfolio companies;
the costs of the offerings of common shares and other securities, if any;
the base management fee and any incentive fee;
certain costs and expenses relating to distributions paid on our shares;
administration reimbursements payable under our Administration Agreement;
debt service and other costs of borrowings or other financing arrangements;
the allocated costs incurred by our Advisor or the Administrator in providing managerial assistance to those portfolio companies that
request it;
amounts payable to third parties relating to, or associated with, making or holding investments;
transfer agent and custodial fees;
costs of hedging;
commissions and other compensation payable to brokers or dealers;
federal, state and local taxes;
Independent Director fees and expenses;
costs of preparing financial statements and maintaining books and records and filing reports or other documents with the SEC (or
other regulatory bodies) and other reporting and compliance costs, including registration and listing fees, and the compensation of
professionals responsible for the preparation of the foregoing;
the costs of any reports, proxy statements or other notices to our stockholders (including printing and mailing costs), the costs of any
stockholders’ meetings and the compensation of investor relations personnel responsible for the preparation of the foregoing and
related matters;
our fidelity bond;
directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance, and any other insurance premiums;
indemnification payments;
direct costs and expenses of administration, including audit and legal costs; and
all other expenses reasonably incurred by us in connection with making investments and administering our business.
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From time to time, our Advisor may pay amounts owed by us to third-party providers of goods or services. We will subsequently
reimburse our Advisor for such amounts paid on our behalf. Other than with respect to our initial organization and operating costs, as
described above, there is no contractual cap on the reasonable costs and expenses for which our Advisor will be reimbursed. In addition, we
will reimburse the Advisor for the allocable portion of the compensation paid by the Advisor (or its affiliates) to our chief compliance
officer and chief financial officer (based on the percentage of time such individuals devote, on an estimated basis, to the business and
affairs of the Company). All of these expenses will ultimately be borne by our stockholders.
Portfolio and Investment Activity
We commenced operations on April 24, 2015 and made our first investment on April 30, 2015. The fair value of our investments was
approximately $25,500 in 8 portfolio companies as of December 31, 2015. Our investment activity for the year ended December 31, 2015
is as follows (information presented herein is at amortized cost unless otherwise indicated):
Cost of investments purchased
Paid-in-kind interest
Paydowns of investments
Sale of investments
Net amortization of premium on investments
Realized loss on sold/repaid investments
Amortized cost of investments as of December 31, 2015

$

$

26,863
2
(159)
(939)
(3)
(18)
25,746

The following table summarizes the composition of our portfolio at amortized cost and fair value as of December 31, 2015:
Amortized
Cost(a)
$
12,378
11,498
1,870
$
25,746

Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Equity Investments
Total

Percentage
of Portfolio
Fair Value
48% $
12,218
45%
11,413
7%
1,870
100% $
25,500

Percentage
of Portfolio
48%
45%
7%
100%

(a) Amortized cost represents the original cost adjusted for the amortization of premiums and/or accretion of discounts, as applicable, on
investments.
As of December 31, 2015, the investments in our portfolio were purchased at a weighted average price of 100.1% of par value, and the
weighted average yields, based on the amortized cost and fair value of our portfolio as of December 31, 2015, were 10.3% and 10.3%,
respectively.
Direct Origination
We intend to leverage our Advisor’s industry relationships to directly source investment opportunities. Such investments are originated or
structured for us or made by us and are not generally available to the broader market. These investments may include both debt and equity
components. We believe directly originated investments may offer higher returns and more favorable protections than broadly syndicated
transactions. The following tables present certain selected information regarding our direct originations for the year ended December 31,
2015:
December
31,
2015
$
13,370
2
(37)
13,335

New Direct Originations
Total commitments (including unfunded commitments)
Paid-in-kind interest
Investment paydowns
Net direct origination
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Commitment
Amount
$
6,500
5,000
1,870
13,370

New Direct Origination by Asset Class
Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Equity Investments

Average new direct origination commitment amount
Weighted average maturity for new direct originations
Gross portfolio yield (based on amortized cost) of new direct originations funded during period

Percentage
49%
37%
14%
100%
$

Characteristics of All Direct Originations held in Portfolio
Number of portfolio companies
Average annual EBITDA of portfolio companies
Average leverage through tranche of portfolio companies - excluding equity/other and collateralized securities
Gross portfolio yield (based on amortized cost) of funded direct originations

3,343
2.09 years
12.3%
December
31,
2015

$

4
46,450
4.01x
12.3%

Portfolio Composition by Strategy and Industry
Although our primary focus is to invest in directly originated transactions, in certain circumstances we will also invest in the broadly
syndicated loan and high yield markets. Broadly syndicated loans and bonds are generally more liquid than our directly originated
investments and provide a complement to our less liquid strategies.
The table below summarizes the composition of our investment portfolio by strategy and enumerates the percentage, by fair value, of the
total portfolio assets in such strategies as of December 31, 2015:
Portfolio Composition by Strategy
Direct origination
Broadly syndicated

Fair Value
13,335
12,165
25,500

Percentage
of Portfolio
52%
48%
100%

The table below describes investments by industry classification and enumerates the percentage, by fair value, of the total portfolio assets in
such strategies as of December 31, 2015:
Fair Value
$
3,328
3,502
3,000
2,894
4,455
1,488
1,870
4,963
$
25,500

Market Analytics
Staffing
Financial Services
Tobacco
Heavy Construction
Home Furnishings
Real Estate
Transportation

Percentage
of Portfolio
13%
14%
12%
11%
18%
6%
7%
19%
100%

Portfolio Asset Quality
In addition to various risk management and monitoring tools, the Advisor uses an investment rating system to characterize and monitor the
expected level of returns on each investment in our portfolio. The Advisor uses an investment rating scale of 1 to 5. The following is a
description of the conditions associated with each investment rating:
Investment
Rating
1
2
3
4
5

Summary Description
Investment exceeding expectations and/or capital gain expected.
Performing investment generally executing in accordance with the portfolio company’s business plan—full return of
principal and interest expected. Each investment is initially rated 2.
Performing investment requiring closer monitoring.
Underperforming investment—some loss of interest or dividend possible, but still expecting a positive return on investment.
Underperforming investment with expected loss of interest and some principal.
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The following table shows the distribution of our investments on the 1 to 5 investment rating scale at fair value as of December 31, 2015:
Investment Rating
1
2
3
4
5
Total

Fair Value
$

$

25,500
25,500

Percentage
of Portfolio
100%
100%

The amount of the portfolio in each grading category may vary substantially from period to period resulting primarily from changes in the
composition of the portfolio as a result of new investment, repayment and exit activities. In addition, changes in the grade of investments
may be made to reflect our expectation of performance and changes in investment values.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Refer to “Part II. Financial Information, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data-Note B” of the Notes to the Financial
Statements for a description of recent accounting pronouncements.
Results of Operations
We commenced our principal operations on April 24, 2015, commensurate with the raising of $20,000 through a sale of 2,000,000 shares
of common stock. Prior to April 24, 2015, we solely incurred expenses associated with organizational activities. Since we commenced
principal operations on April 24, 2015, we have no prior periods with which to compare our operating results.
Year Ended December 31, 2015
Investment Income
For the year ended December 31, 2015, total investment income totaled $863, of which $833 was attributable to portfolio interest earned on
senior secured loans (first and second lien), $20 was attributable to dividend income earned and $10 was attributable to amortization of loan
origination fees received.
Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses were $1,118 for the year ended December 31, 2015, and consisted of base management fees of $307, professional
fees of $471, other general and administrative fees of $277 and organizational costs incurred before commencing principal operations of
$63. We did not incur any incentive fees for the year ended December 31, 2015. We incurred organizational costs of $67 for the period
from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014. Our operating expenses were 5.99% of our average net assets for the
year ended December 31, 2015. As we continue to execute our strategy, we expect our operating expenses as a percentage of our average
net assets to decrease.
Professional fees include legal, audit, compliance, valuation, technology and other professional fees incurred related to the management of
the Company. Other general and administrative expenses include custody, printer fees, research, subscriptions and other costs.
Net Investment Loss
Our net investment loss totaled $255, which is equal to ($0.11) per share calculated using weighted average shares outstanding from
commencement of operations on April 24, 2015 through December 31, 2015.
Net Unrealized Depreciation on Investments
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investments reflects the net change in the fair value of our investment portfolio. For the year
ended December 31, 2015, we had net unrealized depreciation of $246 on our portfolio investments.
Changes in Net Assets from Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2015, we recorded a net decrease in net assets resulting from operations of $519, which is equal to
($0.23) per share calculated using weighted average shares outstanding from commencement of operations on April 24, 2015 through
December 31, 2015.
Hedging
We may, but are not required to, enter into interest rate, foreign exchange or other derivative agreements to hedge interest rate, currency,
credit or other risks, but we do not generally intend to enter into any such derivative agreements for speculative purposes. Such hedging
activities, which will be in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, may include the use of futures, options and
forward contracts. We will bear the costs incurred in connection with entering into, administering and settling any such derivative contracts.
There can be no assurance any hedging strategy we employ will be successful.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2015, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $12,358. We raise capital through a private offering of our
shares in order to acquire a portfolio of debt and equity investments consistent with our investment objective and the investment strategy.
We generate cash flows from fees, interest and dividends earned from our investments as well as principal repayments and proceeds from
sales of our investments.
During 2015, a total of 3,800,000 shares of common stock were issued in exchange for a $38,000 contributed by two investors.
Prior to deploying the capital we raise in our private offering of shares, we intend to invest in cash equivalents, U.S. government securities,
repurchase agreements and high quality debt instruments maturing in one year or less from the time of investment, consistent with our BDC
election and our intent to be taxed as a RIC.
We may borrow funds to make investments, to the extent we determine that additional capital would allow us to take advantage of
additional investment opportunities, if the market for debt financing presents attractively priced debt financing opportunities, or if our board
of directors determines that leveraging our portfolio would be in our best interests.
Critical Accounting Policies
Our financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP), which requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Critical accounting policies are those
that require the application of management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often because of the need to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and that may change in subsequent periods. In preparing the financial statements,
management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. In preparing the financial statements,
management has utilized available information, including our past history, industry standards and the current economic environment,
among other factors, in forming its estimates and judgments, giving due consideration to materiality. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. In addition, other companies may utilize different estimates, which may impact the comparability of our results of operations to
those of companies in similar businesses. As our expected operating plans occur we will describe additional critical accounting policies in
the notes to our future financial statements in addition to those discussed below:
Revenue Recognition
Interest income, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, is recorded on an accrual basis. Discounts or premiums
are accreted or amortized, respectively, using the effective interest method as interest income. Dividend income, if any, is recognized on an
accrual basis to the extent that we expect to collect such amount.
We may have loans in our portfolio that contain payment in kind (“PIK”) provisions. PIK represents interest that is accrued and recorded as
interest income at the contractual rates, increases the loan principal on the respective capitalization dates, and is generally due at maturity.
Realized gains or losses on investments are measured by the difference between the net proceeds from the disposition and the amortized
cost basis of investment, without regard to unrealized gains or losses previously recognized. We report changes in fair value of investments
that are measured at fair value as a component of the net change in unrealized depreciation on investments in the statements of operations.
Valuation of Portfolio Securities
We determine the net asset value per share of our common stock quarterly. The net asset value per share equals the value of our total assets
minus liabilities and any preferred stock outstanding divided by the total number of shares of common stock outstanding. Our investments
are valued at the end of each fiscal quarter.
Substantially all of our investments are expected to be in loans that do not have readily ascertainable market prices. Investments for which
market quotations are readily available are valued at such market quotations, which are generally obtained from an independent pricing
service or multiple broker dealers or market makers. In order to assist our Board in determining the fair value of assets that are not publicly
traded or whose market prices are not readily available, the Advisor will provide the Board with portfolio company valuations, which are
based on relevant inputs, which may include but are not limited to, indicative dealer quotes, values of like securities, recent portfolio
company financial statements and forecasts, and valuations prepared by third party valuation services. The Board may retain an
independent valuation provider to assist it by performing certain limited third party valuation services. In connection with the valuation
determination, investment professionals from the Advisor will prepare portfolio company valuations using sources and/or proprietary
models depending on the availability of information on our assets and the type of asset being valued, all in accordance with our valuation
policy.
Valuation of fixed income investments, such as loans and debt securities, depends upon a number of factors, including prevailing interest
rates for like securities, expected volatility in future interest rates, call features, put features and other relevant terms of the debt. For
investments without readily available market prices, we may incorporate these factors into discounted cash flow models to arrive at fair
value. Other factors that may be considered include the borrower’s ability to adequately service its debt, the fair market value of the
borrower in relation to the face amount of its outstanding debt and the quality of collateral securing our debt investments.
Our equity interests in portfolio companies for which there is no liquid public market are valued at fair value. Our Board, in its
determination of fair value, may consider various factors, such as multiples of EBITDA, cash flows, net income, revenues or, in limited
instances, book value or liquidation value. All of these factors may be subject to adjustments based upon the particular circumstances of a
portfolio company or our actual investment position. For example, adjustments to EBITDA may take into account compensation to
previous owners or acquisition, recapitalization, restructuring or other related items.
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Our Advisor’s management team, any approved independent third-party valuation services and our Board may also consider private merger
and acquisition statistics, public trading multiples discounted for illiquidity and other factors, valuations implied by third-party investments
in the portfolio companies or industry practices in determining fair value. Parkview Advisor’s management team, any approved
independent third-party valuation services and our Board may also consider the size and scope of a portfolio company and its specific
strengths and weaknesses, and may apply discounts or premiums, where and as appropriate, due to the higher (or lower) financial risk
and/or the smaller size of portfolio companies relative to comparable firms, as well as such other factors as our Board, in consultation with
Parkview Advisor’s management team and any approved independent third-party valuation services, if applicable, may consider relevant in
assessing fair value. Generally, the value of our equity interests in public companies for which market quotations are readily available will
be based upon the most recent closing public market price. Portfolio securities that carry certain restrictions on sale are typically valued at a
discount from the public market value of the security.
When we receive warrants or other equity securities at nominal or no additional cost in connection with an investment in a debt security,
the cost basis in the investment will be allocated between the debt securities and any such warrants or other equity securities received at the
time of origination. Our Board subsequently values these warrants or other equity securities received at their fair value.
We periodically benchmark the bid and ask prices we receive from the third-party pricing services and/or dealers, as applicable, against the
actual prices at which we purchase and sell our investments. Based on the results of the benchmark analysis and the experience of our
management in purchasing and selling these investments, we believe that these prices are reliable indicators of fair value. However,
because of the private nature of this marketplace (meaning actual transactions are not publicly reported), we believe that these valuation
inputs are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. We may also use other methods, including the use of an independent
valuation firm, to determine fair value for securities for which we cannot obtain prevailing bid and ask prices through third-party pricing
services or independent dealers, or where our Board otherwise determines that the use of such other methods is appropriate. We will
periodically benchmark the valuations provided by the independent valuation firm against the actual prices at which we purchase and sell
our investments. The audit committee and Board reviewed and approved the valuation determinations made with respect to these
investments in a manner consistent with our valuation policy.
Under current accounting guidance, fair value is defined as the price that we would receive upon selling an investment or pay to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction to a market participant in the principal or most advantageous market for the investment. Current
accounting guidance emphasizes that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable
inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances. The valuation hierarchical levels are based upon the transparency of the inputs to the valuation
of the investment as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:
●

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

●

Level 2 — Valuations based on inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or
indirectly observable at the measurement date. This category includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in nonactive markets including actionable bids from third parties for
privately held assets or liabilities, and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves and forward currency rates
that are entered directly into valuation models to determine the value of derivatives or other assets or liabilities.

●

Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and where there is little, if any, market activity at the measurement
date. The inputs for the determination of fair value may require significant management judgment or estimation and are based upon
management’s assessment of the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities. These
investments include debt and equity investments in private companies or assets valued using the market or income approach and
may involve pricing models whose inputs require significant judgment or estimation because of the absence of any meaningful
current market data for identical or similar investments. The inputs in these valuations may include, but are not limited to,
capitalization and discount rates, beta and EBITDA multiples. The information may also include pricing information or broker
quotes, which include a disclaimer that the broker would not be held to such a price in an actual transaction. The nonbinding nature
of consensus pricing and/or quotes accompanied by disclaimer would result in classification as Level 3 information, assuming no
additional corroborating evidence.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily available market value, the fair value
of the investment portfolio may differ from the values that would have been used had a readily available market value existed for such
investments, and the differences could be material.
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Contractual Obligations
We have entered into an agreement with our Advisor to provide us with investment advisory services and with the Administrator to provide
us with administrative services.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We currently have no off balance sheet arrangements, including risk management of commodity pricing or other hedging practices.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are subject to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As of December 31, 2015, 68% of our portfolio investments
(based on fair value) paid variable rates of interest, 25% paid fixed interest rates and 7% were income producing equity instruments. In
addition, in the future we may seek to borrow funds in order to make additional investments. Our net investment income will depend, in
part, upon the difference between the rate at which we borrow funds and the rate at which we invest those funds. As a result, we would be
subject to risks relating to changes in market interest rates. In periods of rising interest rates when we have debt outstanding, our cost of
funds would increase, which could reduce our net investment income, especially to the extent we hold fixed rate investments. We expect
that our long-term investments will be financed primarily with equity and long-term debt. If deemed prudent, we may use interest rate risk
management techniques in an effort to minimize our exposure to interest rate fluctuations. These techniques may include various interest
rate hedging activities to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. Adverse developments resulting from changes in interest rates or hedging
transactions could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
A rise in the general level of interest rates can be expected to lead to higher interest rates applicable to our debt investments, especially to
the extent that we hold variable rate investments. Currently 68% of our investments pay variable rates of interest. Accordingly, an increase
in interest rates would make it easier for us to meet or exceed our incentive fee return, as defined in our Advisory Agreement, and may
result in a substantial increase in our net investment income, and also to the amount of incentive fees payable to our Advisor with respect to
our increasing pre-incentive fee net investment income.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, including the schedule of investments as of December 31, 2015, and the related statements of operations, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31,
2014, and the financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2015. These financial statements and financial highlights are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
highlights based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and financial
highlights are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of investments
owned as of December 31, 2015, by correspondence with the portfolio companies and debt agents, as applicable. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014, and the
financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
/s/WeiserMazars LLP
New York, New York
March 28, 2016
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Assets
Investments at fair value (amortized cost $25,746 and $0, respectively)
Cash
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Receivable for investments sold and repaid
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit)
Liabilities
Payable for investments purchased
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Loan origination fees, net
Management fees payable
Total liabilities

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

$

25,500
12,358
26
123
20
958
121
39,106

$

1,472
26
130
64
1,692

$

$

$

$

-

67
67

Commitments and contingencies (See Note H)
Stockholders' equity (deficit)
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 3,800,010 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2015; 100,000 shares authorized, 10 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2014
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated undistributed net realized loss on investments
Accumulated undistributed net investment loss
Net unrealized depreciation on investments
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

38
37,962
(18)
(322)
(246)
37,414
39,106 $

Net asset value per share (a)

$

9.85

-

-

$

(67)
(67)
-

(a) Net asset value per share was not calculated as of December 31, 2014 as Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. had not yet commenced principal
operations.
See Notes to Financial Statements
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Investment income
Net interest income
Dividend income
Total investment income
Operating expenses
Organizational expenses
Management fees
Professional fees
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Net investment loss

For the
Year Ended
December 31,
2015

For the
Period From
November 25,
2014
(date of
inception) to
December 31,
2014

$

$

843
20
863
63
307
471
277
1,118
(255)

Realized and unrealized loss
Net realized loss on investments
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investments
Total net realized and unrealized loss on investments
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations

$

Per share information - basic and diluted (a)
Weighted average - net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
Weighted average shares outstanding

$

(18)
(246)
(264)
(519) $

(0.23)
2,257,978

67
67
(67)
(67)

(b)
10

Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. commenced principal operations on April 24, 2015. As such, there is limited activity for the period from
November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014.
(a) Per share information calculated using weighted average shares outstanding from commencement of operations on April 24, 2015
through December 31, 2015.
(b) Per share information was not calculated for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014 as Parkview
Capital Credit, Inc. had not yet commenced principal operations.
See Notes to Financial Statements
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

For the
Year Ended
December 31,
2015
Decrease from operations
Net investment loss
Net realized loss on investments
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investments
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
Capital Share Transactions
Issuance of common stock
Net increase in net assets from capital share transactions

$

For the
Period From
November 25,
2014
(date of
inception) to
December 31,
2014

(255) $
(18)
(246)
(519)
38,000
38,000

Total increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets at beginning of period
Net assets at end of period
Net asset value per common share (a)
Common shares outstanding, end of period

(67)
(67)
-

$

37,481
(67)
37,414 $

$

9.85

$

3,800,010

(67)
(67)
10

Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. commenced principal operations on April 24, 2015. As such, there is limited activity for the period from
November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014.
(a) Per share information calculated using weighted average shares outstanding from commencement of operations on April 24, 2015
through December 31, 2015.

See Notes to Financial Statements
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the
Year Ended
December
31,
2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in net assets from operations to net cash used in operating
activities
Purchases of investments
Paid-in-kind interest
Paydowns of investments
Sales of investments
Loan origination fee amortization
Net unrealized depreciation on investments
Net amortization of premiums on investments
Realized loss on sold/repaid investments
Increase in operating assets:
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Receivable for investments sold and repaid
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Payable for investments purchased
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Loan origination fees
Management fees payable
Net cash used in operating activities

$

For the
Period From
November 25,
2014
(date of
inception) to
December 31,
2014

(519) $

(67)

(26,863)
(2)
159
939
(10)
246
3
18

-

(26)
(123)
(20)
(958)
(121)

-

1,472
(41)
140
64
(25,642)

67
-

Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities

38,000
38,000

-

Total increase in cash
Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

12,358
12,358

-

$

$

Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. commenced principal operations on April 24, 2015. As such, there is limited activity for the period from
November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014.
See Notes to Financial Statements
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
AS OF December 31, 2015
(in thousands, except share information)

Portfolio Company (a)
Industry
Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
InfoGroup, Inc.
Market Analytics
North Atlantic Trading
Company, Inc.
Tobacco
Generation Brands
Home Furnishings
Offisol
Staffing
WBL SPE I, LLC
Financial Services
Total Senior Secured Loans - First Lien

Spread
Above
Index (b)

Interest
Rate

Principal

5/26/2018

3,504

3,463

3,328

8.9%

7.75% 1/13/2020
7.75% 12/13/2018
12% + 2% PIK 12/14/2017
13.00% 2/28/2017

903
1,492
3,502
3,000

905
1,508
3,502
3,000
12,378

899
1,488
3,502
3,000
12,217

2.4%
4.0%
9.4%
8.0%
32.7%

10.25% 11/26/2018

4,500

4,484

4,455

11.9%

11.50%
10.00%

2,000
4,963

2,051
4,963
11,498

1,995
4,963
11,413

5.3%
13.3%
30.5%

L + 6.00%
L + 6.50%
L + 6.50%
N/A
N/A

7.50%

Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Maxim Crane Works,
LP (d)
Heavy Construction L + 9.25%
North Atlantic Trading
Company, Inc.
Tobacco
L + 10.25%
Action Resources
Transportation
L + 9.00%
Total Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien

Portfolio Company (a)
Industry
Equity Investments
Langham Creek LLC;
Preferred Units
Real Estate
Langham Creek LLC;
Common Units
Real Estate
Offisol; Warrants
Staffing
Total Equity
Investments

Number of
Dividend Rate Shares/Units
14.00%

Fair
Value
(c)

Amortized
Cost

Maturity

7/31/2020
4/30/2020

Amortized
Cost

Principal

Fair Value
(c)

% of Net
Assets

% of Net
Assets

1,868,600

1,869

1,869

1,869

5.0%

1,000
7

1
-

1
-

1
-

0.0%
0.0%

1,870

1,870

5.0%

$

25,500

68.2%

$

11,914
37,414

31.8%
100.0%

N/A
N/A

Total Investments
Other assets in excess
of liabilities
Net assets

$

25,746

(a) All of the investments are issued by eligible U.S. portfolio companies, as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the
“Investment Company Act”). Under the Investment Company Act, the Company would be deemed to “control” a portfolio company if the
Company owned more than 25% of its outstanding voting securities and/or held the power to exercise control over the management or
policies of the portfolio company. The Company would be deemed an “affiliated person” of a portfolio company if the Company owned
5% or more of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities. As of December 31, 2015, the Company does not "control" any of its
portfolio companies. The Company is an “affiliated person” of Langham Creek LLC by virtue of its ownership of voting securities of
Langham Creek LLC.
(b) The majority of the investments bear interest at a rate that may be determined by reference to London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR” or “L”) or Prime (“P”) which generally reset monthly, quarterly, or semiannually. For each, the Company has provided the
spread over LIBOR and the current contractual interest rate in effect at December 31, 2015. Certain investments are subject to a LIBOR
interest rate floor.
(c) The fair value of the Company’s investments was determined in good faith by or under the guidance of the Company’s board of
directors pursuant to the Company's valuation policies.
(d) Position or portion thereof unsettled as of December 31, 2015.
Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. commenced principal operations on April 24, 2015. As such, there is no activity for the period from
November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014.
See Notes to Financial Statements
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PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share information)
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. (the “Company”), was legally formed on November 25, 2014 (“Inception”) as a Maryland corporation and
commenced its principal operations on April 24, 2015, commensurate with the raising of $20,000 through the sale of 2,000,000 shares of its
common stock. The Company is an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that elected to be
regulated as a business development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”) on
February 12, 2016, and intends to elect to be treated for federal income tax purposes as a regulated investment company (“RIC”) under
Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
The Company is an investment company that follows the specialized accounting and reporting guidance of Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard Codification Topic 946 “Financial Services Investment Companies.”
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”).
NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the
date of purchase to be cash equivalents. All cash balances are maintained with high credit quality financial institutions, which are members
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Organizational Expenses: Fees associated with the organization of the Company have been expensed as incurred. These fees consist
primarily of legal fees.
Income Taxes: No tax expense has been recorded due to losses incurred to date. There is no evidence to record a deferred tax asset on a
more likely than not basis that future levels of taxable income would be sufficient to utilize such asset.
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As a BDC, the Company also intends to elect to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. As a RIC, the Company generally
will not be required to pay corporate level federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains that it distributes to its stockholders
as dividends. To continue to qualify as a RIC, the Company must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and asset
diversification requirements. In addition, to qualify for RIC tax treatment, the Company must distribute to its stockholders, for each taxable
year, at least 90% of its “investment company taxable income” for that year, which is generally its ordinary income plus the excess of its
realized net short-term capital gains over its realized net long-term capital losses.
During the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014, there
were no tax expenses and no interest and penalties incurred.
Revenue Recognition: Interest income, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, is recorded on an accrual basis.
Discounts or premiums are accreted or amortized, respectively, using the effective interest method as interest income. Dividend income, is
recognized on an accrual basis to the extent that the Company expects to collect such amount. Loan origination fees, original issue discount
and market discount are capitalized and amortized as interest income over the respective term of the loan. The Company records
prepayment premiums on loans and securities as fee income when it receives such amounts.
The Company may have loans or preferred securities in its portfolio that contain payment-in-kind (“PIK”) provisions. PIK represents
interest or dividends that are accrued and recorded as interest or dividend income at the contractual rates, increases the loan or preferred
equity principal on the respective capitalization dates, and is generally due at maturity. For the year ended December 31, 2015, there was
PIK income of $2.
Realized gains or losses on investments are measured by the difference between the net proceeds from the disposition and the amortized
cost basis of investment, without regard to unrealized gains or losses previously recognized. The Company reports changes in fair value of
investments that are measured at fair value as a component of the net change in unrealized depreciation on investments in the statements of
operations.
Earnings per Share: Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period. Other potentially dilutive common shares, and the related impact to earnings, are
considered when calculating earnings per share on a diluted basis. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company calculated basic
and diluted per share information using shares outstanding from commencement of operations on April 24, 2015 through December 31,
2015.
Investments: Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis. The Company considers trade date for investments not traded
on a recognizable exchange, or traded in the over-the-counter markets, to be the date on which the Company receives legal or contractual
title to the asset and bears the risk of loss.
Investments in senior loans generate a fixed spread over floating base rates such as LIBOR or the U.S. Prime Rate. These floating base rates
generally reset monthly, quarterly or semi-annually.
Valuation of Portfolio Securities: The Company determines the net asset value per share of its common stock quarterly. The net asset value
per share equals the value of the Company’s total assets minus liabilities and any preferred stock outstanding divided by the total number of
shares of common stock outstanding. The Company’s investments are valued at the end of each fiscal quarter.
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Substantially all of the Company’s investments are expected to be in loans that do not have readily ascertainable market prices. Investments
for which market quotations are readily available are valued at such market quotations, which are generally obtained from an independent
pricing service or multiple broker-dealers or market makers. In order to assist the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) in
determining the fair value of assets that are not publicly traded or whose market prices are not readily available, Parkview Advisors, LLC
(the “Advisor”) will provide the Board with portfolio company valuations, which are based on relevant inputs, which may include but are
not limited to, indicative dealer quotes, values of like securities, recent portfolio company financial statements and forecasts, and valuations
prepared by third party valuation services. The Board may retain an independent valuation provider to assist it by performing certain
limited third-party valuation services. In connection with the valuation determination, investment professionals from the Advisor will
prepare portfolio company valuations using sources and/or proprietary models depending on the availability of information on the
Company’s assets and the type of asset being valued, all in accordance with the Company’s valuation policy. The participation of the
Advisor in the valuation process could result in a conflict of interest, since the base management fee is based on the Company’s gross
assets.
Valuation of fixed income investments, such as loans and debt securities, depends upon a number of factors, including prevailing interest
rates for like securities, expected volatility in future interest rates, call features, put features and other relevant terms of the debt. For
investments without readily available market prices, the Company may incorporate these factors into discounted cash flow models to arrive
at fair value. Other factors that may be considered include the borrower’s ability to adequately service its debt, the fair market value of the
borrower in relation to the face amount of its outstanding debt and the quality of collateral securing our debt investments.
The Company’s equity interests in portfolio companies for which there is no liquid public market are valued at fair value. The Board, in its
determination of fair value, may consider various factors, such as multiples of EBITDA, cash flows, net income, revenues or, in limited
instances, book value or liquidation value. All of these factors may be subject to adjustments based upon the particular circumstances of a
portfolio company or the actual investment position. For example, adjustments to EBITDA may take into account compensation to
previous owners or acquisition, recapitalization, restructuring or other related items.
The Advisor’s management team, any approved independent third-party valuation services and the Board may also consider private merger
and acquisition statistics, public trading multiples discounted for illiquidity and other factors, valuations implied by third-party investments
in the portfolio companies or industry practices in determining fair value. The Advisor’s management team, any approved independent
third-party valuation services and the Board may also consider the size and scope of a portfolio company and its specific strengths and
weaknesses, and may apply discounts or premiums, where and as appropriate, due to the higher (or lower) financial risk and/or the smaller
size of portfolio companies relative to comparable firms, as well as such other factors as the Board, in consultation with the Advisor’s
management team and any approved independent third-party valuation services, if applicable, may consider relevant in assessing fair value.
Generally, the value of the equity interests in public companies for which market quotations are readily available will be based upon the
most recent closing public market price. Portfolio securities that carry certain restrictions on sale are typically valued at a discount from the
public market value of the security.
When the Company receives warrants or other equity securities at nominal or no additional cost in connection with an investment in a debt
security, the cost basis in the investment will be allocated between the debt securities and any such warrants or other equity securities
received at the time of origination. The Board subsequently values these warrants or other equity securities received at their fair value.
The Company periodically benchmarks the bid and ask prices received from the third-party pricing services and/or dealers, as applicable,
against the actual prices at which it purchases and sells investments. Based on the results of the benchmark analysis and the experience of
management in purchasing and selling these investments, the Company believes that these prices are reliable indicators of fair value.
However, because of the private nature of this marketplace (meaning actual transactions are not publicly reported), the Company believes
that these valuation inputs are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. The Company may also use other methods, including
the use of an independent valuation firm, to determine fair value for securities for which it cannot obtain prevailing bid and ask prices
through third-party pricing services or independent dealers, or where the Board otherwise determines that the use of such other methods is
appropriate. The Company periodically benchmarks the valuations provided by the independent valuation firm against the actual prices at
which the Company purchases and sells investments. The audit committee and Board reviewed and approved the valuation determinations
made with respect to these investments in a manner consistent with the Company’s valuation policy.
Due to the inherent uncertainty of determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily available market value, the fair value
of the investment portfolio may differ from the values that would have been used had a readily available market value existed for such
investments, and the differences could be material.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments : The carrying amounts of certain of our financial instruments, including cash, receivables, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of
Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.” ASU 2014-15 explicitly requires management to evaluate, at each
annual or interim reporting period, whether there are conditions or events that exist which raise substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide related disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15,
2016, and annual and interim periods thereafter, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on its financial statements.
In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, “Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis,” which makes
changes to both the variable interest model and voting interest model and eliminates the indefinite deferral of FASB Statement No. 167,
included in ASU 2010-10, for certain investment funds. All reporting entities that hold a variable interest in other legal entities will need to
reevaluate their consolidation conclusions as well as disclosure requirements. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, and early adoption is permitted, including any interim period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on its financial statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Interest – Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt
Issuance Costs,” which requires debt issuance costs be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the
associated debt liability, and amortization of those costs should be reported as interest expense. ASU 2015-03 is effective for financial
statements issued for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, and early adoption is permitted for financial
statements that have not been previously issued. The new guidance should be applied on a retrospective basis for each period presented in
the balance sheet. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on its financial
statements.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,” which eliminates the current
requirement to present deferred tax liabilities and assets as current and noncurrent in a classified balance sheet. Instead, entities will be
required to classify all deferred tax assets and liabilities as noncurrent. ASU 2015-17 will be effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not anticipate that
the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10), Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,” which addresses certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 will be effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017 and early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on its
financial statements.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 840).” The new standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that
requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases
will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement.
ASU 2016-02 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and annual and interim periods thereafter, with early
adoption permitted. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing at, or
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients
available. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on its financial statements.
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NOTE C – COMMON STOCK
On March 11, 2015, the Company filed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the State Department of Assessments and
Taxation for the State of Maryland (the “Amended Charter”). The Amended Charter, among other things, increased the number of
authorized shares of the Company’s common stock from 100,000 to 50,000,000.
On March 31, 2015, the Company accepted a subscription agreement from GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP for a capital contribution of
$25,000. GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP is a private fund managed by Gray & Company, a registered investment adviser founded by
the Company’s former Chairman. In connection with the receipt of $20,000 of the $25,000 subscription on April 24, 2015, the Company
issued a total of 2,000,000 shares of common stock at a price per share of $10.00. In connection with the receipt of $3,500 from GrayCo
Alternative Partners II, LP on August 11, 2015, the Company issued a total of 350,000 additional shares of common stock at a purchase
price per share of $10.00. In connection with the receipt of $1,500 from GrayCo Alternative Partners II, LP on October 5, 2015, the
Company issued a total of 150,000 additional shares of common stock at a purchase price per share of $10.00, which represented the final
commitment related to the $25,000 subscription.
On December 2, 2015, the Company accepted a subscription agreement from District 1199J New Jersey Healthcare Employers Pension
Fund for a capital contribution of $13,000 where the Company issued a total of 1,300,000 shares of common stock. The Company received
$7,000 and $6,000, respectively, on December 29 and December 31, 2015 for which the Company issued 700,000 and 600,000 shares,
respectively, of common stock at a purchase price per share of $10.00.
NOTE D – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Advisory Agreement
On March 11, 2015, the Company entered into an Investment Advisory Agreement with the Advisor for management services. The
Advisor is owned by SKW Financial, LLC, an entity controlled by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the Investment
Advisory Agreement, the Advisor will provide credit analysis, structuring capability and transactional experience. The fees associated with
this agreement consist of a base management fee and incentive fees.
The management fee is calculated at an annual rate of 2.00% of the end-of-period gross assets payable monthly in arrears. For purposes of
calculating the management fee, the term “gross assets” includes any assets acquired with the proceeds of leverage. As a result, the Advisor
will benefit when the Company incurs debt or uses leverage. For each of the first two months of operations, the management fee was
calculated based on the value of the Company’s gross assets at the end of such month, and appropriately adjusted for any share issuances
during these months. Following the Company’s first two months of operations, the Investment Advisory Agreement provides that the
management fee is calculated based on the average value of gross assets at the end of the two most recently completed months. The
Company has clarified its management fee calculation so that the management fee is calculated by averaging the value of the Company’s
gross assets at the end of the two most recently completed quarters, and appropriately adjusting for any share issuances occurring during
any month of the current quarter. Management fees for any partial month are appropriately prorated. For the year ended December 31,
2015, the Company incurred management fees of $307.
The incentive fee is divided into two parts: (i) an incentive fee on income and (ii) an incentive fee on capital gains.
The incentive fee on income, is calculated and payable quarterly in arrears based upon the Company’s “pre-incentive fee net investment
income” for the immediately preceding quarter. The incentive fee on income will be subject to a hurdle rate, measured quarterly and
expressed as a rate of return on adjusted capital at the beginning of the most recently completed calendar quarter, of 1.75% (7.0%
annualized), subject to a “catch up” feature. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company did not accrue any incentive fees on
income.
The incentive fee on capital gains is determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each calendar year (or upon termination of the
Advisory Agreement). This fee will equal 20% of realized capital gains on a cumulative basis from inception, calculated as of the end of
the applicable period, computed net of all realized capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the
aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gains incentive fees. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company did not accrue
any incentive fees on capital gains.
During the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to December 31, 2014, the
Company reimbursed the Advisor $85 and $0, respectively, for amounts owed by the Company to third party providers of services paid by
the Advisor on the Company’s behalf and reimbursements for company-related travel.
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Administration Agreement
On March 11, 2015, the Company entered into an Administration Agreement with Parkview Administrator, LLC (the “Administrator”),
under which the Administrator will provide administrative services to the Company. These services will include providing office space,
providing equipment and office services, maintaining financial records, preparing reports to the Company’s stockholders and reports filed
with the SEC and managing the payment of the Company’s expenses and the performance of administrative and professional services
rendered by others. The Company will reimburse the Administrator for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Administrator in
providing these services, facilities and personnel, as provided by the Administration Agreement.
License Agreement
On March 11, 2015, the Company entered into a license agreement (the “License Agreement”) with the Advisor, pursuant to which the
Company was granted a non-exclusive license to use the name “Parkview.” Under the License Agreement, the Company has a right to use
the “Parkview” name and logo, as long as the Advisor or one of its affiliates remains the Company’s investment adviser. Other than with
respect to this limited license, the Company has no legal right to the “Parkview” name or logo.
Other Related Party Matters
On May 21, 2015, the SEC filed an Order Instituting Proceedings alleging violations of federal securities laws against the Company’s
former Chairman, Mr. Gray, and Gray Financial Group, Inc., an entity controlled by Mr. Gray that manages GrayCo Alternative Partners II,
LP, the Company’s largest unaffiliated stockholder. As a result of such order, Mr. Gray resigned from the Board and as Chairman of the
Board on May 28, 2015. Additionally, Mr. Gray’s ownership in the Advisor, held through Gray & Company, was transferred back to the
Advisor on May 28, 2015, leaving SKW Financial, LLC as the sole owner of the Advisor. Mr. Gray’s resignation was not the result of any
matter related to the Company's operations, policies and/or practices. There is uncertainty about what impact this may have on the
Company, if any; however, management of the Company does not believe Mr. Gray's resignation or the order will have a material effect on
the Company’s liquidity, financial position or operations.
NOTE E – INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
The table below describes investments by industry classification and enumerates the percentage, by fair value, of the total portfolio assets in
such strategies as of December 31, 2015:

Fair Value
3,328
3,502
3,000
2,894
4,455
1,488
1,870
4,963
$
25,500

Market Analytics
Staffing
Financial Services
Tobacco
Heavy Construction
Home Furnishings
Real Estate
Transportation

$
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Percentage
of
Portfolio
13%
14%
12%
11%
18%
6%
7%
19%
100%

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of the investment portfolio as of December 31, 2015:
Amortized
Cost(a)
$
12,378
11,498
1,870
$
25,746

Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Equity Investments
Total

Percentage
of Portfolio
Fair Value
48% $
12,217
45%
11,413
7%
1,870
100% $
25,500

Percentage
of Portfolio
48%
45%
7%
100%

(a) Amortized cost represents the original cost adjusted for the amortization of premiums and/or accretion of discounts, as applicable, on
investments.
NOTE F – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is defined as the price that the Company would receive upon selling an investment or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction to a market participant in the principal or most advantageous market for the investment. Accounting guidance emphasizes that
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable
or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances. The valuation hierarchical levels are based upon the transparency of the inputs to the valuation of the investment as of the
measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:
Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
Level 2 — Valuations based on inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly
observable at the measurement date. This category includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active markets including actionable bids from third parties for privately held assets or
liabilities, and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves and forward currency rates that are entered directly into
valuation models to determine the value of derivatives or other assets or liabilities.
Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and where there is little, if any, market activity at the measurement date.
The inputs for the determination of fair value may require significant management judgment or estimation and are based upon
management’s assessment of the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities. These investments
include debt and equity investments in private companies or assets valued using the market or income approach and may involve pricing
models whose inputs require significant judgment or estimation because of the absence of any meaningful current market data for identical
or similar investments. The inputs in these valuations may include, but are not limited to, capitalization and discount rates, beta and
EBITDA multiples. The information may also include pricing information or broker quotes, which include a disclaimer that the broker
would not be held to such a price in an actual transaction. The non-binding nature of consensus pricing and/or quotes accompanied by
disclaimer would result in classification as Level 3 information, assuming no additional corroborating evidence.
Pricing inputs and weightings applied to determine value require subjective determination. Accordingly, valuations do not necessarily
represent the amounts that may eventually be realized from sales or other dispositions of investments.
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A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.
The following table presents the fair value measurements of the investment portfolio, by major class according to the fair value hierarchy,
as of December 31, 2015:
Level 1
Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Equity Investments

$

Level 2
-

$

$

$

-

Level 3
12,217
11,413
1,870
$
25,500
$

$

$

Total
12,217
11,413
1,870
25,500

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for total investments that use Level 3 inputs for the year
ended December 31, 2015:

Fair value beginning of period
Purchases
Net realized loss
Amortization of discount (premium)
Paid in kind interest
Sales
Paydowns
Net change in unrealized depreciation
Fair value end of period

Senior
Senior
Secured
Secured
Loans First
Loans
Equity
Lien
Second Lien
Investments
$
- $
- $
13,448
11,545
1,870
(18)
6
(9)
2
(939)
(121)
(38)
(161)
(85)
$
12,217 $
11,413 $
1,870

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in changes in
net assets attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses
relating to investments still held at the reporting date

$

(161) $

(85) $

-

Total
$

$

26,863
(18)
(3)
2
(939)
(159)
(246)
25,500

$

(246)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company did not have any transfers between levels.
The following table presents the quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements of the investment portfolio, as of
December 31, 2015:

Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - First Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien
Senior Secured Loans - Second Lien

$
$
$
$
$

Equity Investments

$

Fair
Valuation
Weighted
Value
Techniques
Unobservable input
Range
Average
5,715
Market quotes
Indicative Dealer Quotes 94.0% - 100.1%
97.9%
3,502
Cost
Cost
100.00%
99.6%
3,000 Market comparables
Market yield (%)
100.00%
100.0%
6,450
Market quotes
Indicative Dealer Quotes 98.0% - 100.0%
99.6%
4,963 Market comparables
Market yield (%)
100.00%
100.0%
EBITDA Multiples (x)
6.0x - 7.0x
6.5x
1,870
Cost
Cost
100.00%
100.0%
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NOTE G – FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The following is a schedule of financial highlights of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015:
Per share data
Net asset value beginning of period (a)
Results of operations (a)
Net investment loss
Net realized loss on investments
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investments
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
Capital share transactions
Issuance of common stock
Total increase in net assets
Net asset value at end of period

$

(0.02)
(0.07)
(0.00)
(0.06)
(0.13)

$

Shares outstanding at end of period
Total return (b)

10.00
9.87
9.85
3,800,010
-1.37%

Ratio/Supplemental data (c)
Net assets at end of period
Ratio of operating expenses to average net assets (d)
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets (d)
Portfolio turnover rate (e)

37,414
5.99%
1.37%
1.75%

Capital share transactions
(a) Per share information calculated using common stock issued from the commencement of principal operations on April 24, 2015
through December 31, 2015.
(b) The total return for the year ended December 31, 2015 was calculated by taking the net loss of the Company for the period divided
by the common stock issued during the period.
(c) The financial information has not been annualized in computing ratios and may not be indicative of full year results.
(d) In computing ratios, the Company utilized its net assets as of April 24, 2015, the date on which it commenced principal operations,
for its beginning of period assets.
(e) Portfolio turnover rate was calculated from the commencement of principal operations, on April 24, 2015.
NOTE H – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings
The Company is not currently involved in any legal proceedings.
NOTE I – INCOME TAXES
The Company has elected to be treated as a BDC under the 1940 Act and intends to elect to be treated as a RIC under the Internal Revenue
Code. So long as the Company maintains its status as a RIC, it will generally not pay corporate-level U.S. federal income or excise taxes on
any ordinary income or capital gains that it distributes at least annually to its common stockholders as distributions. As a result, any tax
liability related to income earned and distributed by the Company represents obligations of the Company’s common stockholders and will
not be reflected in the financial statements of the Company for the years in which it qualifies as a RIC.
The Company did not qualify as a RIC in 2015 and 2014 and was taxed as a C corporation (“C-Corp”) for 2014 and will be taxed as a CCorp for 2015. The Company intends to qualify as a RIC in the future. In order to qualify as a RIC, the Company must distribute before the
end of its first qualifying year all earnings and profits accumulated in prior non-RIC tax years. There are no earnings and profits for 2015 or
2014. Built-in gains by a C-Corp electing to be a RIC are subject to tax during the first 5 years of RIC status. The Company does not have a
net unrealized built-in gain at December 31, 2015. The Company evaluates tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of
preparing its financial statements to determine whether the tax positions are “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained by the applicable tax
authority. Tax positions not deemed to meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold are reversed and recorded as a tax benefit or expense in
the current year. All penalties and interest associated with income taxes are included in income tax expense. Conclusions regarding tax
positions are subject to review and may be adjusted at a later date based on factors including, but not limited to, on-going analyses of tax
laws, regulations and interpretations thereof. All tax years are open for examination.
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As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Company had $204 and $0 of net investment loss on a tax basis. The difference between the
Company’s GAAP-basis net investment income and its tax-basis income is primarily due to the tax-basis deferral and amortization of
organization costs incurred prior to the commencement of the Company’s investment operations.

GAAP-basis net investment income
Tax-basis deferral and amortization of origination costs
Tax-basis net investment income

$
$

December 31,
2015
2014
(255) $
(67)
51
67
(204) $
-

The Company may make certain adjustments to the classification of stockholders' equity as a result of permanent book-to-tax differences.
No adjustments were made for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception) to
December 31, 2014.
The determination of the tax attributes of the Company’s distributions is made annually as of the end of the Company’s fiscal year based
on the Company’s taxable income for the full year and distributions paid for the full year. The actual tax characteristics of distributions to
stockholders are reported to stockholders annually on Form 1099-DIV. The Company did not make distributions to stockholders in 2015 or
2014.
As of December 31 2015 and 2014, the components of accumulated earnings on a tax basis were as follows:

Distributable ordinary income (income and short-term capital gains)
Unamortized organization costs
Accumulated capital and other losses
Net unrealized depreciation on investments
Total

$

$

December 31,
2015
2014
(340) $
(67)
118
67
18
(246)
(450) $
-

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s aggregate investment unrealized depreciation based on cost was as follows:
December
31,
2015
$
25,746
$
(246)
$
(246)

Tax cost
Gross unrealized depreciation
Net unrealized investment depreciation on investments
The significant components of the deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

December 31,
2015
2014
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss
Short-term deferred capital loss
Unrealized depreciation
Deferred organization costs
Subtotal deferred income tax assets
Less: Valuation allowance
Deferred income tax assets - net

$

83 $
7
99
47
236
(236)
-

27
27
(27)
-

The Company has a net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforward of $204 which will expire over the next 20 years. The Company does not
plan on being able to utilize this NOL carryforward and has recorded a corresponding valuation allowance. The Company’s NOL cannot be
carried forward to its first qualifying RIC tax year.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2015, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"), means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported,
within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Based on our evaluation, we believe that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the date of our Annual Report on Form 10-K have
been designed and are effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms. We believe that a controls system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the
objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances
of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
This annual report does not include a report of Management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting due to a
transitional period established by the rules of the SEC for newly public companies.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2015 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the information contained in our definitive proxy or information
statement, to be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the end of our fiscal year.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information contained in our definitive proxy or information
statement.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the information contained in our definitive proxy or information
statement.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the information contained in our definitive proxy or information
statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information contained in our definitive proxy or information
statement, to be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the end of our fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)

DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT

The following is a list of our financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under Item 8 of Part II hereof:
1.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

F-1

Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2015 and 2014

F-2

Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception)
to December 31, 2014

F-3

Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of
inception) to December 31, 2014

F-4

Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from November 25, 2014 (date of inception)
to December 31, 2014

F-5

Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2015

F-6

Notes to Financial Statements

F-7

(b)

EXHIBITS
3.1

Form of Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment
No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on August 11, 2015)

3.2

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on March 31, 2015)

10.1

Investment Advisory Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed
on March 31, 2015)

10.2

Administration Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on
March 31, 2015)

10.3

License Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on March 31,
2015)

10.4

Custody Agreement with Millennium Trust Company (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2015)

14.1*

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the Registrant and Parkview Advisors, LLC.

31.1*

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2*

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1*

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 1350)

* Filed herewith
40

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
Dated: March 28, 2016

By:

/s/ KEITH W. SMITH
Keith W. Smith
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: March 28, 2016

By:

/s/ CHARLES M. JACOBSON
Charles M. Jacobson
Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Dated: March 28, 2016

By:

/s/ STEPHAN PARICO
Stephan Parico
Director

Dated: March 28, 2016

By:

/s/ ODYSSEUS LANIER
Odysseus Lanier
Director

Dated: March 28, 2016

By:

/s/ DAVID ABNER
David Abner
Director
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Exhibit 14.1

PARKVIEW CAPITAL CREDIT, INC.
and
PARKVIEW ADVISORS, LLC

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

August 13, 2015
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
I. INTRODUCTION
Ethics are important to Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. (the “Company,”) and to its management. The Company is committed to the
highest ethical standards and to conducting its business with the highest level of integrity.
All officers, directors and employees of the Company and its investment advisor, Parkview Advisors, LLC (the “Advisor”), are
responsible for maintaining this level of integrity and for complying with the policies contained in this Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics and Statement on the Prohibition of Insider Trading (this “Code”). If you have any questions or concerns about what is proper
conduct for you or anyone else, please raise these concerns with the Company’s Chief Compliance Officer, who is responsible for
administering and monitoring this Code (the “Chief Compliance Officer”), and follow the procedures outlined in applicable sections of this
Code.
The Company will operate as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company and intends to file an election to be
regulated as a business development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. The Advisor to the
Company is registered as an investment adviser with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.
This Code has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in accordance with Rule 17j-l(c) under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), Item 406 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and the May 9, 1994 Report of the Advisory Group on Personal Investing by the Investment
Company Institute (the “Report”). Rule 17j-l of the 1940 Act generally describes fraudulent or manipulative practices with respect to
purchases or sales of securities held or to be acquired by business development companies if effected by access persons of such companies.
This Code has also been adopted by the Advisor pursuant to the requirements of 204A-1. All advisers registered with the SEC
must maintain and enforce a written code of ethics reflecting the adviser’s fiduciary duties to its clients. An adviser’s code of ethics must
include a discussion of standards of conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, personal securities transactions, pre-approval for
certain securities transactions, reporting violations under the code, the process for circulating the code and obtaining acknowledgement by
those subject to the code and recordkeeping requirements of the code.
II. PURPOSE OF THE CODE
This Code is intended to:
●

help you recognize ethical issues and take the appropriate steps to resolve these issues;

●

deter ethical violations to avoid any abuse of position of trust and responsibility;

●

maintain confidentiality of our business activities;

●

assist you in complying with applicable securities laws;

●

assist you in reporting any unethical or illegal conduct; and

●

reaffirm and promote our commitment to a corporate culture that values honesty, integrity and accountability.
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Further, it is the policy of the Company and the Advisor that no affiliated person of our organization shall, in connection with the
purchase or sale, directly or indirectly, by such person of any security held or to be acquired by the Company or the Advisor:
●

employ any device, scheme or artifice to defraud us;

●

make any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state to us a material fact in order to make the statement made, in light of the
circumstances under which it is made, not misleading;

●

engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon us; or

●

engage in any manipulative practices with respect to our business activities.

All officers, directors, and employees, as a condition of employment or continued employment or service to the Company and the
Advisor, as applicable, will acknowledge annually, in writing, in the form attached hereto as Appendix A, that they have received a copy of
this Code, read it, and understand that this Code contains our expectations regarding their conduct.
III. APPLICATION OF THE CODE
The employees specified in the following discussion will be subject to the provisions of this Code.
Section 3.1 Scope of the Code of Ethics. In order to prevent the Company’s and the Advisor’s Access Persons, as defined below,
from engaging in any of these prohibited acts, practices or courses of business, the Board has adopted this Code of Ethics.
Section 3.2 Definitions. In addition to terms expressly defined elsewhere herein, the following words shall have the following
meanings as used in this Code:
Access Person means any director, officer, partner, employee or Advisory Person (as defined below) of the Company or the
Advisor; provided, however, that the term “Access Person” will not include a Disinterested Director (as defined below).
Advisory Person means: (i) any director, officer or employee of the Company or the Advisor or of any company in a control
relationship to the Company or Advisor, who, in connection with his or her regular duties, makes, participates in or obtains information
regarding the purchase or sale of a Covered Security (as defined below) by the Company or the Advisor, or whose functions relate to the
making of any recommendations with respect to such purchases or sales; and (ii) any natural person in a control relationship to the
Company or Advisor who obtains information concerning recommendations made to the Company with regard to the purchase or sale of a
Covered Security. An Advisory Person shall not include a Disinterested Director.
Automatic Investment Plan refers to any program in which regular periodic purchases (or withdrawals) are made automatically in
(or from) investment accounts in accordance with a predetermined schedule and allocation, including a distribution reinvestment plan.
Beneficial Interest includes any entity, person, trust or account with respect to which an Access Person exercises investment
discretion or provides investment advice. A beneficial interest shall be presumed to include all accounts in the name of or for the benefit of
the Access Person, his or her spouse, dependent children or any person living with him or her or to whom he or she contributed economic
support.
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Beneficial Ownership shall be determined in accordance with Rule 16a-1(a)(2) under the Exchange Act, except that the
determination of direct or indirect Beneficial Ownership shall apply to all securities, and not just equity securities, that an Access Person
has or acquires. Rule 16a-1(a)(2) provides that the term “beneficial owner” means any person who, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has or shares a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in any equity security.
Therefore, an Access Person may be deemed to have Beneficial Ownership of securities held by members of his or her immediate family
sharing the same household, or by certain partnerships, trusts, corporations or other arrangements.
Blackout Period means that timeframe in which the Company or Advisor or an Access Person, or Disinterested Director with
knowledge of the Company’s or Advisor’s trading activity, may not engage in trading in an issue, or its related securities, appearing on the
Company’s or Advisor’s Restricted List as described below.
Control shall have the same meaning as that set forth in Section 2(a)(9) of the 1940 Act.
Covered Security means a security as defined in Section 2(a)(36) of the 1940 Act and that it is eligible for purchase by the
Company or Advisor under its investment objectives, policies and restrictions. A security that is otherwise a “Covered Security” under this
definition is excluded therefrom, however, if it falls into one of the following categories: (i) direct obligations of the government of the
United States; (ii) bankers’ acceptances, bank certificates of deposit, commercial paper and high quality short-term debt instruments
including repurchase agreements; and (iii) shares issued by registered open-end investment companies (i.e., mutual funds); however,
exchange-traded funds structured as unit investment trusts or open-end funds are considered Covered Securities.
Disinterested Director means a director of the Company or Advisor who is not an “interested person” of the Company within the
meaning of Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act.
Initial Public Offering means an offering of securities registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), the issuer of which, immediately before the registration, was not subject to the reporting requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act.
Limited Offering means an offering that is exempt from registration under the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) or Section
4(6) or pursuant to Rule 504, Rule 505 or Rule 506 of the Securities Act.
Purchase or Sale of a Covered Security includes, among other things, the writing of an option to purchase or sell a Covered
Security, or the use of a derivative product to take a position in a Covered Security.
Restricted List means the list that identifies those securities which the Company, the Advisor or their Access Persons may not
trade due to some restriction under the securities laws whereby the Company, the Advisor or their Access Persons may be deemed to
possess material nonpublic information (as it is described within the Insider Trading Policy Statement) about the issuer of such securities.
Supervised Person means any partner, officer, director (or other person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions)
or employee of any entity that provides investment advice on behalf of the Company or the Advisor and is subject to the supervision and
control of the Company or Advisor; provided, however, that Supervised Person shall not include Disinterested Directors.
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Section 3.3 Standards of Conduct.
3.3.1. No Access Person, Supervised Person or Disinterested Director shall engage, directly or indirectly, in any business
transaction or arrangement for personal profit that is not in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders or the Advisor; nor
shall he or she make use of any confidential information gained by reason of his or her employment by or affiliation with the
Company, the Advisor, or any of their affiliates, in order to derive a personal profit for himself or herself or for any Beneficial
Interest, in violation of the fiduciary duty owed to the Company and its stockholders and to the Advisor.
3.3.2. Any Access Person recommending or authorizing the purchase or sale of a Covered Security by the Company or the
Advisor shall, at the time of such recommendation or authorization, disclose any Beneficial Interest in, or Beneficial Ownership of,
such Covered Security or the issuer thereof.
3.3.3. No Access Person, Supervised Person or Disinterested Director shall dispense any information concerning securities
holdings or securities transactions of the Company or the Advisor to anyone outside the Company or Advisor without obtaining
prior written approval from the Chief Compliance Officer, or such person or persons as these individuals may designate to act on
their behalf. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, such Access Person may dispense such information without obtaining prior
written approval:
●

when there is a public report containing the same information;

●

when such information is dispensed in accordance with compliance procedures established to prevent conflicts of interest
between the Company, the Advisor and their affiliates;

●

when such information is reported to directors of the Company or Advisor; or

●

in the ordinary course of his or her duties on behalf of the Company or the Advisor.

3.3.4. All personal securities transactions should be conducted consistent with this Code and the Insider Trading Policy
Statement and in such manner as to avoid actual or potential conflicts of interest, the appearance of a conflict of interest, or any
abuse of an individual’s position of trust and responsibility within the Company and the Advisor.
3.3.5. The Advisor owes the Company a duty of undivided loyalty. As an investment adviser, the Advisor has a fiduciary
responsibility to the Company. The Company’s interests must always be placed first.
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IV. PRINCIPLES OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
All officers, directors, and employees of the Company and the Advisor will be subject to the following guidelines covering
business conduct, except as noted below:
Section 4.1 Conflicts of Interest. You must avoid any conflict, or the appearance of a conflict, between your personal interests and
our interests. A conflict exists when your personal interests in any way interfere with our interests, or when you take any action or have any
interests that may make it difficult for you to perform your job objectively and effectively. For example, a conflict of interest probably
exists if:
●

you cause us or the Advisor to enter into business relationships with you or a member of your family, or invest in companies
affiliated with you or a member of your family;

●

you use any nonpublic information about us or the Advisor, our customers or our other business partners for your personal gain, or
the gain of a member of your family; or

●

you use or communicate confidential information obtained in the course of your work for your or another’s personal benefit.

Should you become aware of a potential or actual conflict of interest you should immediately communicate with the Chief
Compliance Officer. The Chief Compliance Officer will work with you, the Chief Executive Officer and, if necessary, legal counsel to
evaluate the potential or actual conflict and recommend the appropriate course of action. Any actual conflict of interest must be discussed
with the Company’s Board of Directors to ensure compliance with Section 406 of Sarbanes Oxley.
Section 4.2 Corporate Opportunities. Each of us has a duty to advance the legitimate interests of the Company when the
opportunity to do so presents itself. Therefore, you may not:
●

take for yourself personally opportunities, including investment opportunities, discovered through the use of your position with us or
the Advisor, or through the use of either’s property or information;

●

use our or the Advisor’s property, information or position for your personal gain or the gain of a family member; or

●

compete, or prepare to compete, with us or the Advisor.

Section 4.3 Confidentiality. You must not disclose confidential information regarding us, the Advisor, our affiliates, our lenders,
our clients or our other business partners, unless disclosure is authorized or required by law. Confidential information includes all
nonpublic information that might be harmful to, or useful to the competitors of, the Company, our affiliates, our lenders, our clients or our
other business partners. This obligation continues even after you leave the Company, until the information becomes publicly available.
Section 4.4 Fair Dealing. You must endeavor to deal fairly with our customers, suppliers and business partners, or any other
companies or individuals with whom we do business or come into contact with, including fellow employees and our competitors. You must
not take unfair advantage of these or other parties by means of:
●

manipulation;

●

concealment;

●

abuse of privileged information;

●

misrepresentation of material facts; or

●

any other unfair-dealing practice.

Section 4.5 Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets. Our assets are to be used only for legitimate business purposes. You
should protect our assets and ensure that they are used efficiently. Any assets provided to you to enable you to engage in Company business
should be returned to the Company in the condition in which they were provided to you. You may not tamper with, or in any way destroy,
the equipment we provide to you.
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Incidental personal use of telephones, fax machines, copy machines, personal computers and similar equipment is generally
allowed if there is no significant added cost to us, it does not interfere with your work duties, and is not related to an illegal activity or to
any outside business.
Section 4.6 Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. The United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act prohibits giving anything of value,
directly or indirectly, to foreign government officials or foreign political candidates in order to obtain, retain or direct business.
Accordingly, corporate funds, property or anything of value may not be, directly or indirectly, offered or given by a person to whom this
Code is applicable or an agent acting on such person’s behalf, to a foreign official, foreign political party or official thereof or any
candidate for a foreign political office for the purpose of influencing any act or decision of such foreign person or inducing such person to
use his or her influence, or in order to assist in obtaining or retaining business for, or directing business to, any person.
All persons to whom this Code is applicable are also prohibited from offering or paying anything of value to any foreign person if
it is known or it should have been known that all or part of such payment will be used for the above-described prohibited actions. This
provision includes situations when intermediaries, such as affiliates or agents, are used to channel payoffs to foreign officials.
Section 4.7 Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations. Each of us has a duty to comply with all laws, rules and
regulations that apply to our business. Please talk to the Chief Compliance Officer if you have any questions about how to comply with the
above regulations and other laws, rules and regulations.
In addition, we expect you to comply with all our policies and procedures that apply to you. We may modify or update our policies
and procedures in the future, and may adopt new company policies and procedures from time to time. You are also expected to observe the
terms of any confidentiality agreement, employment agreement or other similar agreement that applies to you.
Section 4.8 Equal Opportunity; Harassment. We are committed to providing equal opportunity in all of our employment practices
including selection, hiring, promotion, transfer and compensation of all qualified applicants and employees without regard to race, color,
sex or gender, sexual orientation, religion, age, national origin, handicap, disability, citizenship status or any other status protected by law.
With this in mind, there are certain behaviors that will not be tolerated. These include harassment, violence, intimidation and discrimination
of any kind involving race, color, gender, sexual orientation, religion, age, national origin, handicap, disability, citizenship status, marital
status or any other status protected by law.
Section 4.9 Gifts. Gifts can appear to compromise the integrity and honesty of our personnel. On the other hand, business
colleagues often wish to provide small gifts to others as a way of demonstrating appreciation or interest. We have attempted to balance
these considerations in the policy which follows.
No person employed by the Company or the Advisor shall accept a gift or other thing of more than de minimis value ($100 or
less) from any person or entity that does business with, or is soliciting business from, the Company. Gifts exceeding that amount per person
must be returned and the gift, its approximate value and its disposition reported to the Chief Compliance Officer. Such persons of the
Company and the Advisor may accept gifts in the form of customary business entertainment (such as meals or tickets to sporting or other
entertainment events) so long as the giver will be present at the entertainment. Gifts to the Company as a whole or to an entire department
(for example, accounting, analysts, etc.) may exceed the $100 limitation, but such gifts must be approved by the Chief Compliance Officer.
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All gifts shall be reflected in a gift log, containing a basic description of the gift, a good faith estimate of the value of the gift and a
description of its disposition (that is, accepted, rejected, returned to sender, etc.).
Solicitation of gifts is strictly prohibited.
Standards for giving gifts are identical to those governing the acceptance of gifts (that is they should be restricted to items worth
$100 or less). On the whole, good taste and judgment must be exercised in both the receipt and giving of gifts. Every person subject to this
Code must avoid gifts or entertainment that would compromise the Company’s or the Advisor’s standing or reputation. If you are offered
or receive any gift that is either prohibited or questionable, you must inform the Chief Compliance Officer immediately. Disinterested
Directors are not subject to these requirements.
Section 4.10 Accuracy of Company Records. We require honest and accurate recording and reporting of information in order to
make responsible business decisions. This includes such data as quality, safety and personnel records, as well as financial records. All
financial books, records and accounts must accurately reflect transactions and events, and conform both to required accounting principles
and to our system of internal controls.
Section 4.11 Retaining Business Communications. The law requires us to maintain certain types of corporate records, usually for
specified periods of time. Failure to retain those records for those minimum periods could subject us to penalties and fines, cause the loss of
rights, obstruct justice, place us in contempt of court or seriously disadvantage us in litigation.
From time to time we establish retention or destruction policies in order to ensure legal compliance. We expect you to fully comply
with any published records retention or destruction policies, provided that you should note the following exception: If you believe, or we
inform you, that our records are relevant to any litigation or governmental action, or any potential litigation or action, then you must
preserve those records until we determine the records are no longer needed. This exception supersedes any previously or subsequently
established destruction policies for those records. If you believe that this exception may apply, or have any questions regarding the possible
applicability of this exception, please contact the Chief Compliance Officer. The personal records of Disinterested Directors are not subject
to these requirements.
Section 4.12 Outside Employment. Without the written consent of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “ Chief
Executive Officer”), no person employed by the Company or the Advisor is permitted to:
●

engage in any other financial services business for profit;

●

be employed or compensated by any other business for work performed; or

●

have a significant (more than 5% equity) interest in any other financial services business including, but not limited to, banks,
brokerages, investment advisors, insurance companies or any other similar business.

Requests for outside employment waivers should be made in writing to the Chief Executive Officer with a copy to the Chief
Compliance Officer.
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Section 4.13 Service as a Director. No person employed by the Company or the Advisor shall serve as a director or officer of any
organization, other than a charitable organization, without prior written authorization from the Chief Compliance Officer. Any request to
serve on the board of such an organization must include the name of the entity and its business, the names of the other board members, and
a general reason for the request. The Chief Compliance Officer shall consult with the Chief Executive Officer in connection with such
request. Disinterested Directors are not subject to these requirements, but should give notice to the Chief Compliance Officer prior to
serving as a director or officer of any such organization.
Section 4.14 Political Contributions. Persons associated with the Company or any of its affiliated organizations may direct
personal funds as contributions to political action committees or political candidates; however, any amount contributed in excess of $150
(regardless of whether one may vote for the candidate) must be pre-approved by the Chief Compliance Officer, or their designee. Persons
associated with the Company or the Advisor will be required to disclose any political contributions made no less frequently than annually.
Disinterested Directors are not subject to the pre-clearance or annual disclosure requirements.
Section 4.15 Media Relations. We must speak with a unified voice in all dealings with the press and other media. As a result, the
Chief Executive Officer, or his or her designee, is the sole contact for media seeking information about the Company. Any requests from
the media must be referred to the Chief Executive Officer, or his or her designee.
Section 4.16 Intellectual Property Information. Information generated in our business is a valuable asset. Protecting this
information plays an important role in our growth and ability to compete. Such information includes business and research plans, objectives
and strategies, trade secrets, unpublished financial information, salary and benefits data and lender and other business partner lists.
Employees who have access to our intellectual property information are obligated to safeguard it from unauthorized access and must:
●

not disclose this information to persons outside of the Company;

●

not use this information for personal benefit or the benefit of persons outside of the Company; and

●

not share this information with other employees except on a legitimate “need to know” basis.

Section 4.17 Internet and Email Policy. We provide an email system and Internet access to certain of our employees to help them
do their work. You may use the email system and the Internet only for legitimate business purposes in the course of your duties. Incidental
and occasional personal use is permitted, but never for personal gain or any improper or illegal use. Further, you are prohibited from
discussing or posting information regarding the Company in any external electronic forum, including Internet chat rooms, electronic
bulletin boards or social media sites. This includes posting information about the Company or Advisor in personal accounts on social media
sites such as LinkedIn®, Facebook® or Twitter®.
Section 4.18 Reporting Violations and Complaint Handling . You are responsible for compliance with the rules, standards and
principles described in this Code. In addition, you should be alert to possible violations of the Code by the Company’s or the Advisor’s
employees, officers and directors, and you are expected to report a violation promptly. All reports of possible violations should be made in
accordance with the Company’s Whistleblower Policy included as Appendix B-1.
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V. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CODE
Section 5.1 Prohibited Transactions.
5.1.1. General Prohibition. No Access Person shall purchase or sell, directly or indirectly, any Covered Security
(including any security issued by the issuer of such Covered Security) in which he or she has, or by reason of such transaction
acquires, any direct or indirect Beneficial Ownership and which such Access Person knows or should have known at the time of
such purchase or sale is being considered for purchase or sale by the Company or the Advisor, or is held in the Company’s or
Advisor’s portfolio unless such Access Person shall have obtained prior written approval for such purpose from the Chief
Compliance Officer.
●

A n Access Person who becomes aware that the Company or Advisor is considering the purchase or sale of any
Covered Security must immediately notify the Chief Compliance Officer of any interest that such Access Person may
have in any outstanding Covered Security (including any security issued by the issuer of such Covered Security).

●

An Access Person shall similarly notify the Chief Compliance Officer of any other interest or connection that such
Access Person might have in or with such issuer.

●

Once an Access Person becomes aware that the Company or Advisor is considering the purchase or sale of a Covered
Security, such Access Person may not engage in any transaction in such Covered Security (including any security
issued by the issuer of such Covered Security).

●

The foregoing notifications or permission may be provided verbally, but should be confirmed in writing as soon and
with as much detail as possible.

5.1.2 Securities Appearing on the Portfolio and Pipeline Reports and Restricted List . The holdings of the Company
are detailed in the Portfolio Report that will be distributed weekly, if not more frequently, to all Access Persons. Access Persons
will also receive, as frequently as necessary, the names of those entities that are being considered for investment by the Advisor and
Company in the Pipeline Report. Access Persons are required to review these reports and the Restricted List prior to engaging in
any securities transactions. These reports will indicate if there are publicly available securities associated with each holding. Such
publicly available securities will also be prohibited from purchase or sale without prior written approval from the Chief Compliance
Officer.
5.1.3 Securities Associated with Affiliated and Related Party Transactions . Access Persons will be advised of portfolio
holdings as well as situations where the Company may engage in other transactions creating affiliated or relationships with other
parties. Typically, securities issued by such affiliated or otherwise related parties will be included on the Company’s Restricted List.
However, should an Access Person have a question about investing in any security that might have a tangential relationship to the
Company or its Portfolio, the Access person should seek the guidance of the Chief Compliance Officer prior to engaging in a
securities transaction.
5.1.4. Initial Public Offerings and Limited Offerings. Access Persons of the Company or the Advisor must obtain
approval from the Company or Advisor before directly or indirectly acquiring Beneficial Ownership in any securities in an Initial
Public Offering or in a Limited Offering where such securities are issued by (i) an issuer or entity whose outstanding securities are
held or being considered for purchase by the Company or Advisor, or any control affiliate thereof; or (ii) an entity that is currently
providing or is proposing to provide advisory, administrative, custodial, transfer agency, brokerage or other material services to the
Company, including firms that are seeking to sell or in the past two years have sold securities to the Company.
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5.1.5. Securities under Review; Blackout Period. No Access Persons shall execute a securities transaction in any security
issued by an entity that the Company owns in its portfolio or is considering for purchase or sale unless such Access Person shall
have obtained prior written approval for such purpose from the Chief Compliance Officer. No Access Person may trade in the
securities of any issuer appearing on the Restricted List until notified that the entity name no longer appears on the Restricted List.
Access persons are also prohibited from trading in the names appearing on the Pipeline and Portfolio Reports (as discussed above).
5.1.6. Company Acquisition of Shares in Companies that Access Persons Hold Through Limited Offerings . Access
Persons who have been authorized to acquire securities in a Limited Offering must disclose that investment to the Chief Compliance
Officer when they are involved in the Company’s subsequent consideration of an investment in the issuer, and the Company’s
decision to purchase such securities must be independently reviewed by investment personnel with no personal interest in that
issuer.
Section 5.2 Management of the Restricted List . The Chief Compliance Officer will manage placing and removing names from the
Restricted List. Should an Access Person learn of material nonpublic information concerning the issuer of any security that information
must be provided to the Chief Compliance Officer so that the issuer can be included on the Restricted List. The Chief Compliance Officer
will note the nature of the information learned, the time the information was learned and the other persons in possession of this
information. The Chief Compliance Officer will maintain this information in a log. Upon the receipt of such information, the Chief
Compliance Officer will revise and circulate the Restricted List to all Access Persons. The Advisor is directed to advise the Company
when it has obtained information causing the Advisor to be restricted from trading in the securities of any entities being considered for
investment in the Company’s portfolio. The contents of the Restricted List are highly confidential and must not be disclosed to any person
or entity outside of the Company absent approval of the Chief Compliance Officer.
Section 5.3 Procedures to Implement this Code. The following reporting procedures have been established to assist Access Persons
in avoiding a violation of this Code, and to assist the Company and Advisor in preventing, detecting and imposing sanctions for violations
of this Code. Every Access Person must follow these procedures. Questions regarding these procedures should be directed to the Chief
Compliance Officer.
All Access Persons are subject to the reporting requirements set forth in Section 5.4 except:
●

with respect to transactions effected for, and Covered Securities (including any security issued by the issuer of such
Covered Security) held in, any account over which the Access Person has no direct or indirect influence or control; or

●

Those transactions effected pursuant to an Automatic Investment Plan.
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Section 5.4 Reporting Requirements. The Chief Compliance Officer shall furnish each employee with a copy of this Code along
with the other sections of this Code, and any amendments, upon commencement of employment and annually thereafter.
Each Supervised Person is required to certify, through a written acknowledgment, within 10 days of commencement of
employment, that he or she has received, read and understands all aspects of the Code and recognizes that he or she is subject to the
provisions and principles detailed therein. In addition, the Chief Compliance Officer shall notify each Access Person of his or her
obligation to file an initial holdings report, quarterly transaction reports, and annual holdings reports in the forms attached hereto as
Appendices C, D and E, respectively.
Section 5.5 Pre-Clearance Reports. Access Persons must obtain approval from the Chief Compliance Officer prior to entering into
a transaction in a Limited Offering or an Initial Public Offering. Requests shall be made in writing (e.g. e-mail) and no trading may occur
until approval is received from the Chief Compliance Officer.
Section 5.6 Initial Holdings Reports. Each Access Person must, no later than 10 days after the person becomes an Access Person,
submit to the Chief Compliance Officer or other designated person a report of the Access Person’s current securities holdings. The
information provided must be current as of a date no more than 45 days prior to the date the person becomes an Access Person. The report
must include the following information or a representation that such information has been provided to the Chief Compliance Officer:
●

the title and type of the security and, as applicable, the exchange ticker symbol or CUSIP number, the number of shares
held for each security and the principal amount;

●

the name of any broker, dealer or bank with which the Access Person maintains an account in which any securities are held
for the Access Person’s direct or indirect benefit; and

●

the date the Access Person submits the report.

Section 5.7 Quarterly Transaction Reports. Each Access Person must, no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter,
submit to the Chief Compliance Officer or other designated person a report of the Access Person’s transactions involving a Covered
Security (including any security issued by the issuer of such Covered Security) in which the Access Person had, or as a result of the
transaction acquired, any direct or indirect Beneficial Ownership. The report must cover all transactions occurring during the calendar
quarter most recently ending. Disinterested Directors must file such a report if such director knew or, in the ordinary course of fulfilling his
or her official duties as a director of the Company, should have known, that during the 15-day period immediately preceding or after the
date of the transaction involving a Covered Security by the director such Covered Security is or was purchased or sold by the Company or
the Company’s Advisor considered purchasing or selling such Covered Security. The report must contain the following information or a
representation that such information has been provided to the Chief Compliance Officer:
●

the date of the transaction;

●

the title and, as applicable, the exchange ticker symbol or CUSIP number, of each reportable security involved, the interest
rate and maturity date of each reportable security involved, the number of shares of each reportable security involved and
the principal amount of each reportable security involved;
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●

the nature of the transaction (i.e., purchase, sale or other type of acquisition or disposition);

●

the price of the security at which the transaction was effected;

●

the name of the broker, dealer or bank with or through which the transaction was effected, and the date the account(s) were
established; and

●

the date the Access Person submits the report.

Section 5.8 Annual Holdings Reports. Each Access Person must submit, to the Chief Compliance Officer or other designated
person, an annual holdings report reflecting holdings as of a date no more than 45 days before the report is submitted. The annual holdings
report must be submitted at least once every 12-month period, on a date to be designated by the Company. The Chief Compliance Officer
will notify every Access Person of the date. Each report must include the following information or a representation that such information
has been provided to the Chief Compliance Officer:
●

the title and, as applicable, the exchange ticker symbol or CUSIP number, of each reportable security involved, the interest
rate and maturity date of each reportable security involved, the number of shares of each reportable security involved and
the principal amount of each reportable security involved;

●

the name of any broker, dealer or bank with which the Access Person maintains an account in which any securities are held
for the Access Person’s direct or indirect benefit; and

●

the date the Access Person submits the report.

Section 5.9 Annual Certification of Compliance. All Access Persons must annually certify, through a written acknowledgment, to
the Chief Compliance Officer that (1) they have read, understood and agree to abide by this Code; (2) they have complied with all
applicable requirements of this Code; and (3) they have reported all transactions and holdings that they are required to report under this
Code.
VI. STATEMENT ON THE PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING
Failure by you to recognize the importance of safeguarding information and using information appropriately is greatly detrimental
both to your future and to the Company’s. The information provided below should provide a useful guide about what constitutes insider
trading and material inside information.
Summary of the Company’s and the Advisor’s Business Activities
The Company is a business development company established under the 1940 Act and registered with the SEC. The Company
offers investors access to private securities with a focus on customized debt and equities financing solutions for lower middle-market
companies in the form of subordinated debt and, to a lesser extent, senior debt and minority equity investments. Generally, these loans are
held with private companies that do not have any publicly-traded securities. In certain instances, however, there may be publicly-traded
securities available in the marketplace for issuers in which the Company holds a position.
The Advisor is registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, and serves as the
investment adviser to the Company.
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It is not expected that, in the course of their trading activities, the Company or the Advisor will receive access to information that
is not already in the public domain. However, certain data sources may make information available to the Company or the Advisor that
have not been fully disseminated in the marketplace. If this situation arises and the Company or Advisor have an opportunity to opt to
receive the information, the Access Person that encounters this situation will raise the situation with his or her supervisors and our Chief
Compliance Officer to decide whether to opt to receive the information or decline to receive the information. If the decision is made to
receive the information, our Chief Compliance Officer will update the Restricted List as it is discussed in the Code of Ethics.
In the unlikely event that you come into possession of information that is not publicly available, either through your work with us
or outside of the workplace, you will be required to adhere to this Statement on the Prohibition of Insider Trading (this “Statement”) as
described in the following pages. You will also be subject to certain reporting requirements in connection with complying with the Code of
Ethics beginning with the requirement to notify our Chief Compliance Officer.
Background
The securities laws and the rules and regulations of the self-regulatory organizations are designed to ensure that the securities
markets are fair and honest, that material information regarding a company is publicly available, and that a security’s price and volume are
determined by the free interplay of economic forces. The anti-fraud rules of the federal securities laws prohibit, in connection with the
purchase or sale of a security:
●

making an untrue statement of a material fact;

●

omitting to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made not misleading; and

●

engaging in acts, practices or courses of business which would be fraudulent or deceptive.

Violation of these provisions is a crime that may result in imprisonment and can have other very serious repercussions for the
Company, the Advisor and the employee. Violators may be censured by the government or self-regulatory organizations, suspended,
barred from the securities business or fined. In addition, violations may result in liability under the federal securities laws, including the
Insider Trading Sanctions Act of 1984 and the Insider Trading and Securities Fraud Enforcement Act of 1988. The Company’s actions with
respect to any violations will be swift and forceful, since it is the victim of any such abuse.
A violation of the Company’s or Advisor’s policies and procedures regarding confidential information or the use thereof and
disclosure may result in dismissal, suspension without pay, loss of pay or bonus, loss of severance benefits, demotion or other sanctions,
whether or not the violation of the Company’s or Advisor’s policy or procedure also constituted a violation of law. Trading while in
possession of or tipping on the basis of non-public information could also result in civil or criminal liability which could lead to
imprisonment, fines and/or a requirement of disgorgement of any profits realized and, as a result of the violation, to an injunction
prohibiting the violator from being employed in the securities industry. The Company or Advisor may initiate or cooperate in proceedings
resulting in such penalties.
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Policy
No person to whom this Statement applies, including officers, directors or employees of the Company and the Advisor, may trade,
either personally or on behalf of others, while in possession of material non-public information, nor may any officer, director or employee
communicate material non-public information to others in violation of the law. This conduct is referred to as “insider trading.” Any
questions regarding this policy and procedure should be directed to our Chief Compliance Officer.
While the law concerning insider trading is not rigid, it generally is understood to prohibit:
●

trading by an insider while in possession of material non-public information;

●

trading by a non-insider while in possession of material non-public information where the information either was disclosed to
the non-insider in violation of an insider’s duty to keep it confidential or was misappropriated; and

●

communicating material non-public information to others.

The elements of a claim for insider trading and the penalties for unlawful conduct are described below.
Who is an Insider?
The concept of an “insider” is broad and includes officers, directors and employees of a company. In addition, a person can be a
“temporary insider” if he or she enters into a special confidential relationship in the conduct of a company’s affairs and, as a result, is given
access to information solely for the company’s purposes. A temporary insider can include, by way of example, attorneys, accountants,
consultants, bank lending officers and employees of such organizations. According to the U.S. Supreme Court, a company must expect the
outsider to keep the disclosed non-public information confidential and the relationship must at least imply such a duty before the outsider
will be considered an insider.
What is Material Information?
Trading on non-public information is not a basis for liability unless the non-public information is material. Information generally
is considered “material” if (i) there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider the non-public information
important in making an investment decision, or (ii) the non-public information is reasonably certain to have a substantial effect on the price
of a company’s securities. Non-public information that should be considered material includes, but is not limited to: dividend changes;
earnings estimates not previously disseminated; material changes in previously released earnings estimates; significant merger or
acquisition proposals or agreements; major litigation; liquidation problems; and extraordinary management developments.
Material information does not have to relate to a company’s business. For example, in Carpenter v. United States 108 S. Ct. 316
(1987), the U.S. Supreme Court considered as material certain information about the contents of a forthcoming newspaper column that was
expected to affect the market price of a security. In that case, a Wall Street Journal reporter was found criminally liable for disclosing to
others the dates that reports on various companies would appear in the Wall Street Journal and whether or not those reports would be
favorable.
Any questions that you may have as to whether information is material must be addressed with our Chief Compliance Officer
before acting in any way on such information.
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What is Non-public Information?
Information is non-public until it has been effectively communicated to the marketplace. One must be able to point to some fact to
show that the information is public. For example, information found in a report filed with the SEC, or appearing in Reuters, Bloomberg or a
Dow Jones publication or in any other publication of general circulation would generally be considered “public.” In certain instances,
information disseminated to certain segments of the investment community may be deemed “public” (e.g., research communicated through
institutional information dissemination services such as First Call). The fact that information has been disclosed to a few members of the
public does not make it public for insider trading purposes. To be “public,” the information must have been disseminated in a manner
designed to reach investors generally, and the investors must be given the opportunity to absorb the information. Even after public
disclosure of information, you must wait until the close of business on the second trading day after the information was publicly disclosed
before you can treat the information as public.
Basis for Liability
Described below are circumstances under which a person or entity may be deemed to have traded on inside information.
1. Fiduciary Duty Theory. In 1980, the U.S. Supreme Court found that there is no general duty to disclose before trading
on material non-public information, but that such a duty arises where there is a fiduciary relationship between the parties to the transaction.
In such case, one party has a right to expect that the other party will not disclose any material non-public information and will refrain from
trading. Chiarella v. U.S., 445 U.S. 22 (1980).
Insiders such as employees of an issuer are ordinarily considered to have a fiduciary duty to the issuer and its
shareholders. In Dirks v. SEC , 463 U.S. 646 (1983), the U.S. Supreme Court stated alternative theories by which such fiduciary duties are
imposed on non-insiders: (1) they can enter into a confidential relationship with the company (e.g. attorneys and accountants, etc.)
(“temporary insiders”); or (2) they can acquire a fiduciary duty to the company’s shareholders as “tippees” if they are aware or should have
been aware that they have been given confidential information by an insider or temporary insider who has violated his or her fiduciary duty
to the company’s shareholders.
In the “tippee” situation, a breach of duty occurs only if the insider or temporary insider personally benefits, directly or
indirectly, from the disclosure. The benefit does not have to be of a financial nature, but can be a gift, a reputational benefit that will
translate into future earnings, or even evidence of a relationship that suggests a quid pro quo.
2. Misappropriation Theory. Another basis for insider trading liability is the “misappropriation” theory, where liability is
established when trading occurs on material non-public information that was stolen or misappropriated from another person. In Carpenter v.
United States, the U.S. Supreme Court found that a columnist defrauded The Wall Street Journal by communicating information prior to its
publication to another person who used the information to trade in the securities markets. It should be noted that the misappropriation
theory can be used to reach a variety of individuals not previously thought to be encompassed under the fiduciary duty theory.
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Penalties for Insider Trading
Penalties for trading on or communicating material non-public information are severe, both for individuals involved in such
conduct and their employers. A person can be subject to some or all of the penalties below even if he or she does not personally benefit
from the violation. Penalties include the following:
●

jail sentences;

●

civil injunction;

●

treble damages;

●

disgorgement of profits;

●

fines for the person who committed the violation of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided, whether or not the
person actually benefited; and

●

fines for the employer or other controlling person of up to the greater of $1,000,000 or three times the amount of the profit
gained or loss avoided.
Controlling the Flow of Sensitive Information

The following procedures have been established to assist the officers, directors and employees of the Company and Advisor in
controlling the flow of sensitive information so as to avoid the possibility of trading on material non-public information either on behalf of
the Company, the Advisor or for themselves and to assist the Company and Advisor and their supervisory personnel in surveilling for, and
otherwise preventing and detecting, insider trading. Every officer, director and employee of the Company or Advisor must follow these
procedures or risk serious sanctions by one or more regulatory authorities and/or the Company and Advisor, including dismissal,
substantial personal liability and criminal penalties. If you have any questions about these procedures you should consult our Chief
Compliance Officer.
1 . Identifying Inside Information. Before trading for yourself or others in the securities of a company about which you
have what you believe to be inside information, ask yourself the following questions:
●

I s the information non-public? To whom has this information been provided? Has the information been effectively
communicated to the marketplace? To what extent, for how long, and by what means has the information been disseminated? If
information is non-public, it normally may not be used in connection with effecting securities transactions; however, if you
have any doubts whatsoever as to whether the information is non-public, you must ask our Chief Compliance Officer prior to
trading on, or communicating (except in accordance with the procedures and requirements herein) such information.

●

Is the information material? Is this information that an investor would consider important in making his or her investment
decision? Is this information that would substantially affect the market price of the securities if generally disclosed?
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If, after consideration of the above, you believe that the information may be material and non-public, or if you have
questions in that regard, you should take the following steps:
●

Report the matter immediately to our Chief Compliance Officer.

●

Do not purchase or sell the securities on behalf of yourself or others.

●

Do not communicate the information inside or outside of the Company, other than to our Chief Compliance Officer.

●

After our Chief Compliance Officer has reviewed the issue, you will be instructed to continue the prohibitions against trading
and communication, or you will be allowed to communicate the information and then trade.

2 . Restricting Access to Material Non-public Information . Information in your possession that you identify as material
and non-public may not be communicated to anyone, except as provided in paragraph 1 above. In addition, care should be taken so that
such information is secure. For example, files containing material non-public information should be sealed and access to computer files
containing material non-public information should be restricted.
3. Personal Security Trading. All officers, directors and employees must trade in accordance with the provisions of the
Code of Ethics as well as this Statement in order to assist the Company and Advisor with monitoring for violations of the law.
4. Restricted List. As defined in the Code of Ethics, our Chief Compliance Officer will maintain a Restricted List.
Disclosure outside of the Company and/or Advisor as to what issuers and/or securities are on the Restricted List could therefore constitute
tipping and is strictly prohibited.
5. Supervision/Investigation. Should our Chief Compliance Officer learn, through regular review of personal trading
documents, or from any other source, that a violation of this Statement is suspected, our Chief Compliance Officer shall alert the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Together, these parties will determine who should conduct further investigation, if they determine an
investigation is necessary.
VII. ADMINISTRATION OF THE CODE
The Chief Compliance Officer has overall responsibility for administering this Code and reporting on the administration of and
compliance with this Code and related matters to the Board, the Audit Committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and the Advisor.
The Chief Compliance Officer shall review all reports to determine whether any transactions recorded therein constitute violations
of this Code. Before making any determination that a violation has been committed by a person subject to this Code, such person shall be
given an opportunity to supply additional explanatory material. The Chief Compliance Officer shall maintain copies of the reports as
required by Rule 17j-1(f) under the 1940 Act.
No less frequently than annually the Chief Compliance Officer must furnish to the Board and Audit Committee, and the Board
and/or Audit Committee must consider, a written report that describes any issues arising under the Code or its procedures since the last
report to the Board, including but not limited to, information about material violations of this Code or its procedures and any sanctions
imposed in response to material violations. This report should also certify that the Company has adopted procedures reasonably designed to
prevent persons subject to this Code from violating this Code.
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VIII. SANCTIONS FOR CODE VIOLATIONS
All violations of this Code will result in appropriate corrective action, up to and including dismissal. If the violation involves
potentially criminal activity, the individual or individuals in question will be reported, as warranted, to the appropriate authorities.
IX. APPLICATION/WAIVERS
All the directors, officers and employees of the Company and its Advisor are subject to this Code.
Insofar as other policies or procedures of the Company, the Advisor or their affiliates govern or purport to govern the behavior or
activities of persons who are subject to this Code, they are superseded by this Code to the extent that they overlap or conflict with the
provisions of this Code.
Any amendment or waiver of this Code for an executive officer or member of the Board must be made by the Board and disclosed
on a Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within four business days following such amendment or waiver.
X. RECORDS
The Company and Advisor shall maintain records with respect to this Code in the manner and to the extent set forth below, which
records may be maintained on microfilm or electronic storage media under the conditions described in Rule 31a-2(f) under the 1940 Act
and shall be available for examination by representatives of the Securities and Exchange Commission:
1. A copy of this Code that is, or at any time within the past five years has been, in effect shall be maintained in an easily
accessible place;
2. A record of any violation of this Code and of any action taken as a result of such violation shall be maintained in an easily
accessible place for a period of not less than five years following the end of the fiscal year in which the violation occurs;
3. A copy of each report made by an Access Person or duplicate account statement received pursuant to the Code, shall be
maintained for a period of not less than five years from the end of the fiscal year in which it is made or the information is provided, the first
two years in an easily accessible place;
4. A record of all persons who are, or within the past five years have been, required to make reports pursuant to this Code, or
who are or were responsible for reviewing these reports, shall be maintained in an easily accessible place;
5. A copy of each report made to the Board shall be maintained for at least five years after the end of the fiscal year in which it is
made, the first two years in an easily accessible place; and
6. A record of any decision, and the reasons supporting the decision, to approve the direct or indirect acquisition by an Access
Person of Beneficial Ownership in any securities in an Initial Public Offering or a Limited Offering shall be maintained for at least five
years after the end of the fiscal year in which the approval is granted.
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XI. REVISIONS AND AMENDMENTS
This Code may be revised, changed or amended at any time by the Board. Following any material revisions or updates, an updated
version of this Code will be distributed to you, and will supersede the prior version of this Code effective upon distribution. We may ask
you to sign an acknowledgement confirming that you have read and understood the revised version of this Code, and that you agree to
comply with the provisions.
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APPENDIX A
Acknowledgment Regarding
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
This acknowledgment is to be signed and returned to the Chief Compliance Officer and will be retained as part of your permanent
personnel file.
I have received a copy of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, including the Statement on the Prohibition of
Insider Trading (the “Code”), read it, and understand that the Code contains the expectations of the Company regarding employee conduct
and ethical behavior. I agree to observe the policies and procedures contained in the Code and have been advised that, if I have any
questions or concerns relating to such policies or procedures, I have an obligation to report to the Chief Compliance Officer any suspected
violations of the Code of which I am aware. I also understand that the Code is issued for informational purposes and that it is not intended
to create, nor does it represent, a contract of employment.

Name (please print)
Signature
Date
The failure to read and/or sign this acknowledgment in no way relieves you of your responsibility to comply with the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics.
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APPENDIX B
WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
All employees are responsible for compliance with the rules, standards and principles described in this Code. All employees must
be alert to possible violations of the Code by the BDC’s or Advisor’s officers, principals and employees and are expected to report a
violation promptly. Normally, reports should be made to one’s immediate supervisor. Under some circumstances, it may be impractical or
you may feel uncomfortable raising a matter with your supervisor. In such instances, you are encouraged to contact the Chief Compliance
Officer who will investigate and report the matter to the appropriate Chief Executive Officer and the governing body of any affected client,
as prescribed by the circumstances. All employees will be expected to cooperate in any investigation of a violation.
Anyone who has a concern about the conduct of the Advisor or the BDC, the conduct of a related officer, principal or employee
or policies and controls related to accounting procedures or auditing matters, may communicate that concern to the Chief Compliance
Officer. All reported concerns relating to or affecting a client shall be forwarded to the applicable governing body of the client by the Chief
Compliance Officer and will be simultaneously addressed by the Chief Compliance Officer in the same way that other concerns are
addressed by the BDC and the Advisor. The status of all outstanding concerns forwarded to any clients will be reported on a quarterly basis
by the Chief Compliance Officer.
All reports will be investigated and, whenever possible, requests for confidentiality will be honored. And, while anonymous
reports will be accepted, please understand that anonymity may hinder or impede the investigation of a report. All cases of questionable
activity or improper actions will be reviewed for appropriate action, discipline or corrective actions. Whenever possible, we will keep
confidential the identity of employees, officers or principals who are accused of violations, unless or until it has been determined that a
violation has occurred.
There will be no reprisal, retaliation or adverse action taken against any officer, principal or employee who, in good faith,
reports or assists in the investigation of a violation or suspected violation, or who makes an inquiry about the appropriateness of an
anticipated or actual course of action.
For reporting concerns about the BDC’s or Advisor’s conduct, the conduct of an officer, principal or employee of these entities, or
about the entities’ accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, you may use the following means of communication:
ADDRESS:Parkview Capital Credit or Parkview Advisor, LLC
Two Post Oak Center
1980 Post Oak Boulevard, 15 th Floor
Houston, Texas 77056
In the case of a confidential, anonymous submission, employees should set forth their concerns in writing and forward them in a
sealed envelope to the Chief Compliance Officer, such envelope shall be labeled with a legend such as “To be opened by the Chief
Compliance Officer only.”
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APPENDIX C
INITIAL HOLDINGS REPORT
As of ___________________
To:

Chief Compliance Officer

A .
Securities Holdings. I have listed below (or attached hereto a listing) all of my Securities Holdings held by me or Beneficial
Owners as defined by the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Title of
Security

CUSIP
Number

Interest
Rate and
Maturity
Date
(If Applicable)

Date of
Transaction

Number of
Shares or
Principal
Amount

Dollar
Amount of
Transaction

Nature of
Transaction
(Purchase,
Sale, Other)

Price

Broker/
Dealer or
Bank
Through
Whom
Effected

B.
Brokerage Accounts. I, or a Beneficial Owner, have established the following accounts in which securities for my direct or indirect
benefit:
Name of Broker, Dealer or Bank:

Date:

Signature:
Name (please print):
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APPENDIX D
QUARTERLY TRANSACTION REPORT
For the Calendar Quarter Ended: ___________
To:

Chief Compliance Officer

A.
Securities Holdings. During the quarter referred to above, the following transactions were effected in securities of which I had, or
by reason of such transactions acquired, direct or indirect beneficial ownership, and which are required to be reported pursuant to the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics:

Title of
Security

CUSIP
Number

Interest
Rate and
Maturity
Date
(If Applicable)

Date of
Transaction

Number of
Shares or
Principal
Amount

Dollar
Amount of
Transaction

Nature of
Transaction
(Purchase,
Sale, Other)

Price

Broker/
Dealer or
Bank
Through
Whom
Effected

B.
New Brokerage Accounts. During the quarter referred to above, I established the following accounts in which securities were held
during the quarter for my direct or indirect benefit:
Name of Broker, Dealer or Bank

Date Account Was Established

C.
Other Matters. This report (i) excludes transactions with respect to which I had no direct or indirect influence or control, (ii) excludes
other transactions not required to be reported and (iii) is not an admission that I have or had any direct or indirect beneficial ownership in
the securities listed above.
Date:

Signature:
Name (please print):
See statements on file
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APPENDIX E
ANNUAL HOLDINGS REPORT
As of December 31, 20___
To:

Chief Compliance Officer

As of December 31, 20__, I had direct or beneficial ownership interest in the securities listed below which are required to be
reported pursuant to Rule 17j-l under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended:
A.
Securities Holdings. I have listed below (or attached hereto a listing) all of my securities holdings held by me or Beneficial
Owners as defined by the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
Title of Security

CUSIP Number

Number of Shares or Principal Amount

B.
As of December 31, 20__, I maintained accounts with brokers, dealers, banks listed below in which securities were held for
my direct or indirect benefit:
Brokerage Accounts. I, or a Beneficial Owner, have established the following accounts in which securities for my direct or indirect
benefit:
Name of Broker, Dealer or Bank

Date Account Was Established

This report (i) excludes securities and accounts over which I had no direct or indirect influence or control, (ii) excludes securities
not required to be reported (for example, direct obligations of the U.S. Government, shares of registered investment companies etc.) and
(iii) is not an admission that I have or had any direct or indirect beneficial ownership in the securities accounts listed above.
Date:

Signature:
Name (please print):

See statements on file
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Keith W. Smith, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

[Reserved];

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2016

/s/ Keith W. Smith
Keith W. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Charles Jacobson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

[Reserved];

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2016

/s/ Charles Jacobson
Charles Jacobson
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. § 1350)
Each of the undersigned officers of Parkview Capital Credit, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies, for purposes of Section 1350 of
Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his
knowledge:
(i)

The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2015 (the “Report”)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(ii)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date:

March 28, 2016

By:
/s/ Keith W. Smith
Name: Keith W. Smith
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:

March 28, 2016

By:
/s/ Charles Jacobson
Name: Charles Jacobson
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
It is not begin filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and it is not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general information language in
such filing, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates by reference.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

